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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Principal Place of Business

CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited is a limited company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Suites 1801-2, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

Principal Activities

The Company is a financial holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the provision of general banking and related financial services
primarily in Hong Kong. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2005 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 83 to 222.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK$0.113 (2004: HK$0.066) per share was paid on
15 September 2005. The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.060 (2004: HK$0.075) per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2005.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$259,300 (2004: HK$756,155).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 45 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 44 to the financial statements. Shares were issued by the Company
during the year on exercise of share options by the option holders.

FEEELRZEIRAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2005 and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Kong Dan

Executive Directors
Mr. Dou Jianzhong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen

(Managing Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin

(Managing Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Roger Clark Spyer (appointed on 2 December 2005)
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Peter

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Zhenming (appointed on 27 June 2005)
Mr. Chen Xiaoxian (appointed on 17 January 2005)
Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Liu Jifu

Mr. Wang Dongming

Mr. Yang Chao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gil-Tienda Rafael

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

The following Directors resigned during the year ended 31 December 2005
and up to the date of this report:

Mr. Chang Zhenming

(resigned as Director on 17 January 2005)
Mr. Zhang Enzhao

(resigned as Director on 17 March 2005)
Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth

(resigned as Director on 1 January 2006)

In accordance with Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire from office at the next Annual General Meeting
and the retiring Directors shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
Save for Mr. Yang Chao, all the other retiring Directors offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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1. FATRHBERNETE

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2005, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
disclosed in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

1. Long positions in shares of the Company

HRETERYE HEBITREAT X
ESNa 54 Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity ordinary shares held issued share capital
BRAFZ MLt EmEAA 2,074,689 0.065
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Beneficial owner
B EmEAA 2,014,114 0.063
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Peter Beneficial owner
LHREEE BB A 2,074,689 0.065

Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth

Beneficial owner

2. XA (MRFFTEIAMS) ARG
3a
REARAB BT S FLARE - BRIF S
Lt EKREAE  BEREERIAELLE
RYBIERE  URBARRIEBK - ZSBRE
BIFLTUEDZRAOBALSTET A - BHEZS
BRECEZE _TERF T _A=1T—HIFE
WEFR - RRTHERESS] BT RF B
AR M A3 [PABRAREEN OB RS TA -
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2. Long positions in (in respect of equity derivatives)
underlying shares of the Company
Shares options, being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives, to
subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company were granted to
Mr. Kong Dan, Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen, Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin,
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Peter and Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth pursuant to
the share option schemes of the Company. Information in relation to
these share options during the year ended 31 December 2005 is shown
in the following section under the heading of “Share Option Schemes”
and note 43 to the financial statements under the section of “Equity
settled share-based transactions”.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



EERTHAENIG - HEARS X

REEPHEZRXE @

2. XA (MRFFTEIAMS) ARRGH

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (cont'd)

2. Long positions in (in respect of equity derivatives)

sy NE

AN RAREEMBRARPERERITER
Al ([F{EF=ZFERTT]) B HEquity Linked Deferred

Award ([ELDA]) (ELDAZ F¥ 4R {

BN B 15 ¥

RMTEEAR AR SENOBRNZZ]IA) TA

ARTHES -

underlying shares of the Company (cont'd)

In addition, the Equity Linked Deferred Award (the “ELDA") (detailed
terms of which are stated in note 43 to the financial statements under

the section of “Cash settled share-based transactions”) was granted by
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited (“CKWB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company, to the following Directors:

ELDA SR B

ELDAFT i & 19 % & iz 81 B ELDA price per share

ESna il = Number of ordinary shares (&% ()
Name of Director Offer date notionally subject to ELDA (HKS)
PR 5T % 2 & 16/04/2004 150,000 2.55
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen 24/03/2005 150,000 2.00
B KR ST 16/04/2004 80,000 2.55
Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin 24/03/2005 80,000 2.00
TS E 16/04/2004 100,000 2.55
Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth 24/03/2005 100,000 2.00

3. FAERKGERERATEIAMS) HEA

RRfperiR g

4 o
7

4. FATHEBZENROHBERRE

4 o

s
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corporations of the Company
None.

3. Short positions in shares and (in respect of equity
derivatives) underlying shares of the Company
None.

4. Long and short positions in shares of associated
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Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (contd)

5. XRATEEHEEN (BRAGTETIAMS) 5. Long positions in (in respect of equity derivatives)

HEARBHEFE underlying shares of associated corporations of
the Company
REEAMSERARQA (KRAMNEEAQ Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives, to
) ([REERD T REE S ®RNER subscribe for the ordinary shares of CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
EE(BIFLTAEDZWNRAITETR) T Limited (“CCMH"), an associated company of the Company, were
HIRRBIESE granted by CCMH to the following Directors of the Company:
g RPiEEFALTERYE

ESna 54 Number of CCMH’s oI {TE R IR
Name of Director Capacity ordinary shares involved Exercisable period
LA BEm#EE A 30,000 02/03/2007 — 01/03/2010
Mr. Kong Dan Beneficial owner
BEPEE A A 15,000 02/03/2007 - 01/03/2010
Mr. Dou Jianzhong Beneficial owner
PR 2T % Hh 22 & BEm#EE A 15,000 02/03/2007 — 01/03/2010
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Beneficial owner
THRELE EmEAA 15,000 02/03/2007 - 01/03/2010
Mr. Wang Dongming Beneficial owner
TS E BEm#EE A 15,000 16/12/2007 — 15/12/2010
Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth Beneficial owner

6. FATHEEEEN REEGTETIAMS) 6. Short positions in (in respect of equity derivatives)
HER BB ®RE underlying shares of associated corporations of the

Company

' o None.

7. FAEREEER

| oo
s

8. FAEMEEHEEMEEER

7. Interests in debentures of the Company
None.

8. Interests in debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company

BEEYE
Amount of debentures
EEnE EITA 5% (%€3T)
Name of Director Issuer Capacity (USS)
BRET Z W £ CKWB (Cayman Islands) Limited EmBA A 300,000
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Beneficial owner
8§ e i

Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin

CKWB (Cayman Islands) Limited EaEAA 80,000
Ben
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (contd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO.

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted The CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
Share Option Scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) on 16 May 2003 and, at
the same time, terminated the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme adopted
by the Company on 30 March 1995 (the “Old Option Scheme”). However,
the provisions of the Old Option Scheme remained in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of all options granted prior
to the termination of the Old Option Scheme on 29 March 2005. For the
year ended 31 December 2005, there was no option granted by the Company
under the Old Option Scheme. However, options to subscribe for a total of
6,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company were granted to 275 eligible
persons under the New Option Scheme on 13 June 2005.

The following is a summary of the New Option Scheme disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the New Option Scheme
The purpose of the New Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the eligible
persons.

71



EEEREE

Report of the Directors

BERRHESTE (@)
2. FEBEGEmeEE
BEE A TFIA G AL R

(a)

RIFRAEEKE AR L2 EKMEFE
RHEBRUATIEZEEXES

FRTES (BREMBIIFNTES)

REBEMKE R RN ERREERR

REBEMK R ABNEWR ARG HER

AEBEMRKERRANES  BH - ¥5
HAERHE  FAEEA  ABA - R
HARE

RASEEMKE A RRERT - R
Hp i e ZR R EMER - BAREER
B2z NS EEE

MER LI M2EEER s —2k2 %
ANET2EREEZERMAT S 2

S AR B REFTHREE LA EMER
2EENTAETREEETNIEA

W ><ll\

3. HiFERRHERT EIh A B ITRR B EH RER
—ERAF+-A=t+—BHEBHITRE
B E
HEREABRT FEHRTOROEE R

243,104,5250% + {5 AR R AR

A—ZEZRF+ A

=T -HEBETHRANTE6% -

72

Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
2. Participants of the New Option Scheme
The Board may offer to grant an option to the following eligible persons:

(a)

an employee or director holding salaried office or employment
under a contract with a member of the Group;

a non-executive director (including any independent non-executive

directors);

a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group;

a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group;

a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of
the Group;

a person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy and professional
services to any member of the Group;

any company wholly-owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants; or

the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any of the above
classes of participants.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the New
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
at 31 December 2005
The number of shares available for issue under the New Option Scheme

is 243,104,525 shares, representing 7.6% of the issued share capital of

the Company as at 31 December 2005.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share Option Schemes (cont'd)

4,

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Option Scheme

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if exercised,
would result in such eligible person becoming entitled to subscribe for
such number of shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
shares already issued or to be issued to him under all options granted
to him in the 12 month period up to and including the offer date of the
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such date. Any
grant of further options above this limit shall be subject to certain
requirements as stipulated in the rules of the New Option Scheme.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

Beginning on the second anniversary of the date of grant of such options
and ending on the day immediately before the tenth anniversary thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised
From the date of grant of such options up to the day immediately before
the second anniversary thereof.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purposes must be repaid
Not applicable.

The basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Directors and being not less
than the higher of the following:

(@  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer;

(b)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading

days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company.
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Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
9. The remaining life of the New Option Scheme
The New Option Scheme will end on 15 May 2013.

At 31 December 2005, the Directors and the other eligible persons had the
following interests in options, which were granted under the New Option
Scheme and/or the Old Option Scheme respectively, to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of the Company (closing market price per share at 30 December
2005 was HK$2.875):

K-%BEE 1-BBEE
-B-B +zBZt-E
HRERE  BRTEY

BE-B%L%E
TZREt+-BL HE-FFLE
ERTPH t-A=t-BE BE-EFnE frfE MEFEY
RRENE Bl +-A=t-BL AR EY Wi &
Number — EEREHE EXR%M  BRTHEE Weighted

BREYE BREYE of options Number — BERH#EHE Price per average
Number Number granted during of options Number shareon  closing price
of options of options T{TfE the year ended exercised of options exercise (Mz£2)
outstanding  outstanding T B Rl 31/12/2005 during lapsed during of options (Note 2)
asat asat Dateof RPHE  Exercisable (M31) theyearended theyearended  (E% (%))  (E¥ (%))
01/01/2005 31/12/2005 grant  Vesting period period (Note 1) 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 (HKS) (HKS)
ARKE RIEHRRETE
Mr. Kong Dan Under the New Option Scheme
400,000 400,000 17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/11/2005 - - - - 3.540 -
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
400,000 400,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - - 3.775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
- 400,000 13/06/2005  13/06/2005 - 13/06/2007 - 400,000 - - 2.925 -
12/06/2007 12/06/2015
RFsmat REFEHERETE
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam  Under the Old Option Scheme
Doreen 1,000,000 - 17/08/1999 - 20/04/2000 - - 1,000,000 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
74,689 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - 74,689 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
R R B
Under the New Option Scheme
300,000 300,000 17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/11/2005 - - - - 3.540 -
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
300,000 300,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - - 3.775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
- 300,000 13/06/2005  13/06/2005 - 13/06/2007 - 300,000 - - 2.925 -
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Share Option Schemes (cont'd)

BE_ET1E
+ZR=t-Ht BE-TRIf
R-ERLE R-FTLE BEFH T-R=t-BLf BE-FFIE frfg mEEY
-f-8 +ZH=+-H BRENE EfffEl +-A=+-BL BRED K
i R ATREH) i R ATREH) Number — BREHE BRHY  BRATHER Weighted
EREYRE EREYRE of options Number — BER#EHE Price per average
Number Number granted during of options Number shareon  closing price
of options of options iTE the year ended exercised of options exercise (M2
outstanding  outstanding %P BH] fRRESE 31/12/2005 during lapsed during of options (Note 2)
asat asat Date of BPHHE  Exercisable (MaE1) theyearended theyearended — (H¥ (%)) (A% (T))
01/01/2005 31/12/2005  grant Vesting period period (Note 1) 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 (HKS) (HKS)
BX&x4E RIFERRETE
Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin ~ Under the Old Option Scheme
300,000 - 17/08/1999 - 311101999 - - 300,000 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
74,689 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - 74,689 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
RIGHERET 2
Under the New Option Scheme
200,000 200,000 17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/11/2005 - - - - 3.540 -
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
200,000 200,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - - 3.775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
- 200,000  13/06/2005  13/06/2005 - 13/06/2007 - 200,000 - - 2.925 -
12/06/2007 1210672015
BEREE R R R
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Under the New Option Scheme
Peter 40,000 40,000  17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/1172005 - - - - 3.540 -
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
40,000 40,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - - 3.775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
- 40,000  13/06/2005  13/06/2005 - 13/06/2007 - 40,000 - - 2.925 -
12/06/2007 12/06/2015

—ETREFEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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FE R HESTEl () Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
BE-T%5%
+-BZt+-HE BE-FFLf
R-BTLE N-FTLRE EEFH +-R=+-BL HE-FFIE fTfe mEFY
-§-B +ZR=t+-H RRENE Bl +=A=+-AL AR EY KR
R ATER R ITER Number — FERH#EHE E&¥E  BRITER Weighted
BREYE BREYE of options Number — BERH#EHE Price per average
Number Number granted during of options Number shareon  closing price
of options of options T{TfE the year ended exercised of options exercise (Mz£2)
outstanding  outstanding T B Rl 31/12/2005 during lapsed during of options (Note 2)
asat asat Dateof RPHE  Exercisable (M31) theyearended theyearended  (B% (%))  (E¥ (%))
01/01/2005 31/12/2005 grant  Vesting period period (Note 1) 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 (HKS) (HKS)
BRARE REFER T2
Mr. Chang Zhenming Under the New Option Scheme
400,000 - 17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/11/2005 - - - 400,000 3.540 -

16/11/2005 16/1172013

400,000 - 06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - 400,000 3775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014

IR8%LE REERRETE
Mr. Kong Siu Chee Under the Old Option Scheme
Kenneth 1,000,000 - 17/08/1999 - 18/05/2001 - - 1,000,000 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
74,689 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - 74,689 - 2.217 3.020
29/03/2005
IR R 8
Under the New Option Scheme
200,000 200,000  17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 171172005 - - - - 3.540 -
16/11/2005 30/06/2006
200,000 200,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 31/12/2005 - - - - 3.775 -

30112/2005 30/06/2006

- 200,000  13/06/2005  13/06/2005 - 31/12/2005 - 200,000 - - 2925 -
30/12/2005 30/06/2006
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Share Option Schemes (cont'd)

HE-TTIE
+ZAZ+-BL HE-FFLE

R-ZBFRE R-FFLE BRTH +-B=t-BLf BE-TTIE fTfe mEFY
-f-8 +ZH=+-H BRENE EfffEl +-A=+-BL BRED K
R ATER R ATER Number — BERH#EHE ERBN  BRTEE Weighted
EREYRE EREYRE of options Number  EERX#EHE Price per average
Number Number granted during of options Number shareon  closing price
of options of options iTE the year ended exercised of options exercise (M2
outstanding  outstanding  RF B Rl 31/12/2005 during lapsed during of options (Note 2)
asat asat Date of BPHHE  Exercisable (MaE1) theyearended theyearended — (HH¥ (%)) (A% (T))
01/01/2005 31/12/2005 grant  Vesting period period (Note 1) 31/12/2005 31/12/2005 (HKS) (HKS)
HibA&BA L@ REERRETE
Aggregate total of other  Under the Old Option Scheme
eligible persons 203 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - - 203 1.620 -
29/03/2005
600,000 - 17/08/1999 - 01/04/2000 - - 600,000 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
44,813 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - 44,813 - 2217 3.020
29/03/2005
500,000 - 28/03/2000 - 31/03/2000 - - 500,000 - 1758 3.025
29/03/2005
37,344 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - 37,344 - 1.758 3.025
29/03/2005
100,000 - 10/08/2000 - 11/08/2001 - - - 100,000 2.198 -
29/03/2005
4,203 - 28/02/2002 - 28/02/2002 - - - 4,203 2.198 -
29/03/2005
R R
Under the New Option Scheme
4,178,000 3,476,000  17/11/2003  17/11/2003 - 17/1172005 - - - 702,000 3.540 -
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
5,004,000 4,184,000  06/04/2004  06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - - 820,000 3.775 -
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
- 5,344,000  13/06/2005 13/06/2005 - 13/06/2007 - 5,660,000 - 316,000 2.925 -
12/06/2007 12/06/2015
16,072,630 16,424,000 6,800,000 3,706,224 2,742,406
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Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
Notes:

1. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company immediately
before 13 June 2005 on which the options were granted was HK$2.9.

2. This represents the weighted average closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2005, the Directors were not
aware of any person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associate(s)) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

1. Long positions in shares of the Company

BREREE &t

FELERYE

Number of

HEBRTRFENS X

Percentage of

Name of shareholders

Capacity

ordinary shares held

issued share capital

REPEEE QA
CITIC Group

PEZRRTROBRL A
China Construction Bank Corporation

BEm#EE A
Beneficial owner
BT 4% 1 00 5 B A 4 2

Interest of controlled corporations

BEmfEA A

Beneficial owner

1,789,048,220 56.01

11,678,770 0.37

168,599,268 5.27
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Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (conta)
2. Short positions in shares of the Company

None.

3. Long and short positions in (in respect of equity
derivatives) underlying shares of the Company
None.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption on the Company’s
Listed Securities

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2005. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Major Customers

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the total of interest income and other operating income
of the Group in the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at 31 December 2005,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Retirement Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme and a
mandatory provident fund scheme. Particulars of these retirement schemes
are set out in note 2(p)(iii) to the financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong
Siu, Mr. Gil-Tienda Rafael and Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul. The Company
considers all three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company to
be independent.

Auditors
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kong Dan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2006
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Auditors’ report to the shareholders of
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 83 to 222 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently, that judgements
and estimates are made which are prudent and reasonable and that the reasons
for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Opinion

\We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

81



BRBEHREE
Auditors’ Report

BR
KEAZBMZER S BHRRRABTERR
NEEERE_ZERFT_A=+—HEEQATZ
BEAR - RBEZRLEZEE2FRENERER
B UEERREEQAGIESEHE -

ESREMEBM
BEHEE AN

& —FEAE=ANA

82

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2005 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement
HE-ZTRAFTZA=T—HILFE UBERER)
for the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—ETRE —TTNF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
B 51 BETT BB T T
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
PSRN Interest income 4 3,007,372 2,241,410
MEXZH Interest expense (1,908,115) (767,953)
BRI BN Net interest income 1,099,257 1,473,457
ZHRE2BA Fee and commission income 5 439,662 461,307
EARMESIH Fee and commission expense (12,837) (26,880)
FERARMASKA Net fee and commission income 426,825 434,427
FERZZHWA Net trading income 6 343,466 177,944
FEARBBBRmIARMATEE  Netincome from financial instruments designated
ZEBRTAEMFRA at fair value through profit or loss 7 22,481 -
ek A Diis e Net hedging expense 8 (679) -
E b8 & A Other operating income 9 79,301 69,198
S PN Operating income 1,970,651 2,155,026
CERH Operating expenses 10 (1,094,688) (1,117,485)
N \ B 875,963 1,037,541
B kR E R B Impairment losses written back on loans
m# and advances 13(a) 57,544 -
RIZIREH Charge for bad and doubtful debts 13(b) = (78,065)
BEEDHIEERERE Impairment losses written back on
Bl . held-to-maturity investments 6,306 -
Al EE SR E R R ER Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities (7,817) -
8 2 B Ei iR & 45 Provision written back
(o] %é L on held-to-maturity investments - 9,682
W) 2R B 48 O Impairment losses written back on properties 32 1,517 -
PR EEEER Impairment losses on goodwill 33 - (9,502)
REBEDE (EHE) Impairment losses written back/(charged) 57,550 (77,885)
& E L Operating profit 933,513 959,656
HEKE AREE Loss on disposal of associates (6,352) -
& Bl & E 5 s A Net profit on disposal of fixed assets 240,222 11,862
BREMESEG RS Revaluation gain on investment properties 32 2,140 7,555
4 B 2 2 ) e ) L S 1B Share of profits less losses of associates 46,123 75,659
AEEBRERN Profit before taxation 1,215,646 1,054,732
| Income tax 14 (112,206) (151,177)
KEEFRF Profit for the year 1,103,440 903,555
AEBR Attributable to:
EANNETN ok Equity shareholders of the Company 15 1,103,395 903,925
LERREDR Minority interests 46 45 (370)
KEERT Profit for the year 1,103,440 903,555
FEEBRBREAATRE Dividends payable to equity shareholders
2R IR, of the Company attributable to the year: 16
AERDOTRRIKEAPHMRE  Interim dividend declared and paid during the year 361,358 210,759
HEERARBRBEIROKRAARKE Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date 191,872 239,636
553,230 450,395
BRER Earnings per share 17
H A Basic 34.511lll ¢ 28.321lll¢
e Diluted 32.38fll ¢ 25.771lli¢
FIEEFE 22BN BB REK —FH -
The notes on pages 90 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RITZTRF+ZA=+—H GBS RER)
at 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—ETRE — TN

2005 2004
(E#H)
(restated)
Bt 5 BETIT BT T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
&EE Assets
RERERTEEM S REE Cash and balances with banks and
EoFpE other financial institutions 19 1,161,309 1,488,919
ERITREM S mEE Placements with banks and
EOREF= other financial institutions 20 5,265,044 6,822,355
=CES B Trade bills 21 406,364 246,081
RHPRGEE Trading assets 22 6,473,029 -
EEABBEBREUREAT Securities designated at fair value
BENEF through profit or loss 23 1,139,908 -
HEMESFRE Other investment in securities 24 — 4,043,467
ERARRHMERIE Advances to customers and other accounts 25 44,108,183 43,323,300
A E B A Available-for-sale securities 27 5,945,960 -
BEEIEKE Held-to-maturity investments 28 17,194,283 23,930,181
BEFES Investment securities 29 — 39,841
B 22 N B HE Interest in associates 31 1,291,180 1,334,442
EBE Fixed assets 32
— A — Investment property 64,994 64,850
—HhWEKFRE — Other property and equipment 936,474 1,182,610
[k Goodwill 33 1,007,749 1,007,749
ELEBIEEE Deferred tax assets 38 42,201 93,562
EEAH Total assets 85,036,678 83,577,357
ExRkEHE Equity and liabilities
FERIT R EAth & R Deposits and balances of banks and
WERRET other financial institutions 34 4,157,446 3,555,852
BPE % Deposits from customers 35 54,415,279 55,451,727
REABBE Trading liabilities 36 661,137 -
BT RE Certificates of deposit issued 37 7,467,961 6,959,690
BEETEBES Debt securities issued 40 2,245,435 2,322,798
BT RKRES Convertible bonds issued 41 1,289,817 1,399,384
BT IE Current taxation 38 50,478 6,446
ELEBIESE Deferred tax liabilities 38 45,466 8
HpaE Other liabilities 895,455 1,283,553
BEBER Loan capital 47 4,352,351 4,275,896
BEAE Total liabilities 75,580,825 75,255,354
M Equity
fi% Share capital 44 3,197,859 3,194,153
k1 Reserves 45 6,257,458 5,127,850
E:Eﬁ** ATIREELR Total equity attributable to equity
Fk ] shareholders of the Company 9,455,317 8,322,003
LB RER Minority interests 46 536 -
HEREE Total equity 9,455,853 8,322,003
SR EEAE Total equity and liabilities 85,036,678 83,577,357

BEFEeR_ZEERFZANARETREREM
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2006

HEg PR T 2 W Eki& EER
Dou Jianzhong Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Lo Wing Yat Kelvin Wong Ho Sing Steve

EFRTTHARE EFHEERETTRAE EFHEERETTRAE LB AR E
Director and C.E.O. Managing Director and A.C.E.O. Managing Director and A.C.E.O. Group Chief Financial Officer

FOERF222EMNM BB RER —H
The notes on pages 90 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
RZZZERF+ZA=+—B CABEBAEMA)
at 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—ETRE — TN
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
Bt 5% BETIT BETIT BT BT T
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 32
—EmmERZE — Other property and equipment 55,565 57,823
WEBARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 30 6,245,247 6,239,934
6,300,812 6,297,757
RENEE Current assets
REABEEE Trading assets 22 93,707 -
EMmEHFEE Other investment in securities 24 = 86,074
EP#RREAM Advances to customers and
BRI8 other accounts 25 18,403 23,963
JE W FfY 28~ B R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 26 1,025,464 1,070,478
1,137,574 1,180,515
RENEE Current liabilities
HitngE Other liabilities 6,343 6,777
FE B B 2 A FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 39 1,396,145 1,399,608
1,402,488 1,406,385
FREEE Net current liabilities (264,914) (225,870)
WEERRE Total assets less
BEAE current liabilities 6,035,898 6,071,887
BEREE Capital and reserves
fig A Share capital 44 3,197,859 3,194,153
&% Reserves 45 2,838,039 2,877,734
MREDS Total equity 6,035,898 6,071,887
EEEgR_EERNF-ANBRETEBEEM
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2006
E@E PRET Z B BEKi& EiER
Dou Jianzhong Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Lo Wing Yat Kelvin Wong Ho Sing Steve
EFFTBAY EFRKEREFTHAE BERKEFREMLTHAHR EEYHAE
Director and C.E.O. Managing Director and A.C.E.O. Managing Director and A.C.E.O. Group Chief Financial Officer

FOEZF2NEMMEBYBRE—FH -
The notes on pages 90 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZERF+-_A=+—HALFENBERER)
for the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B¥Lf —EZEME
2005 2004
(EH)
(restated)
it BETR BETR BETT BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M1B1B#EHEE Total equity at 1 January:
AT E 5 - As previously reported:
- GBRARA - attributable to equity shareholders
BEER of the Company 8,310,355 7,811,770
- DEREER — minority interests 46 = 191
8,310,355 7,811,961
AEHURBEES Prior period adjustments arising
ORIt RS from changes in accounting policies 45 11,648 4,754
ER(TREANE As restated, before opening balance
ﬁ’-ﬁﬂ ¥) adjustments 8,322,003 7.816,715
EHBRERE Opening balance adjustments arising
E"J B *% from changes in accounting policies 45 638,816 -
R1ATE (BERTH At 1 January, after prior period and opening
RENEHAE) balance adjustments 8,960,819 7,816,715
R h E BRI Net income recognized directly
BRFRA in equity:
EHEZE Exchange differences on translation of:
~RIBERNST —financial statements of overseas
=) 2-ING| branches, subsidiaries and
R associates 45 3,371 283
-BREX ~ related borrowings 45 (329) -
-RUEHENE - on disposal of an associate 45 627 -
3,669 283
ERNREMMER Surplus on revaluation of other premises
REAMEREL upon reclassification to investment
BERERNRER properties, net of deferred tax 45 6,785 -
Re m%ﬁ i Cash flow hedge
NPBEZHHEUND - effective portion of changes in fair value 45 9,364 -
i: ERETE — transfer to deferred tax 45 (1,639) -
1,725 -
AFEENE Changes in fair value
— A EE - of available-for-sale securities 45 (59,442) -
—~BEREFIE ~ transfer to deferred tax 45 10,403 -
(49,039) -
PGB 1Al Share of associates
—AREERNRO RS — share option reserve 45 6,500 -
- ATEERE —fair value reserve 45 2,894 -
9,394 -
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2005 2004
(EH)
(restated)
Pl EETT BRI BETT BETFTL
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REFEFRA Net profit for the year:
10 7 & 45 As previously reported
- GBRARARE - attributable to equity shareholders of
B the Company 901,339
- LEERES — minority interests 46 (370)
900,969
BHBREEELEN Prior year adjustments arising from changes
LR in accounting policies 3(a) 2,586
KEEFHEN Net profit for the year
(2004 : E3R) (2004: as restated) 1,103,440 903,555
FEEBRIHWARZHEE Total recognized income and expense for
(2004 : ER) the year (2004: as restated) 1,081,974 903,838
GER: Attributable to:
~ARAIRRER - equity shareholders of the Company 1,081,929 904,208
- LERRES — minority interests 45 (370)
1,081,974 903,838
FEECRERE Dividends paid during the year 16() (601,197) (411,897
REEBREHHEMBAS  Minority interests attributable to subsidiaries
MEEN L HRFELR acquired/disposed during the year 491 179
ETEARIMEL Movements in equity arising from capital
BERES : transactions:
RERETERTHRG Shares issued under share option scheme 44(3) 3,706 4318
B GmFRE Net share premium received 45 4,264 4,542
DARR (B 5 89 MR 19 R Equity settled share-based transactions,
B8 (2004 : EHR) net of tax (2004: as restated) 45 5,796 4,308
13,766 13,168
R12B 3B R EH Total equity at 31 December 9,455,853 8,322,003
FIEEFE 22BN BB HRER D -
The notes on pages 90 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE-ZTRAFTZA=T—HILFE UBERER)
for the year ended 31 December 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“ETHRE _—_TENF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETRT BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IR SR B i Profit for the year before taxation 1,215,646 1,054,732
FRIEAE A Adjustments for non-cash items:
RBREE Charge for bad and doubtful debts - 78,065
L& OVEL 00! Impairment losses written back on loans and advances (57,544) -
BT B & 2 )% Share of profits less losses on associates (46,123) (75,659)
REYESH Revaluation gain on investment properties (2,140) (7,555)
HEBRTEEES Net profit on disposal of fixed assets (240,222) (11,862)
HEEHHK Impairment losses written back on held-to-maturity
[] 3% investments (6,306) -
HHEEI A Provision written back on held-to-maturity securities - (9,682)
YR ERE Impairment loss written back on properties (1,517) -
At EE 5 Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities 7,817 -
LA P 12 (B £+t Share-based payment 5,796 4,308
IR RE 37 B N Amortization of deferred expenses 94,260 101,485
EBITERESNIT RSN Amortization of discount on debt securities issued = (284)
BRRESF S I H Interest expenses on convertible bonds 37,731 3,495
BVEEEENE Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 112,837 146,399
BEEZEFHRBWA Dividend income from equity investment securities (25,717) (10,777)
BEBEAFEZ N Interest expenses on loan capital 355,262 355,877
LERE R AEIE Loss on disposal of associates 6,352 -
i & B B A Rl A Profit on disposal of a subsidiary = (865)
g 3 Amortization of goodwill - 60,336
BEREHE Impairment loss on goodwill - 9,502
EHE Foreign exchange differences (16,112) 7,937
1,440,020 1,705,452
FEEE () IiEL (Increase)/decrease in operating assets*
JRE| A H A3 A K IR1T Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Ko E i Bl RS 1T 0 with original maturity beyond three months (305,511) 82,153
[REHA B B E3ME B & Treasury bills with original maturity beyond
B % three months 299,355 (398,823)
JREHA B 2R 3(E B 7 Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
HENGFERE beyond three months 776,453 692,785
RHREEE Trading assets (2,677,493) -
BT ABRBER KRR Securities designated at fair value through
NEEENE S profit or loss (70,110) -
HmERKRE Other investments in securities = (1,455,248)
BEP BRI NEMESB#ERI - Advances to customers, banks and other financial
B5EBREMKRIE institutions, trade bills and other accounts (485,294) (2,270,500)
FAEZIMEE Held-to-maturity investments (494,513) 168,884
REEBS Investment securities - 142
A EES Available-for-sale securities 242,570 -
SEEREM GRD)* Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities*
RIT R E A& B A Deposits and balances of banks and other
TEREER financial institutions 601,594 69,773
BEEX Deposits from customers (1,036,448) (1,395,879)
RHEBBAE Trading liabilities 661,137 -
BETTERE Certificates of deposit issued 502,577 2,248,515
EERTEKES Debt securities issued (65,515) -
HthEfE Other liabilities (810,308) (85,208)
AREEEBZHEFR NET CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (1,421,486) (637,954)
HiE Income tax
EREBMEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (113,585) (115,782)
BARE N Overseas profits tax paid (1,034) (1,568)
RAREEEBZHEFH NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,536,105) (755,304)
# @ BUHEHNEHDODEZE EERFE— A # The changes in these balances are quantified after taking into account
— BELE W E I & 5 TR o RestH the opening balance adjustments made at 1 January 2005. The opening
o P A ) ) A S A B AT R3S AL o balance adjustments result from the changes in accounting policies is
described in note 3.
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—ETRE — TN
2005 2004
(E#H)
(restated)
B 3% BETIT BET T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BREXEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BERBEEERS Dividends received from equity investment securities 25,717 10,777
BABRTEE Purchase of fixed assets (53,934) (64,003)
& B E B EFSRUE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 439,065 241,875
BB = A A AT K8 Proceeds from disposal of associates 35,524 -
FIGEL S N AT Increase in shareholding in an associate — (500,000)
CWAEWN 3 /NE] Capital injection into an associate - (250,000)
& BT B A B IR @ 0F i Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary 52(b) - (8,872)
LN /NS Purchase of an associate (39) -
KE/(AR)BEEBZ NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
RLiBE INVESTING ACTIVITIES 446,333 (570,223)
B B FINANCING ACTIVITIES
T EBRRE Ordinary dividends paid (601,197) (411,897)
TR BmRESFE Interest paid on convertible bonds (3,499) (3,505)
YEFEAFE Interest paid on loan capital (355,733) (355,602)
B & H P15 5E Proceeds from debt securities — 2,323,082
BEITRM TS RIE Proceeds from shares issued 7,970 8,860
(AR)IREMEXHZ NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
R&FHE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (952,459) 1,560,938
He&RFE&%E{EEH NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
GRA) 188 miEEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,042,231) 235,411
R1A1BMRERIAELSEIERH  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 8,054,509 7,819,098
R12A3MBWIRE RIS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
%{HIEH AT 31 DECEMBER 48 6,012,278 8,054,509
CEEREELWIFLFRESRIE . Cash flows from operating activities include:
B U F 8 Interest received 3,102,761 3,072,324
2R F A Interest paid (2,027,636) (1,549,720)

FEEZF2NEMMTBEMBHRR—HH -
The notes on pages 90 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes on the Financial Statements
(BRHERIFIBRIN AT B A BB 15T)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

90

FEEE
RIEERSRERERAR (TARFL) REM
BrE ([AEE])mEEEBRREM|ERITRAA
BMEBRE  GELEBHAEENEEREE
REBAREARE -

FEEBR

HHIEH
BUFBRKRTDRIBEB SIS RMA A
BERZCERMBREER) (BEMAEEA
BEHEASEMLER 2 BRCEET B RS
R - (FAGHEID RREBZAE) BB
AR RUREB(R RGO OREFRM
B BEBMBHREROTAEEBEZIMER
REFLETRADBERFERE - NEEK
AmTEefBRMRmT -

BEGFHE A S R BIEIIE R REITNCE
BMBHRELER)  TR_FTRF—H—R
o 2 1& B 1A 2 & AT BARE B M ok FT L ER AT ER AN
MR EELUBREANZREE REMELH
BREETNCEEM B REER) M I BAE
AHREBES R R HRERE 2 8N
FEFFRE3TR M -

BRTUTEERBBEUQXTEEIIEKN - HE
TR RBABLNAVERFTEBER - B
BEHEIR TSR

- DHERXHAE  EEABBAZNRBR
AYEERAHHENERTAE (28
HIE2(0)) 5 B

— BREWE (ZHME2) -

(a)

(b)

Principal Activities

The principal activities of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which materially
affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the Group, are
the provision of banking and related financial services.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”), and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are
effective or available for early adoption for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. Information on the changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these new and revised HKFRSs
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements is provided in note 3.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(g)(ii)); and

- investment property (see note 2(j)).

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b)

(9]

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (cont'd)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 61.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognized in the income statement as follows:

(i) Interest income
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except
those classified as held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss, is recognized as interest income in the
income statement using the effective interest method.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(c) Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Interest income (cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in the
present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all gains
and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued coupon) of
such financial assets and financial liabilities, together with interest
income and expense and dividend income attributable to those
financial instruments.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognized when the corresponding
service is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the
costs of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer,
or is interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognized as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is

incurred or accounted for as interest income.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(c) Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognized as interest income over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of return, on the outstanding net investment in the leases for
each accounting period.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognized as
other operating income in equal installments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognized in
the income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.

Dividend income is recognized as follows:

- dividend income from listed investments is recognized when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend;
and

- dividend income from unlisted investments is recognized
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

(d) Subsidiaries and controlled entities
A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

is a company in which the Group, directly or indirectly, holds more than

half of the issued share capital or controls more than half of the voting

power or controls the composition of the board of directors. Subsidiaries

are considered to be controlled if the Company has the power, directly

or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so as to

obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is consolidated into the

consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences

until the date that control ceases.
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(d)

(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Subsidiaries and controlled entities (contd)

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that are not
owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, are presented in the consolidated balance sheet and
statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the net profit or loss
for the year between minority interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interests
in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable
to the minority, are charged against the Group’s interest except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to,
make additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the

Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group or the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the associate’s net assets. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates for the year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognized for the
year (see notes 2(f) and (n)).
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(e)

()

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Associates (cont'd)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
For these purposes, the Group’s interest in the associate accounted for
under equity method is the carrying amount of the investment under
equity method together with the Group’s other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate, except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination or
an investment in an associate over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwiill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)). In respect of an associate, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest in

the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of acquirer’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, or an associate during the year,

any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(g) Financial instruments

(i)

(ir)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which the
assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories
are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and
other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price, plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is
recognized using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities are recorded.

Categorization

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting (note 2(i))
are accounted for as trading instruments.

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or
loss primarily consist of securities with embedded derivatives where
the characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not
closely related to the host contracts.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(g) Financial instruments (cont'd)

(ir)

Categorization (cont’d)

Fair value through profit or loss (cont’d)

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
other than (a) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or
in the near term, which will be classified as held for trading;
(b) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates at
fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (c) those
where the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment, other than because of credit deterioration, which will
be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly
comprise loans and advances to customer and placements with
banks and financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see note

2(n)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where
the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity,
other than those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using

the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(n)).
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(ii)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(g9) Financial instruments (cont’d)

Categorization (cont’d)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of
the other three categories above. They include financial assets
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are carried

at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(n)).

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
are recognized directly in the fair value reserve, except for foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt

securities which are recognized in the income statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments in the equity are treated as
gains or losses on disposal.

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortized cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity
of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognized and included in shareholders’

equity.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(g) Financial instruments (cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction
for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at
current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current

asking prices.

If a traded price or a quoted market price for exchange traded
financial instrument is not available on a recognized stock
exchange or a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instrument is not available, or if the market for a financial
instrument is not active, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using valuation techniques that provides a reasonable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management's best estimates and the
discount rate used is a market rate at the balance sheet date
applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions.
Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market
data at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle

liability simultaneously.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

(g9) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(vi)  Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined) instrument is
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized
in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for

financial instruments.

(h) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

0}

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase these
securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase agreements)
are retained in the financial statements and measured in accordance
with their original measurement principles. The proceeds from the sale
are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortized cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as
receivables and are carried in the balance sheet at amortized cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest incurred
on repurchase agreements are recognized as interest income and interest
expense respectively, over the life of each agreement using the effective
interest method.

Hedging

Hedge accounting recognizes the offsetting effects on profit or loss of
changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and the hedged
item. The Group assesses and documents whether the financial
instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items
attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting
when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Hedging (cont’d)

0)

(i)

(ir)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair value
of recognized asset or liability that will give rise to a gain or loss
being recognized in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognized in the income statement. The carrying amount
of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument attributable to the risk being
hedged. This adjustment is recognized in the income statement
to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument.

Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognized asset or liability, or
a highly probable forecast transaction, or the foreign currency
risk of a committed future transaction, the effective part of any
gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument in relation to
the hedged risk is recognized directly in equity. The ineffective
part of any gain or loss is recognized immediately in the income
statement.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gains or losses that were recognized directly in equity are
reclassified in the income statement in the same period or periods
during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects
the income statement. If the hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the associated cumulative gain or loss is
removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other

carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

For cash flow hedges of a recognized asset or liability, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and
recognized in the income statement in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect the profit.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Hedging (cont'd)

0}

(ir)

(iif)

Cash flow hedge (cont’d)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
and is recognized in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected
to take place, the cumulative unrealized gain or loss recognized

in equity is recognized immediately in the income statement.

Hedge effectiveness testing

The Group expects the hedge to be highly effective (prospective
effectiveness) at the inception of the hedge and throughout its
life in order to qualify for hedge accounting. Actual effectiveness
(retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be demonstrated on an

ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend

on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilizes the cumulative
dollar offset method as effectiveness testing methodologies. For
cash flow hedge relationships, the Group utilizes the cumulative
dollar offset method using the hypothetical derivative approach.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in
fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the
period for which the hedge is designated. For actual effectiveness,
the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset each other in
the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be deemed effective.
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()

(k)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned and/or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognized in the
income statement. Rental income from investment property is accounted

for as described in accounting policy 2(c)(iv).

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken of
the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
issued by the HKICPA, with effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial

"Property, plant and equipment”,

statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the balance sheet date.

The following items of property and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any (see note 2(n)) :

- held under operating leases and buildings thereon, where the
fair value of the leasehold interest in the land and buildings cannot
be measured separately at the inception of the lease and the
building is not clearly held under an operating lease (see note
2(1)).

- items of equipment.
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0]

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Other property and equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property and equipment using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated.

- buildings — over 30 years or the unexpired terms of the land
leases, whichever is the shorter.

- furniture, fixtures and equipment — 3 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognized in the income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits.

Leases and hire purchase contracts

(i) Classification of leased assets
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Leases and hire purchase contracts (cont'd)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Assets held under finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in the
balance sheet as loans and advances to customers. Hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases are accounted
for in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(n).

Assets held for use in operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the
assets are included in the balance sheet according to their nature
and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Group's depreciation policies, as set out in note 2(k). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(n).

Revenue arising from operating leases is recognized in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as set out in note
2(c)(iv).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to income statement
in equal installments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognized in income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

(m) Repossessed assets
In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take

repossession of the assets held as collateral through court proceedings

or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is intended
to achieve an orderly realisation and the Group is no longer seeking

repayment from the borrower, repossessed assets are reported in “other

assets”.

Repossessed assets are recognized at the lower of the amount of the
related loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of

exchange. They are not depreciated or amortized.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent

remeasurement are recognized in the income statement.
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(n)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Impairment of assets
The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance

sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment. If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced

to the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income

statement.

(i)

Loans and receivables

Impairment losses of loans and receivables are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. Receivables with a short duration
are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two components:
individual impairment allowances, and collective impairment
allowances.

The Group first assess whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon management’s
best estimate of the present value of the cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original effective interest
rate. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realizable value of any underlying collateral or guarantees in favor
of the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Impairment of assets (cont'd)

(n)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both to
define the way the Group models inherent losses and to determine
the required input parameters, based on historical experience and

current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash flows
for individually assessed impairment allowances and the model
assumptions and parameters used in determining collective
impairment allowances. While this necessarily involves judgement,
the Group believes that the impairment allowances on loans and
advances to customers are reasonable and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Held-to-maturity investments

For held-to-maturity investments, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets) on an
individual basis.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement. A
reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized in prior years.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(n)

(iif)

(iv)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial
asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized
directly in equity is removed from equity and is recognized in the
income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognized in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortization) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognized in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market

rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Impairment losses recognized in the income statement in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the
income statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognized directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized. Reversals of impairment losses in such

circumstances are recognized in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

- investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



2. FEGHBER @
(n) BERME®

Eofh & E ()

(iv)

FFERKREHR

BEA WO EER LS FRENLER
EMETzERS%E - ErMEERE
B gRA-—EERTSFGEY
) B R B AR S 0 52 Y LB Y
FHEGEFARREREFTER
RE - BEREERERI DB
REBEEELRSRER - K7
WESBBURRN A B EE RS
RENRNEERS BI—ERSE
EEM) -

MR EE R

BEEENREEGEMENE S
EEBEM) SR E RO SRR - 2
FEWERNERBEEE - 3L
TEEBMERNREEEBL DR
R AMEM DB =R S A E B (X
BARN) WEENEREE - AR
Lo R > BT (BB AL A BI)) A E A
EENERHRE MEEREETS
BAOEEREERNXTFEERLE
AL RE(MAEE) -

B S 1R [

BEEN MREMAREENEE
) AT W [0 ERE ) (R ER A B
AR EEE S RO - BENREE
R T E e

TR (B 5 18 [ 98 SRR A A0 B B 1R
AEGFHERANEENEERAE
V(B S 18 12 488 7E 3% [0 B R T R A B
Ert ABERA -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
Impairment of assets (cont'd)

(n)

(iv)  Other assets (cont’d)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favorable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An

impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the income statement
in the year in which the reversals are recognized.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)

(o) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition.

(p) Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

Employee share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognized
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the trinomial lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to those share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to the
income statement for the year of the review unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares.

The equity amount is recognized in equity until either the option

is exercised (when it is transferred to share premium) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(p) Employee benefits (cont'd)

(ir)

(iif)

Share-based payments (cont’d)

Employee Equity Linked Deferred Award Scheme (“ELDA")

Awards are granted to employees of the Group under ELDA. The
fair value of the amount payable to the employee is recognized
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in liabilities.
The fair value is initially measured at grant date and spread over
the period during which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to payment. The fair value of the award is measured
based on the maximum payment of HK$3.00 per share. The
liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and at settlement
date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized

in the income statement.

Staff retirement scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall due.

(q) Income tax

0

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case they are recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilized, are recognized.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (contd)
(q) Income tax (cont'd)
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Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available. Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognized.
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2.
(a)

(r)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Income tax (cont'd)

(iv)  Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only
if, the Group or the Company has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or
the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realize the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the

income statement.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains and
losses on investments and net gain/(loss) on derivatives, respectively.
All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented
separately in the income statement.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the average exchange rates for the year; balance sheet items are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in

reserves.
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(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Translation of foreign currencies (cont'd)

On disposal of a foreign enterprise, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognized in reserves which relate to that foreign
operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to
be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in
making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their
close family members) or other entities and include entities which are
under the significant influence of related parties of the Group where
those parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which
are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged
either in providing products or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.
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(u)

(a)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Segment reporting (cont'd)

The Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between Group entities within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period
to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise the bank premises and any items
which cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.

The accounting policies of the Group and the Company after the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs have been summarized in
note 2. The following sets out information on the significant changes
in accounting policies for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 62).

Restatement of prior periods and opening balances

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been made in
accordance with the transitional provisions of the respective HKFRSs to
each of the line items in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated balance sheet and the Company’s balance sheet and other
significant related disclosure items as previously reported for the year
ended 31 December 2004. The effects of the changes in accounting
policies on the balances at 1 January 2004 and 2005 are disclosed in
note 45.
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3. EETBRHEE » 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(a) MIEAREAMGERE R (&) (a) Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (cont'd)

HEeMBERENZE
BE_TTNF+-_A=+—HILEED

Effect on the consolidated financial statements
Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended

FEWER 31 December 2004
MEMBRIEE
(REE@ME M/ GHLD))
Effect of new policy (increase/
(decrease) in profit for the year)
—EENE (FEGHEN (FEGERN
2004 55 2850k 1% 305% —ETNE
(d0 w7 EER) (P aE3(d)) (G EETD) 2004
(as previously HKAS 28 HKAS 1 & 30 (E#)
reported) (note 3(d)) (note 3(i)) (as restated)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B WA Interest income 2,241,410 - - 2,241,410
FEZH Interest expense (767,953) - - (767,953)
FHB WA Net interest income 1,473,457 - - 1,473,457
EHEES WA Fee and commission income 461,307 - - 461,307
B2AERMEETH Fee and commission expense (26,880) - - (26,880)
FERARASKA Net fee and commission income 434,427 - - 434,427
FRZ WA Net trading income - - 177,944 177,944
H i 48 YA Other operating income 248,551 (1,409) (177,944) 69,198
FEEWAN Operating income 2,156,435 (1,409) - 2,155,026
EEXH Operating expenses (1,117,485) - - (1,117,485)
1,038,950 (1,409) - 1,037,541
REBEREH Charge for bad and doubtful debts (78,065) - - (78,065)
BEEIHES Provision written back on
ZE 5 o] #¢ held-to-maturity investments 9,682 - - 9,682
Pﬁ%ﬂfﬁ@ﬂ Impairment losses on goodwill (9,502) - - (9,502)
DERIEE o Impairment losses (77,885) - - (77,885)
AR Operating profit 961,065 (1,409) - 959,656
HE B E & EF A Net profit on disposal of fixed assets 11,862 - - 11,862
KEMESH MR Revaluation gain on investment properties 7,555 - - 7,555
BT 46 Bt %2 2 R0 A Share of profits less losses of
R E 1B associates 75,978 4,287 (4,606) 75,659
7 4F B2 B B its ) Profit before taxation 1,056,460 2,878 (4,606) 1,054,732
HIE Income tax (155,491) (292) 4,606 (151,177)
AEERRN Profit for the year 900,969 2,586 - 903,555
TIEB Attributable to:
AN AR RS Equity shareholders of the Company 901,339 2,586 - 903,925
DAL R M Minority interests (370) - - (370)
AEERN Profit for the year 900,969 2,586 - 903,555
sEREH Earnings per share
-3 Basic 28.241lli¢ 0.08flli ¢ - 28.32flli¢
g Diluted 25.701l¢ 0.07flli¢ - 25.771li¢
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3. BRBIRHEE ») 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

(a) HIHIREAMERER &) (a) Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (cont'd)
e HEn T E (8) Effect on the consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
R-ETNEFE+-_A=+—HHEEEE Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2004
BER

HEABFNYE (EELEREFEHEEMW/ BL))
Effect of new policy (increase/(decrease)
in total assets and total liabilities)

“TTOE (BEEMHEL) (BEEHER) (BEEHER)

2004 525% 5285k SE1R305% —FENE
(INBUEESR) (BiaE3(e) (BEE3(d))  (B&E3() 2004
(as previously HKFRS2  HKAS 28 HKAS 1 &30 st (E$#)

reported) (note 3(e)) (note 3(d)) (note3(i)) Sub-total (as restated)
EETRT #BETR BT #E%TR #E%Tr #E%Txn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
e REHES Cash and short-term funds 8,345,790 - - (6,856,871) (6,856,871) 1,488,919
—1{E B2 28R 1T Placements with banks and

HEih e migETmR other financial institutions 364,307 - - 6,458,048 6,458,048 6,822,355
Z5RIR Trade bills 246,081 - - - - 246,081
RAENFRE Certificates of deposit held 1,366,315 - - (1,366,315) (1,366,315) -
HibhFEHIEE Other investments in securities 3,968,263 - (14,745) 89,949 75,204 4,043,467
BEARK Advances to customers and

H b ARIA other accounts 43,323,300 - - - — 43,323,300
BERIHEE Held-to-maturity investments 22,254,992 - - 1675189 1,675,189 23,930,181
KEEFH Investment securities 39,841 - - - - 39,841
FRR/NCIE Interest in associates 1,312,357 - 22,085 - 22,085 1,334,442
[EES Goodwill 1,007,749 - - - - 1,007,749
EEE Fixed assets 1,247,460 - - - - 1,247,460
BEERBEE Deferred tax assets 93,562 - - - - 93,562
EEMBE Total assets 83,570,017 - 7,340 - 7,340 83,577,357
EaREE Equity and liabilities
RITRHEMESR#ER  Deposits and balances of banks

FERRER and other financial institutions 3,555,852 - - - - 3,555,852
BEER Deposits from customers 55,451,727 - - - - 55,451,727
BBITFERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,959,690 - - - - 6,959,690
BETERKES Debt securities issued 2,322,798 - - - - 2,322,798
BETUBREKES Convertible bonds issued 1,399,384 - - - - 1,399,384
RITHIE Current taxation 6,446 - - - - 6,446
EEFIBAGE Deferred tax liabilities 8 - - - - 8
HEma’ Other liabilities 1,287,861 (4,308) - - (4,308) 1,283,553
BEBER Loan capital 4,275,896 - - - - 4,275,896
BfEEE Total liabilities 75,259,662 (4,308) - - (4,308) 75,255,354
R Equity
& 7 Share capital 3,194,153 - - - - 3,194,153
s Reserves 5,116,202 4,308 7,340 - 11,648 5,127,850
HEBRAATRE Total equity attributable to equity

£ shareholders of the Company 8,310,355 4,308 7,340 - 11,648 8,322,003

DEBEEEDS Minority interests - - - - - -
R Total equity 8,310,355 4,308 7,340 - 11,648 8,322,003
BEREHEEE Total equity and liabilities 83,570,017 - 7,340 - 7,340 83,577,357

—“TTREER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005 117



PR M

Notes on the Financial Statements

3. EETBRHEE » 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(a) MIEAREAMGERE R (&) (a) Restatement of prior periods and opening balances (cont'd)

HARREERBERNTE
RoETAFE+-_A=+—HMEEERER

Effect on the Company'’s balance sheet
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2004

MEITBRNRE
(BEHRERBRES
/G ))

Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease)
in total assets

and liabilities)
—TTNE (FREMBRG
2004 I sE25% —ETWmE
(dnAIELR) (Bt sk 3(e)) 2004
(as previously HKFRS 2 (E#)
reported) (note 3(e)) (as restated)
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
TEE Fixed assets
— B R — Other property and equipment 57,823 - 57,823
WERRIEE Investments in subsidiaries 6,236,222 3,712 6,239,934
6,294,045 3,712 6,297,757
REEE Current assets
EMESFKRE Other investments in securities 86,074 - 86,074
ERARRHEMERIE Advances to customers and other accounts 23,963 - 23,963
& WL B /B A B FR AR Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,070,478 - 1,070,478
1,180,515 - 1,180,515
REBER Current liabilities
HipB & Other liabilities 6,777 - 6,777
JE 11 Bt /B8 X R R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,399,608 - 1,399,608
1,406,385 - 1,406,385
FRBERE Net current liabilities (225,870) - (225,870)
BERRSERER Total assets less current liabilities 6,068,175 3,712 6,071,887
BERGEE Capital and reserves
R Share capital 3,194,153 - 3,194,153
& Reserves 2,874,022 3,712 2,877,734
HEREE Total equity 6,068,175 3,712 6,071,887
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BHBRNEE o)
BB REEFHAHRMGETRE (b)

\

FEEBRIEMET BT - TRIRBRAE

MEFBRRERFEDE A

rEEE

—EERFE A=+ —HIEEENEA KRS
R REAEEABRRARREERBRYSE

—IHA &

BN E 30k

SIREMER L WA S -

HEE-_STAET-A=+—-HLEEHN

Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on the
current year

The following tables provide estimates of the extent to which each of
the line items in the consolidated income statement, consolidated
balance sheet and the Company’s balance sheet for the year ended
31 December 2005 is higher or lower than it would have been had the
previous policies still been applied in the year, where it is practicable to
make such estimates.

Effect on the consolidated financial statements
Estimated effect on the Consolidated Income Statement for the

GEWBRMEIRE year ended 31 December 2005
HMETBRNE
(EEERFIEM/ GRED))
Effect of new policy (increase/
(decrease) in profit for the year)
(BEEMBRE (FEMBRE (FHZHEL)
#ERI) 5525% #EHI) 55355 £5320% 3955 *
(Pt &£ 3(e)) (B 5% 3(F) (P&EE3(c))
HKFRS 2 HKFRS3  HKAS 32 &39* “E
(note 3(e)) (note 3(f)) (note 3(c)) Total
EBETT EBETT BETRT BETRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEMA Interest income - - (186,677) (186,677)
FEXZH Interest expense - - 80,564 80,564
FHERA Net interest income = = (106,113) (106,113)
FERARBSRKA Net fee and commission income - - 10,161 10,161
FRZZ WA Net trading income = = 64,524 64,524
BEABBEZIN Net income from financial
RERAFEE instruments designated at fair
8 F A value through profit or loss - - 52,447 52,447
FER Net hedging expense - = (679) (679)
BN Operating income = = 20,340 20,340
LEZH Operating expenses (2,699) 59,280 = 56,581
X EEB AR Profit before taxation (2,699) 59,280 20,340 76,921

*RoEERFT A=+ —HL - #M
ERBHZMEN BB BRENRR
REMEME - DARAREZEBE
EREBREMELENBEMEE -

(BEAGTEADE2FNTENWTEX -
T8 8 A B as %tﬁiﬁ

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

* |n respect of the year ended 31 December 2005, it is not practicable
to estimate the extent to which the profit for the year would have
been higher or lower had the previous policy on impairment of
financial assets still been applied.

The effect of HKAS 28 is not material and not estimated in the above
income statement.
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3. ﬁéfﬁ%ﬂ’]%ﬁ (%) 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(b) B BREFTHAYENKARE (&) (b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on the
current year (cont’d)

e HEn T E (8) Effect on the consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
HR-_FTAF+=-A=+—H® Estimated effect on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
GeSEABARNMGTRE 31 December 2005

HEBRNEE (BEESA
REEEEEM GRY))
Effect of new policy(increase/(decrease)
in total assets and total liabilities)
(BB
i & 2 Al
HEIHRR
(E#EIHE (FEE (FEIG:t (EFEEst
AN 2EHISE365%) 28Iy ZAI)
25k (PHEE3() HE32K%39%%* 554057
(PFi#aE3(e)) HKFRS 3& (BfizE3(c)) (BfizE3(g))
HKFRS 2 HKAS 36 HKAS 32 &39*  HKAS 40 e
(note 3(e)) (note 3(f)) (note 3(c)) (note 3(g)) Total
EBETT BT BTt #B%FTr EETXT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RERBEE Trading assets - - 4,300,413 - 4,300,413
EE RBiRIE & AR Securities designated at fair

NEBENES value through profit or loss - - 1,042,277 - 1,042,277
EMESRE Other investments in securities — - (3,953,518) - (3,953,518)
BERPERK Advances to customers and

H i BRIE other accounts = = (211,560) = (211,560)
Al & E S Available-for-sale securities - - 6,017,754 - 6,017,754
BFHEEIHEE Held-to-maturity investments — - (6,309,110) - (6,309,110)
HEES Investment securities - - (39,841) - (39,841)
B 8 N B HE 2R Interest in associates — — 4,271) — (4,271)
EEE Fixed assets

— A — Investment property — = = 7,939 7,939
B Goodwill - 59,280 - - 59,280
gy Total - 59,280 842,144 7,939 909,363
ERkaE Equity and liabilities
RPAEEE Trading liabilities - - 845,863 = 845,863
EEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued - - (153,530) - (153,530)
BEBITEBES Debt securities issued - - (73,520) = (73,520)
BEITABREES Convertible bonds issued — — (106,105) — (106,105)
RITHIIE Current taxation - - 38,291 - 38,291
REFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities — — 67,788 1,154 68,942
EmaE Other liabilities (7,404) - (230,269) - (237,673)
BEER Loan capital = = 87,033 = 87,033
g Total (7,404) - 475,551 1,154 469,301
] Equity
k1 Reserves 7,404 9,280 366,593 6,785 440,062
BERAATKRE Total equity attributable to

FE equity shareholders of
the Company 7,404 59,280 366,593 6,785 440,062
Fok] Total - 59,280 842,144 7,939 909,363
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(b)

Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on the

current year (cont’d)

* In respect of the year ended 31 December 2005, it is not practicable
to estimate the extent to which the net assets would have been higher
or lower had the previous policy on impairment of financial assets
still been applied.

The effect of HKAS 28 is not material and not estimated in the above
balance sheet.

Estimated effect on net income recognized diirectly in consolidated equity
for the year ended 31 December 2005

MEBRHTE
(RRER#EZR M/ CGRYL))
Effect of new policy
(|ncrease/(decrease) in eqUIty)

(EEE EEst
Al $ Ally
5532 % 3955k 254057
(P &E3(c)) (P &£ 3(g))
HKAS 32 & 39 HKAS 40 e
(note 3(c)) (note 3(g)) Total
BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEERARAR Attributable to equity shareholders
T of the Company (41,314) 6,785 (34,529)
DHIRRE R Minority interests = = -
] Total equity (41,314) 6,785 (34,529)

Estimated effect on amounts recognized as capital transactions with

AR ﬂﬁ)’zﬁg Z’SX 525?&55’\]1%57‘%%5 owners of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005:
MBS BRNY S
(HELR I/ R L))
Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in equity)
(E RS E A
55 25% (P &£ 3(e))
HKFRS 2 (note 3(e))
T
HK$'000
HBEBRARAREER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 5,796
DEIR R S Minority interests =
e R Total equity 5,796
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3. ﬁéfiﬁ%ﬂ’]%ﬁ (%) 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(b) B BREFTHAYENKARE (&) (b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on the
current year (cont’d)
HARNREEABXRNZE Effect on the Company’s balance sheet
HR-_FEEEFE+-A=+—HMEALT Estimated effect on the Company’s Balance Sheet
EEBBRRNGHRE as at 31 December 2005
ME BRI E
(BEMERER
LmEEE I GRED))

Effect of new policy (increase/
(decrease) in total assets
and total liabilities)

(& B TS 3R & 2 AI) 55 25%
(Pt EE3(e)) “st
HKFRS 2 Total
(note 3(e))
BETR EETR
HK$'000 HK$'000
RHBEE Current assets
BARIEE Investments in subsidiaries (5.313) (5,313)
WE Total (5.313) (5.313)
B2 RHE Captial and reserves
] Reserves 5,313 5,313
W Total 5,313 5,313
R-TETZRE+-A=+—H HEEETHG There is no estimated effect on net income recognized directly in the Company'’s
SR A BERANATEARNL ESE - equity for the year ended 31 December 2005.
HEr " FFERFT A=+ HILFEER Estimated effect on amounts recognized as capital transactions with owners
AR RN AR RT3 2 5B a (F 5558 of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005
wE
HEH BN S
(2 0/ (D) )
Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease)
in equity)
(EEM RS EA) HE 258
(P zE3(e))
HKFRS 2
(note 3(e))
BT
HK$'000
EERARARRER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 5,796
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(9]

Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)
Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement)
With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 32, the
Group has provided additional disclosures of terms, conditions,

accounting policies, risk and fair values of financial instruments

throughout the notes to the financial statements and the specific notes
55 and 56. In order to comply with HKAS 39, the Group has changed
its accounting policies relating to financial instruments to those set out

in notes 2(g) to

(i), (©), (n) and (g). Further details of the changes are as

follows:

(i)

(ir)

Financial instruments (see note 2(g))

In prior years, all financial assets were carried at cost or amortized
cost net of impairment provisions for diminution in value, except
for other investments (under Benchmark treatment of Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP") 24) which were held at
fair value. Gains and losses from change in fair value were
recognized in the income statement in respect of other
investments. Provisions were recognized as an expense in the
income statement and written back to income statement when
circumstances and events that led to the write-down cease to

exist.

In prior years, all financial liabilities except for trading securities
short positions were carried at cost or amortized cost. Trading
securities short positions were carried at fair value and any changes
in fair value were recognized through the income statement.

With effect from 1 January 2005, and in accordance with HKAS
39, financial instruments are recognized according to the following
categories: (i) fair value through profit or loss, (ii) loans and
receivables, (iii) held-to-maturity investments, (iv) available-for-sale
securities and (v) other financial liabilities.

Derivatives and hedge accounting (see notes 2(qg) and (i))

In prior years, derivatives mainly included derivatives arising from
futures, forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by
the Group in the foreign exchange, interest rate and equity
markets. Netting was applied where a legal right of off-set existed.

The accounting for these instruments was dependent upon

whether the transactions were undertaken for trading purposes
or as part of the management of asset and liability portfolios.
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

(c) Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement) (cont'd)

(i) Derivatives and hedge accounting (see notes 2(g) and (i)) (cont’d)

Derivatives used for trading purposes

Trading transactions included transactions undertaken for market
making, to service customers’ needs and for proprietary purposes,
as well as any related hedges.

Transactions undertaken for trading purposes were marked to
market and the net present value of the gain or loss arising was
recognized in the income statement as dealing gains/losses.

The fair value of derivatives that were not exchange-traded was
estimated at the amount that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the contract at the balance sheet date taking into
account current market conditions and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparties.

Derivatives used for asset and liability management purposes
Derivatives used for this purpose were accounted for as hedges
and were valued on an equivalent basis to the underlying assets,
liabilities or net positions which they were hedging. Any profit or
loss was recognized on the same basis as that arising from the
related assets, liabilities or net positions.

Any gain or loss on termination of hedging derivatives was deferred
and amortized to the income statement over the original life of
the terminated contract. Where the underlying asset, liability or
position was sold or terminated, the hedging derivative was
immediately marked to market through the income statement.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS
39, the Group has changed its accounting policies relating to
derivative and hedge accounting set out in note 2(g) and (i)
respectively.
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Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement) (cont’d)

(i) Embedded derivatives (see note 2(g))
In prior years, embedded derivatives were not separately accounted
for and they were carried accordingly to the classification of the
host contracts.

With effect from 1 January 2005, embedded derivative that is
not closely related to the host contract or where the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss is accounted for separately from the host contract as equity,
assets or liabilities.

(iv)  Convertible bonds issued (see note 2(g))
In prior years, convertible bonds issued were recorded as a liability
and stated at cost.

With effect from 1 January 2005, and in accordance with HKAS
32, the Group has provided additional disclosures of terms,
conditions, accounting policies, risk and fair values of convertible
bonds. In order to comply with HKAS 32 & 39, convertible bonds
issued are split into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognizing the liability component at its fair value
and attributing to the equity component the difference between
the proceeds from the issue and the fair value of the liability
component. The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortized cost. The equity component is recognized in the
convertible bond — equity component until the note is either
converted (in which case it is transferred to share premium) or
the note is redeemed (in which case it is released directly to retained
profits). Further details of the new policy are set out in note 2(g).

() Impairment of financial assets (see note 2(n)(i), (ii) and (i)

Loans and advances

In prior years, provisions were made against specific loans and
advances as and when the directors had doubts on the ultimate
recoverability of principal or interest in full.

Specific provisions represented the quantification of actual and

expected losses from identified accounts and were deducted from
loans and advances in the balance sheet.
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Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement) (cont'd)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (see note 2(n)(i), (ii) and (iii)) (cont'd)

Loans and advances (cont’d)

Other than where provisions on smaller balance homogeneous
advances were assessed on a portfolio basis, the amount of specific
provision raised was assessed on a case by case basis. Specific
provisions were made against the carrying amount of advances
that were identified as being in doubt based on regular reviews
of outstanding balances to reduce these advances, net of any
collateral, to their recoverable amounts.

Where specific provisions were raised on a portfolio basis, the
level of provisioning took into account management’s assessment
of the portfolio’s structure, past and expected credit losses,
business and economic conditions, and any other relevant factors.
The principal portfolios evaluated on this basis were credit cards
and certain unsecured personal advances.

General provisions augmented specific provisions and provided
cover for loans which were impaired at the balance sheet date
but would not be identified as such until some time in the future.
The Group maintained a general provision which was determined
taking into account the structure and risk characteristics of the
Group's loan portfolio and the expected loss of the individual
components of the loan portfolio based primarily on the historical
loss experience. Historic levels of latent risk were regularly reviewed
to determine that the level of general provisioning continues to
be appropriate. General provisions were deducted from loans
and advances to customers in the balance sheet.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2005, it is not practicable
to estimate the extent to which the profit for the year would have
been higher or lower had the previous policy on impairment of

financial assets still been applied.
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Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement) (cont'd)

(v)  Impairment of financial assets (see note 2(n)(i), (i) and (iii)) (cont'd)

Loans and advances (cont’d)

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS39,
the Group has changed its accounting policies relating to
impairment on loans and advances to customers set out in note 2(n).

Other financial assets

For financial assets, other than loans and advances, were reviewed
on each balance sheet date to determine whether there was any
indication of impairment. If the recoverable amount of the asset
was estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset was reduced to its recoverable amount and

the impairment loss was recognized in the income statement.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS
39, the Group has changed its accounting policies relating to
impairment of investments in debt and equity securities, and
impairment of other financial assets set out in note 2(n).

(vi)  Interest recognition on impaired loans
In prior years, loans were not reclassified as accruing until interest
and principal payments were up-to-date and future payments were
reasonably assured. Where the probability of receiving interest
payments was remote, interest was no longer accrued. Where
the loan had no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
related suspended interests were written off.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 39,

the Group has changed its accounting policies relating to interest
income recognition set out in note 2(c)(i).
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(d)

(e)

Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement) (cont’d)

(vii)  Description of transitional provisions and effect of adjustments
The changes in accounting policies of the above items were
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to certain reserves
and redesignation of financial instruments as at 1 January 2005
as disclosed in the respective notes. Comparative amounts have
not been restated as this is prohibited by the transitional
arrangements in HKAS 39.

The adjustments for each financial statement line item of the
Group and of the Company affected for the year ended
31 December 2005 are set out in note 3(b).

Interest in associates (HKAS 28, Investments in associates)

In prior years, investments held by the Group with 20% or more of the
voting power of the investee that were acquired and held exclusively
with a view to subsequent disposal in the near future were classified as
other investments in securities and stated at fair value.

With effect from 1 January 2005, and in accordance with HKAS 28,
such investments are reclassified as investment in associates and
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Further details of the new policy are set out in note 2(e).

The adjustments for each consolidated financial statement line item of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004 are set out in note 3(a).

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-based
payment)

()  Employee share option scheme
In prior years, no amounts were recognized when employees
(which term includes directors) were granted share options over
shares in the Company. If the employees chose to exercise the
options, the nominal amount of share capital and share premium
were credited only to the extent of the option’s exercise price
receivable.
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)
(e) Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-based
payment) (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Employee share option scheme (cont’d)

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS 2,
the Group has adopted a new policy for employee share options.
Under the new policy, the Group recognizes the fair value of such
share options as an expense in the consolidated income statement
with a corresponding increase recognized in a capital reserve within
equity. Further details of the new policy are set out in note

2(p)i).

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively with
comparatives restated, except that the Group has taken advantage
of the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 2, under which the
new recognition and measurement policies have not been applied
to the following grants of options:

(@) all options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002; and

(b) all options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
but which had vested before 1 January 2005.

Details of the employee share option scheme are set out in
note 43.

Employee Equity Linked Deferred Award Scheme (“ELDA”)

In prior years, when employees (which term includes directors)
were granted awards under ELDA, provision for the ELDA was
made and recognized immediately as expenses in the year in which
the awards were granted.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS 2,
the fair value of the amount payable is recognized as an expense
in the income statement over the relevant vesting period with a
corresponding increase in liabilities. The liability is remeasured at
each balance sheet date and at settlement date. Any changes in
the fair value of the liability are recognized in the income statement.
Further details of the new policy are set out in note 2(p)ii).

Details of ELDA are set out in note 43.
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Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-based
payment) (cont’d)

(i)~ The adjustments for each financial statement line item of the
Group and of the Company affected for the years ended
31 December 2005 and 2004 are set out in notes 3(a) and (b).

Amortization of positive goodwill (HKFRS 3, Business
combinations and HKAS 36, Impairment of assets)

In prior years, positive goodwill which arose on or after
1 January 2001 was amortized on a straight line basis over its useful life
and was subject to impairment testing when there were indications of
impairment.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS 3 and
HKAS 36, the Group has changed its accounting policy relating to
goodwill. Under the new policy, the Group no longer amortizes positive
goodwill but tests it at least annually for impairment. Also with effect
from 1 January 2005 and in accordance with HKFRS 3, if the fair value
of the net assets acquired in a business combination exceeds the
consideration paid (i.e. an amount arises which would have been known
as negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy), the excess
is recognized immediately in profit or loss as it arises. Further details of
these new policies are set out in note 2(f).

The new policy in respect of the amortization of positive goodwill has
been applied prospectively in accordance with the transitional
arrangements under HKFRS 3. The adjustments for each consolidated
financial statement line affected for the year ended 31 December 2005
are set out in note 3(b).

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property)

() Timing of recognition of movements in fair value in the income
statement
In prior years, movements in the fair value of the Group’s
investment property were recognized directly in the investment
property revaluation reserve except when, on a portfolio basis,
the reserve was insufficient to cover a deficit on the portfolio, or
when a deficit previously recognized in the income statement had
reversed, or when an individual investment property was disposed
of. In these limited circumstances, movements in the fair value

were recognized in the income statement.
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies (contd)
(g) Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property)
(cont’d)

(i)

(ir)

Timing of recognition of movements in fair value in the income
statement (cont’d)

In addition, in prior years property (including leasehold land) which
the Group held for an undetermined future purpose was
accounted for under the cost model in SSAP 17, Property, plant
and equipment, whereby the property was carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Upon adoption of HKAS 40 as from 1 January 2005, the Group
has adopted a new policy for investment property. Under this
new policy:

- all changes in the fair value of investment property are
recognized directly in the income statement in accordance
with the fair value model in HKAS 40; and

- land held for an undetermined future purpose is recognized
as “investment property” if the property is freehold or, if
the property is leasehold, the Group has recognized such
land as investment property rather than as land held under
an operating lease.

Further details of the new policy for investment property are set
out in note 2()).

Measurement of deferred tax on movements in fair value

In prior years the Group was required to apply the tax rate that
would be applicable to the sale of investment property to
determine whether any amounts of deferred tax should be
recognised on the revaluation of investment property.
Consequently, deferred tax was only provided to the extent that
tax allowances already given would be clawed back if the property
were disposed of at its carrying value, as there would be no
additional tax payable on disposal.

As from 1 January 2005, in accordance with HK(SIC) Interpretation
21, the Group recognises deferred tax on movements in the value
of an investment property using tax rates that are applicable to
the property’s use, if the Group has no intention to sell it and the
property would have been depreciable had the Group not adopted
the fair value model. Further details of the policy for deferred tax
are set out in note 2(q).
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Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property)
(cont’d)

(i) Description of transitional provisions and effect of adjustments
While these changes in accounting policy have to be adopted
retrospectively, no adjustment to the opening balances as at
1 January 2004 and 1 January 2005 are required because the net
surplus on revaluation of investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2003 and 31 December 2004 was taken to the
income statement as this related to a deficit on revaluation in
respect of the portfolio of investment properties previously charged
to the income statement.

The adjustments for each financial statement line items of the
Group and the Company affected for the year ended 31 December
2005 are set out in note 3(b).

Definition of related parties (HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 24, Related party disclosures, the
definition of related parties as disclosed in note 2(t) has been expanded
to clarify that related parties include entities that are under the significant
influence of a related party that is an individual (i.e. key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family members)
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group. The clarification of the definition of related parties has not
resulted in any material changes to the previously reported disclosures
of related party transactions nor has it had any material effect on the
disclosures made in the current period, as compared to those that would
have been reported had SSAP 20, Related party disclosures, still been in
effect.

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKAS 30, Disclosures in financial
statements of banks and similar financial institutions)

(i) Presentation of income statement and balance sheets

In prior years, there were no specific accounting standards
governing the presentation of the financial statement of banks.
Management, having regard to the overall clarity and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, exercised
its judgement in deciding on the relative prominence given to
each item presented on the face of the income statement and
balance sheets. As a result, certificates of deposits held were
separately presented on the face of the balance sheets. Treasury
bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) and money at call and short
notice (representing placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing within one month) were included in cash
and short-term funds with treasury bills being presented separately
as held-to-maturity investments and other investments in securities
according to the previous SSAP 24.
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Changes in Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKAS 30, Disclosures in financial
statements of banks and similar financial institutions)
(cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Presentation of income statement and balance sheets (cont’d)
With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS
30 and take into account the measurement basis that has been
applied, the Group has changed its presentation of certain items
on the face of the income statement and balance sheets. Treasury
bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) and certificates of deposit
held are included in the four categories of financial instruments
under HKAS 39. Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing within one month are included in placements
with banks and other financial institutions. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively with comparatives
reclassified.

Minority interests (HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
and HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet date were
presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately from
liabilities and as deduction from net assets. Minority interests in
the results of the Group for the year were also separately presented
in the consolidated income statement as a deduction before
arriving at the profit attributable to shareholders.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 1
and HKAS 27, the Group has changed its accounting policy relating
to the presentation of minority interests. Under the new policy,
minority interests are presented as part of equity, separately from
interests attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
These changes in presentation of minority interests in the
consolidated balance sheet and income statement have been
applied restrospectively with comparatives restated.
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4. FEKA 4. Interest Income
xEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 y 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EmiEE Listed securities 410,103 327,940
JELEMEE Unlisted securities 568,930 566,284
H Aty Others 2,028,339 1,347,186
3,007,372 2,241,410
HE_TETRAF+_A=+—HLFE ' Hitb Other interest income includes the amount of interest income accrued
FEWAE TEHTEi@EﬁFE’Jﬁﬁf‘J SR PN on impaired financial assets of HK$28.4 million (2004: Nil) and interest
#%28,400,0007T (Z TN 4F | ) REFAE income on unwinding of discount on impairment loan of HK$25.2 million
ZE & T 35 B /9 I B Uk A 85 25,200,0000T (2004: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2005.
(ZZETmF &\ -
5. ERARAEWA 5. Fee and Commission Income
X&E
The Group
—ETLE ZEETMEF
2005 y 2004
BETRT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEMAe Bills commission 40,152 42,281
E RSB A Cards related income 35,064 23,722
— MR ER1T AR5 General banking services 50,518 65,801
IR B Insurance 77,964 61,715
KERGEEEREER Investment and structural investment products 75,888 90,451
BER - -BIRMEER Loans, overdrafts and facility fee 159,256 176,955
Hity Others 820 382
439,662 461,307
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6. EXHWA 6. Net Trading Income

FEE
The Group
—EFAhEF —ETME
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEINEHEF Gains less losses from dealing in foreign
B B currencies 98,707 54,468
EERHGHBEFmFRERE Gains less losses from trading securities 137,827 100,893
Hth B 5% 8 s FBUE 18 Gains less losses from other dealing activities (51,738) 22,583
RGABEEFNBERA Interest income on trading assets
— kMW — Listed 26,807 -
—3FEm — Unlisted 120,050 -
XERBRBEENEXZE Interest expense on trading liabilities (8,592) -
MR HGABESFRE Dividend income from unlisted trading
WA securities 20,405 -
343,466 177,944
7. EERABEBEGURBKRAFEFEE 7. NetIncome from Financial Instruments Designated
ST RBFBA at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
FEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
b il Net gains 93,941 -
MEWA Interest income
— kW — Listed 31,348 -
—JF Lk — Unlisted 3,395 -
B H Interest expense (106,203) -
22,481 -
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8. FHMHXWL

8. Net Hedging Expense

AEH
The Group
—ETRE — TN
2005 2004
BETIT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEEELF Fair value hedge (679) -
9. HhEZWKAN 9. Other Operating Income
X&E
The Group
—ETLE ZEETMEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(rg;tated)
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEESFRAMESREE Dividend income from investment securities
A and other investments in securities
— LMK E — Listed investments = 488
—JELMIRE — Unlisted investments = 10,289
RAfEEEFREKA Dividend income from available-for-sale
financial assets
—FEMEE — Unlisted investments 5,312 -
BEWERSWA Gross rental income from investment
4R A 3,231,000 properties of HK$3,231,000
(2004 : 7% 11,491,0007T) (2004: HK$11,491,000)
RS2 7S 5 43,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$43,000
(2004 : %5 1,598,0007T) (2004: HK$1,598,000) 3,188 9,893
Hb Others 70,801 48,528
79,301 69,198
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10. & H

10. Operating Expenses

AEE
The Group
—EFAhEF —ETME
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
(a) EIMF (a) Staff costs
HehHME THA Salaries and other staff costs 555,101 548,302
BRIRE AR (HT7E42) Retirement costs (note 42) 37,914 35,866
LARR B8 1 89 32 (B 5% 43) Share-based payment expenses (note 43) :
—ARRBEENEORGO S E — Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 5,796 4,308
—URSERNORG ZH — Cash-settled share-based payment expenses 9,029 4,221
607,840 592,697
(b) FEREN (b) Depreciation and amortization
ME KRB ETE Depreciation of premises and equipment
(P 3E32) (note 32)
- RELEHERENEE — Assets held for use under operating leases 2,571 932
—HMmEE — Other assets 110,266 145,467
7 4H (BT 5E33) Amortization of goodwill (note 33) = 60,336
112,837 206,735
(0 HMbEEZH (c) Other operating expenses
EYEL Sy Premises and equipment expenses,
(TBEEE) excluding depreciation
—MERS — Rental of premises 54,054 33,369
— HEfth - Others 77,467 74,839
% 2D T & Auditors’ remuneration 4,325 3,358
BE® Advertising 63,659 66,651
AAE - R RER S Communication, printing and stationery 57,636 52,694
FEREXEER Legal and professional fee 22,876 22,247
i Others 93,994 64,895
374,011 318,053
LEZTHEE Total operating expenses 1,094,688 1,117,485
KESTHPBENRERNEESZLE - 2515 Included in operating expenses are minimum lease payment under

RERE S HATE931,000T (Z = Ei
75 1#51,372,00070) R EMEERESH (BEY
%) AF 81 50,248,0007T (ZZEZT P4 -
75 29,619,0007T) °

operating leases of HK$931,000 (2004: HK$1,372,000) for hire of
equipment and HK$50,248,000 (2004: HK$29,619,000) for hire of other
assets (including property rentals).
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1. EE & 11. Directors’ Remuneration
RIEBEB(RFEID B 161ERBENEEMS Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
wm Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
—E%ILE
2005
& RE
RENER
Salaries, BAREH B
EZ#WE  allowances HERA UREEG Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme B
fee in kind bonuses payments  contributions Total
BETT BETr B¥Txn BT T BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FEES S Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen 300 3,600 2,700 480 360 7,440
BIRALE Mr. Chang Zhenming 170 - - - - 170
(R=ZFZEHF (resigned on
—A+tHEEF 17 January 2005
RR-_ZFTREF and re-appointed on
NAZTtHA 27 June 2005)
BZ(E)
RNELE Mr. Chen Xiaoxian 290 - - - - 290
(R=_FZERF (appointed on
—A+tBEZF) 17 January 2005)
BrapEs Mr. Dou Jianzhong 300 2,520 945 - 252 4,017
EBEELRE Mr. Ju Weimin 300 - - - - 300
LAxE Mr. Kong Dan 300 - 200 322 - 822
THREEE Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth 300 3,120 1,000 320 312 5,052
(R=FZEXF (resigned on
—H—BEIT) 1 January 2006)
WEIKEE Mr. Lam Kwong Siu 300 - - - - 300
BEHLLE Mr. Liu Jifu 300 - - - - 300
BEkEEE Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin 300 2,845 576 288 231 4,240
BlEmEE Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda 300 - - - - 300
icRiakidie Mr. Roger Clark Spyer 30 242 1,200 - - 1,472
(R=FZR4F (appointed on
+=A=-HEZ(F) 2 December2005)
LRk Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul 300 - - - - 300
TRELE Mr. Wang Dongming 300 - - - - 300
BB E Mr. Yang Chao 300 - - - - 300
REREE Mr. Zhang Enzhao 60 - - - - 60
(R=FZRF (resigned on
ZA+EHRE) 17 March 2005)
R EE Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Peter 300 1,550 377 32 70 2,329
4,450 13,877 6,998 1,442 1,225 27,992
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M. EEMNE @

11. Directors’ Remuneration (cont'd)

—TTMEF
2004
o 2
LEWREF
Salaries, RAREH B
EEWE  allowances  BERA  LREEM Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Share-based scheme k|
fee in kind bonuses payments contributions Total
BEFT  A%ETr  BET BEFT BETT BE%ETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEES S Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen 300 3,540 3,600 293 354 8,087
BRBLE Mr. Chang Zhenming 300 2,166 903 234 205 3,808
(R=FZRF (resigned on
—ATtHEE) 17 January 2005)
EEhEL Mr. Dou Jianzhong 300 - - - - 300
BEELE Mr. Fan Sheung Tak Stephen 240 - - - - 240
(R=ZZmE (resigned on
T AT LAE#E) 19 October 2004)
BEELE Mr. Ju Weimin 300 - - - - 300
LAEE Mr. Kong Dan 300 1,043 941 234 99 2,617
TRREE Mr. Kong Siu Chee Kenneth 300 3,120 1,800 196 312 5,728
ok Mr. Lee Wing Hung Raymond 120 - - - - 120
(R=ZZmE (resigned on
AAZTHEE) 20 May 2004)
R EAE Mr. Lam Kwong Siu 300 - - - - 300
BEBEE Mr. Liu Jifu 300 - - - - 300
Bkt Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin 300 2,845 1,000 180 231 4,556
EiafR kL Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda 300 - - - - 300
(R=ZFEMEF (appointed on
+-F—HEZ(I) 1 December 2004)
LR ELE Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul 100 - - - - 100
(R=ZFEMEF (appointed on
NA—HEZE) 1 September 2004)
ITRALE Mr. Wang Dongming 300 - - - - 300
BREE Mr. Yang Chao 300 - - - - 300
REREE Mr. Zhang Enzhao 300 - - - - 300
HEEEE Mr. Zhao Shengbiao Peter 300 1,605 302 23 62 2,292
4,660 14,319 8,546 1,160 1,263 29,948

i eFE TEERETEREESRZER
BRAFERER S (M 3R E]) &
ARBBRITHABBERESS (G ERBK
R BIREBRENEE - SLEYRT

MHEEEFERE

P ET438 R -

EBEREAS] —BAR

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The above emoluments include the value of share options granted to certain
directors under The CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) and the Senior Executive Share Option
Scheme (the "Old Option Scheme”) of the Company. The details of these
benefits in kind are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes”
in the directors’ report and note 43.

139



PR M

Notes on the Financial Statements

REFALHME
AEERERBMEALT  LFMA
(ZETEWF  ZB) ALARARES  EF
B & 4 KHE EXCRER -

Hip—% (CTBTWEF - |8) AMEB2mT

12. Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the Group's five individuals with the highest emoluments, four of
them (2004: three) are directors of the Company and the information
in respect of the directors’ emoluments are disclosed above.

The emoluments of the remaining one (2004: two) individuals are as
follows:

—ETRE —TENF

2005 2004

(E#)

(restated)

BEFT BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e kEMM e Salaries and other emoluments 2,298 4,728
)15 16 4L Discretionary bonuses 1,100 3,050
RIRE R Pension contributions 220 228
LA B 8 18 1 Share-based payments 288 180
3,906 8,186

Htp—% (ZTZTNF : WA) &= H ATa The emoluments of the remaining one (2004: two) individuals with the
SENATEHE - highest emoluments are within the following bands:
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
A& E A8 H
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
752,500,001 7T — 75 ¥ 3,000,0007C HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 - -
7 #3,000,0017T — 7 # 4,000,000 HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 1
75 4,000,0017T — 75 ¥ 4,500,0007C HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 - 1
1 2
13. EREHREFBEBGIE/RIERER 13. Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances to
EHBHE Customers/Charge for Bad and Doubtful Debts
(a) BEXRBRABERE (a) Impairment losses on loans and advances
AEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
BETT BB T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB H i BRI (B Impairment losses (release)/charge on advances to
(B El) /52 58 (M 3£ 25(b)) customers and other accounts (note 25(b))
— IR — Additions 266,960 -
—#E — Releases (226,391) -
— KB & 5 — Recoveries (98,113) -
(57,544) -
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13. EFERRERNREEBE/IRIZR
EHFHE @

(cont’d)

(b) RIFIREHEFHE

(b) Charge for bad and doubtful debts

13. Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances to
Customers/Charge for Bad and Doubtful Debts

A&EHE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
BETRT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Rk B 2 SR/ () Charge/(release) for bad and doubtful debts
(P 7 25(0) (note 25(c))
— R — Additions - 430,152
— e — Releases — (307,715)
— B &5 — Recoveries - (44,372)
- 78,065
14. ZEWBERANBIE 14. Income Tax in Consolidated Income Statement
(a) ZFEWBERANBIE (a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
XEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETRT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AHYHIE -FEANGEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
F N2 (71 38(a)) Provision for the year (note 38(a)) 129,827 156,377
BEFERIBEEER Over-provision in respect of prior years (19,180) (1,253)
110,647 155,124
AHEIHIE - BIMHIE Current tax — Overseas
FNLER Provision for the year 1,727 2,145
EEBIE Deferred tax
TR EHLDE Reversal of temporary differences (168) (6,092)
&t Total 112,206 151,177

17.5% (ZFBZEPF : 17.5%) 5t & < BID1T
LB AR IRBERCEm TR
MEERITH RIT AR EEMR -

ZZZRFFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for
branches and subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
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14. FEWMBRAMBIE ) 14. Income Tax in Consolidated Income Statement
(cont’d)
(b) BIEXHESEF B IREABEFEBR (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
ZHERR at applicable tax rates
AEE
The Group
—ETAhF —TTNEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B A& A Profit before tax 1,215,646 1,054,732
BB B R E A RS XA Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated
B A& A 8 at the rates applicable to profits in the countries
fBREIE concerned 202,413 171,055
AAHR X 2 HIB R E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 24,375 56,294
FERBBAZHALE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (102,583) (51,687)
RERORERREEE L HAZE  Taxeffect of unused tax losses not recognized 2,799 1,593
AREEFEAUNEREEEZHETE  Tax effect of previous tax losses utilized
) ) in current year (932) (11,636)
M EEHBIAKRR/ (BF) Tax effect of tax cost/(benefit) from tax planning
ZHBERE arrangement 2,711 (13,247)
*ﬁ&a@ﬁ’g%ﬁ% HERIMATE Tax effect of temporary allowance not recognized 1,922 58
BEFETIREEHERD Over-provision in prior years (19,180) (1,253)
Hh Others 681 -
ERHES T Actual tax expense 112,206 151,177
15. IR R FE (& i 15. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
RKRABBRREGREEZNBEE-ZEE3 A The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
ARRMBIRE - BB’ 551,442,000 Company includes a profit of HK$551,442,000 (2004: HK$450,576,000)
ZZT T - B ¥E450,576,0007T) 6% F o which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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16. & B 16. Dividends
() FEEEFEATRRNES (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—ETLE —ETME
2005 2004
EETR ok
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk &R A HIR S SR Interim dividend declared and paid of
/% #1131 (2004 + B ¥ 6.610L) HK$0.113 (2004: HK$0.066) per share 361,358 210,759
HEARRRENRARSTR Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
#5601l (2004 - & 1% 5 7.50L) of HK$0.060 (2004: HK$0.075) per share 191,872 239,636
553,230 450,395
BREERARREN KRR SN RTEE AR The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been
REAE - recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
(b) ERFEENZERRBEN L—MHBEE (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
EREATRENES attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year
—EFAhEF —ETNEF
2005 2004
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

ERAEE WTZ/E&/EE%E’]
B FERBBREESK

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year of

78 #7511l (2004 IR 6 310 HK$0.075 (2004: HK$0.063) per share 239,636 200,960
wmE— ﬁ7f Eﬁli& EH A% - B Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year
PAN/N = IR AR 1) 18 P B 50 Al on shares issued under the Old Option Scheme
s ?E%% ﬁ% Hx TR ?é‘ﬁ B 17 &9 subsequent to the balance sheet date and before the
RHEIRR B close of the Register of Members of the Company 203 178
239,839 201,138
() ERFTEERNRFEE (c) Dividends paid during the year
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
285k &K &R ERE§ K Interim dividend declared and paid of HK$0.113
FEEE 11300 (2004 « FHBE6.610) (2004: HK$0.066) per share 361,358 210,759
ERAARF & NZE MIKRER E—B I Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
FERARKREFRBET7.5 year, approved and paid during the year of
(2004 : B MG 31L) HK$0.075 (2004: HK$0.063) per share 239,636 200,960
RE-—UBRFEEHEER®% BT Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year
RRATGEHBRG B ELA FH on shares issued under the Old Option Scheme
RIFEBRESEIMBEITRG subsequent to the balance sheet date and before the
REARR B close of the Register of Members of the Company 203 178
601,197 411,897

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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17. BIREFI

(a) BEREXZETN
TR E AR R Ty iR B A A BB R JE (5 E F
75 11,103,395,000 (ZZE T F () -
75 #903,925,00000) R F N E 1T E BRI
h0#E SF 15 $03,197,198,2850% (= T Z Py 4F -
3,192,157,828) st & a0 T -

(a)

17.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$1,103,395,000
(2004 (restated): HK$903,925,000) and the weighted average of
3,197,198,285 ordinary shares in issue (2004: 3,192,157,892 shares)
during the year, calculated as follows:

TR 0T 5 E Weighted average number of ordinary shares
—EThF —ETME
2005 2004
RTATEBEBITEBER Issued ordinary shares at 1 January (note 44(a)) 3,194,153,151 3,189,835,394
TR AR e 2 & (M 5E44(a) Effect of share options exercised 3,045,134 2,322,498
12 A 318 8 8k 0 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
15 85 at 31 December 3,197,198,285 3,192,157,892
(b) BiEERF (b) Diluted earnings per share
BREERFDIRBAR R EBRRRLTHE The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on adjusted
1% P i FI 5 #51,141,126,0000T (Z 2 Z M F profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
(EFR) : B¥907,420,0007T) KT AE EEE of HK$1,141,126,000 (2004 (restated): HK$907,420,000) and
EREEARNZEFELEAERN LT AR the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 3,524,437,109
hnkE S 15 #3,524,437,1098% (—ZZ Y & - (2004: 3,521,197,208), after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
3,521,197,2080%) 5T & - potential ordinary shares, which assuming the exercise of options under
the Company’s share option scheme:
R 0 HE T G (#5F) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
—ETAhF —ETmE
2005 2004
B12A31H 8 E @R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
P 19 8 at 31 December 3,197,198,285 3,192,157,892
R IR R R &) 51718 Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
THERNEBRND 2 under the Company’s share option scheme
=% for nil consideration 337,911 2,138,403
RRIE AR ESFEITE Deemed issue of ordinary shares for
TERMN T2 Convertible Bonds 326,900,913 326,900,913
12 A 318 8 8k 0 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
19 B () (diluted) at 31 December 3,524,437,109  3,521,197,208
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18. N EBER
DEERBIRAEENEB MRS IEL R
it HREERAEES DR L AEE R
R ERMER  MERAUESHIBERAS
EAREEA -

() EBSB
AREBE T ERERMRIT AR S BIRS - A
TRASETZXBAEAKD

BERITER TEZRETERT o
RITRPEEBEED -

BEER IZERERRERTR
BEZER -
BEIRITER TERFEBART  E2

B BHFEEERS -

AOBER TEREMERTREARE
MDA R 0 AR RO
| e -
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18. Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business

0]

and geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen

as the primary reporting format as the directors consider that this is

more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related

financial services. The Group comprises the following main business

segments:

Commercial banking

business:

Asset management:

Investment banking:

Unallocated:

It mainly comprises banking business,
which includes retail banking, corporate
banking and treasury activities.

It mainly comprises direct investment and

distressed assets management.

[t mainly comprises merchant banking, fund
management and securities brokerage and
dealing.

It mainly comprises the premises and any

items which cannot be reasonably allocated
to specific business segments.
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18. 7 EPEER () 18. Segment Reporting (cont'd)

(i) EBEDL & (i) Business segments (cont'd)
—2TRE
2005
BWERT SEEE  BRESRT 53 B [ .88
Commercial Asset Investment K% B %5 Inter-segment =e
banking management banking Unallocated elimination Consolidated
BETT EBETn #BE%Tr E%Tx  BETn  E%Trn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FRBHA Net interest income 1,100,952 34,821 - (36,516) - 1,099,257
HigglA Other operating income 798,698 61,221 - 11,475 - 871,394
BB NGB Total operating income 1,899,650 96,042 - (25,041) - 1,970,651
mETH Operating expenses (1,049,390) (24,436) 9) (20,853) - (1,094,688)
) 850,260 71,606 9) (45,894) - 875,963
EXRBIRERSIE  Impairment losses on loans and
B/ (%) advances written back/(charged) 83,379 (25,835) - - - 57,544
BEZEHRAHEE Impairment losses on
ELREBR held-to-maturity and
A available-for-sale securities (2,567) (2,818) = 3,874 = (1,511)
YR BB E & Impairment losses on properties (354) - - 1,871 - 1,517
MEREEE (2#%) Impairment losses written
back/(charged) 80,458 (28,653) - 5,745 - 57,550
E2im Operating profit 930,718 42,953 9 (40,149) - 933,513
HERTEEER Net profit on disposal of
AN fixed assets and associates 226,347 - - 7,523 - 233,870
REMEEHEA Revaluation gain on
investment properties 2,140 - - - - 2,140
P16 Bk 2 12 8134 Share of profit less losses
AER of associates (10,501) (3,135) 59,759 - - 46,123
KEEH AR Profit before taxation 1,148,704 39,818 59,750 (32,626) - 1,215,646
BIE Income tax (101,661) (7,160) - (3,385) - (112,206)
FEERT Profit for the year 1,047,043 32,658 59,750 (36,011) - 1,103,440
UEBR Attributable to:
FATRR Equity shareholders of
i the Company 1,047,043 32,613 59,750 (36,011) - 1,103,395
DY RRER Minority interests - 45 = = - 45
FEERT Profit for the year 1,047,043 32,658 59,750 (36,011) - 1,103,440
XEENE Depreciation for the year 116,800 298 - (4,261) - 112,837
DBEE Segment assets 81,777,136 1,295,604 - 1,035,367 (362,609) 83,745,498
BEATER Interest in associates - 108,284 1,182,896 - - 1,291,180
BEGHE Total assets 81,777,136 1,403,888 1,182,896 1,035,367 (362,609) 85,036,678
SEERE Segment liabilities 74,660,342 12,869 - 1,396,145 (488,531) 75,580,825
FEERELEN Capital expenditure incurred
BEXRHX during the year 53,237 585 - 112 - 53,934
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18. P EPEEHR (#)

18. Segment Reporting (contd)

(i) EBEDL & () Business segments (cont'd)
—ZIMF
2004
(E#)
i  (restated)
BERT BEER RERT AEEEHE
Commerdial Asset  Investment ARDEEH Inter-segment e
banking  management banking  Unallocated elimination  Consolidated
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A B A Net interest income 1,456,353 12,417 - 4,687 - 1,473,457
g A Other operating income 600,994 58,950 - 21,625 - 681,569
EEMANBE Total operating income 2,057,347 71,367 - 26,312 - 2,155,026
=3 Operating expenses (1,011,556) (15,306) - (90,623) - (1,117,485
N 1,045,791 56,061 - (64,311) - 1,037,541
REFREHE Charge for bad and doubtful debts (100,540) 22,475 - - - (78,065)
HBEZEHESRER  Provision written back on
[e] % ) held-to-maturity securities 9,682 - - - - 9,682
HEREBBER Impairment loss on goodwill (9,502) - - - - (9,502)
WEESE (24) /@  Impairment losses (charged)/
written back (100,360) 22,475 - - - (77,885)
EERF Operating profit 945,431 78,536 - (64,311) - 959,656
HEBRTEEEN Net profit on disposal of
3 A fixed assets 19,755 - - (7,893) - 11,862
RENEELR Revaluation gain on
FHA investment properties 7,555 - = = = 7,555
e & 1 A& Al Share of profit less losses
AEE of associates (4,139) 3,995 75,803 = = 75,659
FEEB A Profit before taxation 968,602 82,531 75,803 (72,204) - 1,054,732
HIE Income tax (151,538) (54) - 415 - (151,177)
FEERF Profit for the year 817,064 82,477 75,803 (71,789) - 903,555
TRER Attributable to:
FAFRR Equity shareholders of
& the Company 817,064 82,477 75,803 (71,419 - 903,925
DY RRER Minority interests - - - (370) - (370)
FEERF Profit for the year 817,064 82,477 75,803 (71,789) - 903,555
FEEHRE Depreciation for the year 149,070 87 - (2,758) - 146,399
AEEHE Amortization of gooduwill
e for the year 1,056 - 6,528 52,752 - 60,336
PBEE Segment assets 80,101,502 1,320,542 - 1,038,641 (217,770) 82,242,915
BEATES Interest in associates 191,450 22,085 1,120,907 - - 1,334,442
HESE Total assets 80292952 1342627 1120907 1,038,641 (217,770) 83,577,357
SBHEE Segment liabilities 74,308,120 14,064 - 1,395,300 (462,130) 75,255,354
FEEREEN Capital expenditure incurred
AEXHX during the year 62,784 719 195,866 500 - 259,869
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18. 7 EPEER () 18. Segment Reporting (cont'd)

(i) WESB (i) Geographical segments
BRAMES T2 AMERRBNEBARSMEA The information concerning geographical analysis has been classified
Rz EEEBMEHME TUE S o by the location of the principal operations of the subsidiaries or branches

of its subsidiaries.

—2RRF
2005
I SEBEH
&##  Mainland %H Hth Inter-segment o]
Hong Kong China USA Others elimination Consolidated

EETL ENTn EETT  #ERTi  EETT BT
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000

RBIREEH Operating income from

-1 DN external customers 1,878,501 36,844 54,853 453 - 1,970,651
BEE Total assets 83,788,186 2,060,081 1,776,016 612,632  (3,200,237) 85,036,678
FEERELED Capital expenditure

BEXRHX incurred during the year 45,931 2,718 460 4,825 - 53,934

—ETME
2004
(£%#)
(restated]) .
i o EEE
N Mainland ZH HA Inter-segment ma
Hong Kong China USA Others  elimination Consolidated

BRETIT AT BETT BT EMTI  EETH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RENAREFH Operating income from

HETON external customers 2,103,648 16,684 45,380 - (10,686) 2,155,026
BEE Total assets 83,004,397 690,143 1,742,424 466,479  (2,326,086) 83,577,357
AERAELN Capital expenditure

EARRZ incurred during the year 245,075 8,008 6,786 - - 259,869
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1. R RERTREMSHBBNGSE 19. Cash and Balances with Banks and Other
Financial Institutions

X&EE
The Group
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BETRT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
He Cash in hand 140,567 124,313
FRIRITETT Balances with the central bank 3,826 233
ERITRRABENET Balances with banks and authorized institutions 1,016,916 1,364,373
1,161,309 1,488,919
2. SRITRHEMEHMBEER 20. Placements with Banks and Other Financial
Institutions
X&EE
The Group
—ETLE — TN
2005 2004
(E#H)
(restated)
BETIT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHA Maturing
——@AR — within one month 4,543,004 6,458,048
——EBRAE—FA - between one month and one year 722,040 364,307
5,265,044 6,822,355
1. B5ERE 21. Trade Bills
.
The Group
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
BETRT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B5EBRE Gross trade bills 406,364 248,567
RIBR—REH General provision for bad and
(B 5% 25(0)) doubtful debts (note 25(c)) = (2,486)
406,364 246,081
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22 XS ARAE

22. Trading Assets

& AAT
The Group The Company
—EThE —TTNEF —ETRE —TTNEF
2005 y 2004 2005 2004
EBETT BT T BETRT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBES Debt securities 2,630,327 - = -
&S Equity securities 58,632 - - -
SYEES Investment funds 3,555,926 - 93,707 -
REHBBFES Trading securities 6,244,885 - 93,707 -
PTETANMEAFEE Positive fair values of
(M3 £ 55(b)) derivatives (note 55(b)) 228,144 - = -
6,473,029 - 93,707 -
LA EEHEETHIEMT ¢ Issued by:
AR BT B R Central governments and
RIT central banks 557,841 - = -
NERE Public sector entities 16,525 - = -
RITREMEE Banks and other financial
s institutions 315,702 - = -
hEER Corporate entities 5,354,817 - -
6,244,885 - 93,707 -
LBy Place of listing:
REBE™M Listed in Hong Kong 154,488 - = -
REBLAIMLE T Listed outside Hong Kong 1,245,415 - - -
1,399,903 - - -
JELE™ Unlisted 4,844,982 - 93,707 -
6,244,885 - 93,707 -
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R-ZBZERNFRMACE B G LD FE395RE -
ETeRMEERN_ZTTRF A —REENE
ERRZAEEE - ARLTEFENER
(BEEHEA)FE39% - AWMl — 2T MF
EITERMEMEE -

RHMBEEN_SERF—A—BNEREES
75153,795,536,0000T © MELEER T MF
+ZA=+—HMDEARE3,795,536,0007T
WEMBEHREE -

Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, certain financial assets
were re-designated as trading assets on 1 January 2005. There was no
such re-designation in 2004 as retrospective application of HKAS 39 is
not permitted.

The carrying amount of trading assets as at 1 January 2005 was
HK$3,795,536,000 and these assets were classified as other investment
securities at HK$3,795,536,000 as at 31 December 2004.
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23. EEREBEGURBRATEED 23. Securities Designated at Fair Value Through

EH Profit or Loss
FEH
The Group
—ETLE —ETME
2005 y 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ENRBETNERE S Debt securities issued by corporate entities 1,139,908 -
by Place of listing:
REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 656,545 -
REBUINEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 460,997 -
1,117,542 -
E i) Unlisted 22,366 -
g Total 1,139,908 -
RZZTTRFRMCEB S ER) F395:1% - Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, certain financial assets
ETeREERN_STRF—A—BHESHIE were re-designated as financial assets through profit or loss on 1 January
ERBBEZRMNESHEE - BRI AT 2005. There was no such re-designation in 2004 as retrospective
BERCEB T ER)E 395 - &5t application of HKAS 39 is not permitted.
RN EETEBAENIEE °
EERBAEBEIURMATEENELEN-F The carrying amount of securities assets designated at fair value through
THF—A—HBHIREE &5 1,069,798,0007T profit or loss as at 1 January 2005 was HK$1,069,798,000 and these
MELEESHR _TTNF+_A=+—H assets were classified as held-to-maturity investments and other
#9948 A 75 998,550,000 T F 35 8 B B & investment in securities at HK$998,550,000 and HK$36,332,000

K75 #36,332,000L I b B H A o respectively as at 31 December 2004.
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24 Hih:BHKRE 24. Other Investment in Securities
AEH AAT
The Group The Company
—ETRE — TN —ETRE — TN
2005 2004 2005 2004
(E#H)
(restated)
BETT BET T BETIT BET T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHES Debt securities
NEB L™ Listed in Hong Kong - 1,817 - -
REBUINEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong - 570,004 - -
JEET Unlisted - 960,643 - -
- 1,532,464 - -
;3= Equity securities
REBE L™ Listed in Hong Kong - 84,692 - -
JELT Unlisted - 318,137 - -
- 402,829 - _
BENEXRE Certificates of deposits held
-3kt - unlisted - 89,949 - -
BEEE-F LW Investment funds - unlisted - 2,018,225 - 86,074
- 4,043,467 - 86,074
LA EES MR ITHBINT : Issued by:
MR BT B R Central governments and
R1T central banks - 1,234 — -
RITREMERE Banks and other financial
g institutions = 346,821 = -
hEER Corporate entities - 3,688,912 = 86,074
NEWRE Public sector entities — 6,500 = -
- 4,043,467 - 86,074
LHhESH Market value of listed
HiE securities
BB ESH Debt securities - 571,821 = -
S Equity securities - 84,692 - -
- 656,513 - -

152 FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



24 HhsBH|E ») 24. Other Investment in Securities (cont'd)

RZZEZRFRMCERB G ER) FE39571% - Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, financial assets with carrying
RZEETAF—A—BHNEEEAEE amount of HK$4,043,467,000 at 1 January 2005 were re-designated
4,043,467,000cH &M EE DRI EEFIETE A with HK$3,795,536,000, HK$36,332,000, HK$164,750,000 and
75 ¥53,795,536,000 2 X 5 G EE - B HK$46,849,000 as trading assets, securities designated at fair value
36,332,0007C 2 HEE ABBEE AR AFE through profit or loss, available-for-sale securities and other items in
BERFES B 164,750,0007T 2 7] # H & F 5 the balance sheet respectively.

KB #46,849,000t 2 EhEEBERANIEAE ©

BRI N ERFE AR CERE ST RN FE395 - There was no such re-designation in 2004 as restrospective application
Wl — TSR NFETREBENIET - of HKAS 39 is not permitted.
25. ER2 R R HEMIRIE 25. Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(a) EFBERRHEMBERERBERE (a) Advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

XEE XATH
The Group The Company
—ETRE — TN —ETLE — TN
2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT BB T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KESRAE Gross advances to customers 42,961,697 42,672,715 = -
B R ERE Less: Impairment allowances
— (& Bl 5T & — Individually assessed
(Fff 5£25(b)) (note 25(b)) (274,021) - = -
— A A — Collectively assessed
(Bt 5£25(b)) (note 25(b)) (294,544) - = -
RIZREE Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts
— 5 5l (P 7% 25(0)) — Specific (note 25(c)) - (537,056) - -
— — & (B E 25(c)) — General (note 25(c)) - (519,351) = -
42,393,132 41,616,308 - -
RITRE & B Advances to banks and other
EP N financial institutions 327,521 20,000 = -
FESTF B K E b BR TEUR Accrued interest and other
LB accounts less
impairment allowances 1,387,530 1,686,992 18,403 23,963

44,108,183 43,323,300 18,403 23,963
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25. ERR R R HEMERIE &) 25. Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)
(b) EEBRNBEREHEE (b) Movement in impairment allowances on advances to
customers
—ETRE
2005
&
The Group
{E Bl 5 {& AT
Individually Collectively Pk L]
assessed assessed Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
A2005F 118 (BR) At 1 January 2005 (restated) 549,325 361,177 910,502
W as & A B 89 R (E 18 Impairment losses released
(P 5E13()) to income statement (note 13(a)) (10,701) (46,843) (57,544)
hEH BEE Amounts written off (300,902) (22,348) (323,250)
W Bl A F EE 85 Y Recoveries of advances written off
EiP in previous years 95,471 2,642 98,113
EFUREEETRER Unwind of discount on loan impairment
(P 3£ 4) losses (note 4) (25,224) = (25,224)
& 5 & E b 32 Exchange and other adjustments 5,899 (84) 5,815
R 2005F 12 A 31H At 31 December 2005 313,868 294,544 608,412
BRA : Deducted from:
% P 2R (B E25()) Advances to customers (note 25(a)) 274,021 294,544 568,565
H i BRIE Other accounts 39,847 - 39,847
313,868 294,544 608,412
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25. ERR R R HEMERIE (o) 25.

Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(cont’d)
(0 FREBREHEZD (c) Movement in provision for bad and doubtful debts
—ZETMEF
2004
NE
The Group
RN
Ll —® g Suspended
Specific General _ Total interest
ok ok BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R 2004F181H At 1 January 2004 762,063 546,474 1,308,537 389,638
k= E Amounts written off (297,765) - (297,765) (140,617)
Wz & A IR B 6N New provisions charged
WA to the income statement 427,837 2,315 430,152 -
U 75 2% A B B Y Provisions released to the
AE A income statement (325,087) (27,000) (352,087) -
U @1 & 28 Amounts recovered 44,372 - 44,372 -
REERANER Interest suspended during
2 the year - - - 154,588
1 18] 52 FI) B Suspended interest recovered - - - (20,277)
E 5 %= 58 Exchange differences 61 48 109 357
20044
12A31H At 31 December 2004 611,481 521,837 1,133,318 383,689
mnEra : Deducted from:
BEH5EE (ME21) Trade bills (note 21) - 2,486 2,486 -
BEPER Advances to customers
(Mt 3£ 25(a)) (note 25(a)) 537,056 519,351 1,056,407 383,689
H th BR 18 Other accounts 74,425 - 74,425 -
611,481 521,837 1,133,318 383,689
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25 EERRRHEMERIE 2

(d) BRITXESHERRRSH
REETEE D
EAMNSHEREREL -

MEPEROMERESER

25. Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)
(d) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the HKMA.

AEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AREBHER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Tk A Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER — Property development 410,595 350,668
—WEKE — Property investment 5,033,111 4,313,945
—2@A — Financial concerns 2,355,699 2,702,487
—BRELL — Stockbrokers 45,606 39,835
—HERES f EE5 — Wholesale and retail trade 2,015,783 2,000,654
— Bl — Manufacturing 2,813,124 3,372,328
— B ER R - Transport and transport equipment 4,280,529 5,404,016
—Hfh ~ Others 3,093,252 3,690,455
A Individuals
-BAREEHEE - — Loans for the purchase of flats under
AEREBSEEE the Home Ownership Scheme,
EEFERBEEEHLERE Private Sector Participation Scheme
FFEIEMNAER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 18,409 19,394
—BAHEMEEMED — Loans for the purchase of other
B residential properties 11,416,704 10,512,764
—(EREER — Credit card advances 586,781 538,041
—Hfh - Others 1,308,935 1,161,561
BH5mE Trade finance 2,789,104 2,287,943
FA A & 78 DASIN @ ) B R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 6,794,065 6,278,624
42,961,697 42,672,715
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25 EFRRRHEMERIE 2

25. Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(cont’d)
() BETEBHEERERREBR (e) Impaired/non-performing loans and advances to
customers
A&EHE
The Group
—ETRE T NEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEEFPERRBREEE Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 1,170,839 -
1 B1) 570 18 B8 45 5T 1 Impairment allowance-individually assessed (274,021) -
TEONEFPERREAFBE Gross non-performing loans and advances to customers = 1,883,882
RIBRFRER Specific provisions of bad and doubtful debts — (460,587)
896,818 1,423,295
15%\)5 BERRBRBBEHENLE  Asa % of total loans and advances to customers
B RBFRELTE — Gross impaired loans and advances 2.73% -
- T\E%’J%?ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁ — Gross non-performing loans and advances - 4.41%

MEERRBRE
1% 9 18 5 7¥ 4 féﬁk °

TERAEFRRBRENSERA DI EN Non-performing loans and advances are loans on which interest is being

BRI AR EER TR ERBEER
Bgrkoga (2 ERMe2nRE BRmE

ZHBERE

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

EEFIEERENTEE

B ERHT

objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

suspended or on which interest accrual has ceased.

Impaired loans and advances are mainly individually assessed loans with

Individually assessed impairment allowance were made to write down
the carrying value of the advances to the discounted value of future

recoverable amounts, including the realisation of collateral.
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25 EERRRHEMERIE 2

(f) MEHERSHUARSOHREFH

AN REWEBEREPHR

BEEZBEAEENEREMERHD
& RIEHREFE
EEANNRNHEN —RANRE—+5 -
HrmEBREnEBAGEHEEE

TZA=Zt - ARBERERD BN REHN

REEBEKEHSEBELEBENT

S

25. Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)
(f) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts
Advances to customers include net investment in equipment leased to

customers under finance leases and hire purchase contracts having the

characteristics of finance leases. The contracts usually run for an initial

period of 5 to 20 years, with an option for acquiring the leased asset at

nominal value. The total minimum lease payments receivable under

finance leases and hire purchase contracts and their present values are

as follows:
F%0E
The Group
—¥FLE “ZTME
2005 2004
=EHE RERHEH REMRE  KTHEH
ERREE HAEERA BREAE ERREE FIEWA REHE
Present Interest EREH Present Interest BIeE
value of the income Total  value of the income Total
minimum  relating to minimum minimum relating to minimum
lease future lease lease future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
EETT EETT EETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(B3 Within 1 year 559,321 198,336 757,657 592,884 101,987 694,871
1EE56F After 1 year but within
5 years 778,468 614,687 1,393,155 874,284 277,119 1,151,403
5F% After 5 years 2,590,940 1,402,639 3,993,579 2,415,956 551,367 2,967,323
3,928,729 2,215,662 6,144,391 3,883,124 930,473 4,813,597
MERE Impairment allowances:
— @RI ~ Individually assessed (3,718) -
— A — Collectively assessed (1,095) -
- REREH ~ Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts - (7,795)
BREHERSBNHK Net investment in finance
BHRERE leases and hire purchase
38 contracts 3,923,916 3,875,329
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26. FEUGPMI B A BIFRIE 26. Amounts Due from Subsidiaries

AATH
The Company

—ETRE — TN

2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT R H fth & RS 17 K Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 75,583 54,602
BEPRBRKHEMIRE Advances to customers and other accounts 949,881 1,015,876
1,025,464 1,070,478
27. HHEEESH 27. Available-for-sale Securities
xEH
The Group
—ETLE —ETME
2005 y 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHES Debt securities 5,790,022 -
s Equity securities 140,455 -
KEE® Investment funds 77,551 -
6,008,028 -
R (B Impairment allowances (62,068) -
5,945,960 -
LA EES MR THEBNT : Issued by:
RITREM S REE Banks and other financial institutions 873,122 -
TEEE Corporate entities 5,072,838 -
5,945,960 -
LB - Place of listing:
REBUIINEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 4,731,439 -
7w Unlisted 1,214,521 -
s Total 5,945,960 -
R-ZZBZRFRACEB G ER) FE 39514 Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, financial assets with carrying
RZETRAF A - BEEEBEAEK amount of HK$6,285,790,000 at 1 January 2005 were re-designated
6,285,790,0007C #) & &l & EE £ EFTIR T A A as available-for-sale financial assets. There was no such re-designation
HESMEE - ARETEFEHRERES in 2004 as retrospective application of HKAS 39 is not permitted.

GEHERD FE395E - WAL B — T TMFETT
BHEMEE -
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27. A HEREF @) 27. Available-for-sale Securities (contd)
R-ZETZNMF+-_A=+—H ZSELEEDE These assets were classified as follows as at 31 December 2004.
IR e

—EEMEF
2004
BT
HK$'000
DER Classified as:
?—r BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 5,309,764
ESEA Investment in securities 39,841
HihBHIEE Other investment in securities 164,750
#2004 12 A31H Carrying amount as at
#ERE A 31 December 2004 5,514,355
28. BEEIHKRSE 28. Held-to-maturity Investments
X&H
The Group
—EELEF —ZTTF
2005 2004
(E )
(re;tated)
BEFT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEA (BIEIIEESEZE) Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 247,669 398,823
HAENFRE Certificates of deposit held 499,913 1,276,366
B E 5 Debt securities 16,456,684 22,270,484
17,204,266 23,945,673
18 71 18 8 18 7T 1 Impairment allowance — individually assessed (9,983) -
YRR Provision for diminution in value = (15,492)
17,194,283 23,930,181
L EBSMBTHENT : Issued by:
RRBT R AR RIETT Central governments and central banks 821,634 688,993
DA Public sector entities 1,136,047 788,265
RIT R H A R E Banks and other financial institutions 13,269,677 14,210,694
ThEER Corporate entities 1,966,925 8,242,229
17,194,283 23,930,181
by Place of listing:
REBE L™ ) Listed in Hong Kong 1,383,224 717,949
REBAIINDE EH Listed outside Hong Kong 3,478,078 7,563,978
. 4,861,302 8,281,927
I LT Unlisted 12,332,981 15,648,254
gy Total 17,194,283 23,930,181
EhsEHHHE Market value of listed securities: 4,826,519 9,017,797
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28. HEEIHRE ») 28. Held-to-maturity Investments (cont'd)
R-ZZZRFRMCEBGFHER)E395:1% Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, a total of HK$6,308,314,000
RZZZRE—A—HAH#%6,308,314,0007T held-to-maturity securities at 1 January 2005 with a revalued amount
MBI HBSFEMERE S BIENIEERS of HK$1,033,466,000 and HK$6,081,200,000 were re-designated as
#1,033,466,0007T ) B IE & AR A EE financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
K& B8 E KB %6,081,200,0007T 7] i H & & securities respectively. There was no such re-designation in 2004 as
% AR NEFFEBPEACEB T EANE retrospective application of HKAS 39 is not permitted.

3958 - MR —TTINFHITAEBENIET
29. B EEH 29. Investment Securities
FEE
The Group
—EERE —TEZmE
2005 2004
BETRT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEBESF—ELT Debt securities — unlisted - 15,782
[ESSE il Equity shares — unlisted - 24,059
- 39,841
LI EESMBRTHEBNT : Issued by:
TEEE Corporate entities - 28,059
E A& Other entities = 11,782
- 39,841
R-ZZRFRMB(BB T ERDERRE - 1 Following the adoption of HKAS 39 in 2005, a total of HK$39,841,000
ZZEERF A —HEEEBEABE39,841 00071: investment securities at 1 January 2005 with a carrying amount of
HIEEEHA L B139,841,000EEFIEE HK$39,841,000 were re-designated as available-for-sale securities. There
BAHEHERS BRETAETFBBER was no such re-designation in 2004 as retrospective application of HKAS
(CEBGFTERDE3NE WA ER T NF 39 is not permitted.
HEITHEHBEENEE -
30. HBATHRE 30. Investments in Subsidiaries
AAT
The Company
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
I EmRR (R AR ARR) Unlisted shares, at cost 6,245,247 6,239,934
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30. MMBATKRE &)
TYXRA M A ER L EREETEAYEM

30. Investments in Subsidiaries (contd)
The following list contains the particulars of principal subsidiaries which

TEMBARFE -

materially affect the results or assets of the Group.

B I/
EEHE BERG )
Place of Bkt FEEH EBTRAERSE
ATEE incorporation/ % of Principal Issued and paid
Name of company operation shares held activities up capital
ERERBIREBRMBRQF <+ E 100% REER 2 500,0007T
Beijing Kananten Investment PRC Investment US$500,000
Consulting Limited™*** holding
California Investment LLC** =5 100% MERAE % 5,415,00070
USA Property holding US$5,415,000
ZRBEEERA R BB 100% MERH B 2T
Carford International Limited* Hong Kong Property holding HK$2
REIE RS A R A CRYI) <> el 100% SEMRHB A RS500,000,0007T
China International Finance PRC Financial services RMB500,000,000
Company Limited (Shenzhen)***
CIFH (CB-)) Limited HEHE/EE 100% EITA MR E S ERI1T
Cayman Islands/ Issue of US$1
Hong Kong convertible bonds
TEEREAEEEERAA £l 100% REEKR R #B¥1,261,488,1467C
CITIC International Assets Hong Kong BEEER HK$1,261,488,146
Management Limited Investment holding
and assets
management
HERERITERAA =8 100% 8817 5%3,083,341,17670
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited Hong Kong Banking HK$3,083,341,176
CKWB (Cayman Islands) Limited* FERS/EE 100% BITREREE ES1L
Cayman Islands/ Issue of US$1
Hong Kong subordinated notes
CKWH-UT2 Limited* MEeHs/EE 100% BITRERRE ESIT
Cayman Islands/ Issue of US$1
Hong Kong subordinated notes
Dramatic Year Limited EEEBRES/EE 100% & g E&1T
British Virgin Islands/ Investment holding US$1
Hong Kong
BEEAMBER A e 100% HERE ¥ #300,000,0007T
HKCB Finance Limited* Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$300,000,000
EREANRBREAER QA BB 100% Rz 27T
HKCB Insurance Agency Limited* Hong Kong Insurance agency HK$2
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30. BATKRE @

30. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'a)

3 0g0
EEBE BHERS )
Place of Bk EEEH EBTRARKE
AFZE incorporation/ % of Principal Issued and paid
Name of company operation shares held activities up capital
ZERBRMBERAF =B 100% ©RURTE 78 #32,500,0007T
Ka Wah International Merchant Hong Kong Financial services HK$32,500,000
Finance Limited*
RERAREMABERQA* REBEBRES/EE 100% ®EKER % 1,200,0007T
KS Investment and British Virginlslands/ Investment and US$1,200,000
Consultancy Limited* Hong Kong consultancy
EEREBERAA* =B 100% REERK 75 #5,000,000 7T
KWB Investment Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$5,000,000
FBEARIT (REBA) B 100% RI2 RS 7 1 5,0007T
BRAR> Hong Kong Nominees services HK$5,000
The Hongkong Chinese Bank
(Nominees) Limited*
ZERTT (E7E) BRAA" =B 100% = FEIRTS 7 ¥ 3,000,0007C
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited* Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
True Worth Investments Limited KEBERRBEE/AE 100% ®EE R A
British Virgin Islands/ Investment holding US$1
Hong Kong
BEEEBRAR" BB 100% RBRE B 27T
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited* Hong Kong Mortgage financing HK$2

BT XX5IESN
RAEEREA -

* ARFWESENHRELR

A EPRBHEARIEHRAR

7 o

* KRAREERBZMERFN9%EN - B
BR1%RAEBARE S — B L EREE

B -

ok RRRIREEFE - WP EEREPBEINI
[NECEIFEMARIHNME AT -

ZZTRFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

All of the above subsidiaries are held directly by the Company except

for those indicated below.

* Subsidiaries held indirectly by the Company.

** 99% of the shares of this subsidiary is held directly by the Company
and the remaining 1% is held indirectly through another subsidiary
of the Company.

**%  Subsidiaries held indirectly by the Company incorporated in the
PRC and were “Foreign Investment Enterprises” under the PRC

Law.
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M. BEATHESR 31. Interest in Associates
k-
The Group
—TBERE —ETNEF
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEMML e R Share of net assets 1,101,843 1,145,105
7 (FaE31(b) Goodwill (note 31(b)) 189,337 189,337
1,291,180 1,334,442
REFBEUFITEEERAREBERMATGEZEA Share of associates’ taxation for the year amounted to HK$10,129,000
AIFIE A8%10,129,0007T (ZEZMN4F (ER) © (2004 (restated): HK$4,606,000) relates to share of losses of associates.
75 #4,606,0007T) ©
FEBERRMNFBFOT - Details of the principal associates are as follows:
gl A%E )
EBEERN GEHE BERER i B BB ERTRMEE
Form of Place of Groups ATRHE  ATHE TEEH Nominal
ATEE business incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by the Principal value of
Name of company structure operation interest subsidiaries  associates activities issued shares
REEAATSERERAA EANRT Bk 50% 50% - RER K B¥28,000,0007
CITIC Capital Markets Incorporated Hong Kong Investment  HK$28,000,000
Holdings Limited holding
HEEAESERAF EANRT Bk 50% - 100%* EH4 K B¥28,000,0007C
CITIC Capital Securities Limited Incorporated Hong Kong RELEE  HK$28,000,000
TR %
Securities
brokerage and
margin financing
REAATSEERAF EARE Bk 50% - 100%* RERIT 10,000,007
CITIC Capital Markets Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Investment ~ HK$10,000,000
banking
REARHEFRAF EARE Bk 50% - 100%*  RSHMEEL %E#20,000,0007
CITIC Capital Futures Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HEREE  HKS20,000,000
AR ERE
Brokerage of
exchange-traded
futures and
options contracts
PERANKERAF EANRE EiE 50% - 100%*  IRWHSE Rpt B#15,000,0007
CITIC Frontier China Incorporated Hong Kong FEHLEER  HK$15,000,000
Research Limited Stock market
research and
advising on
securities
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N.BEATER @ 31. Interest in Associates (cont'd)

FEMEARHBARREERS - All associated companies are held indirectly by the Company.

* BH—EE50% w2 B g R RIREE RIS * Interest held by a 50% associated company, CITIC Capital Markets
ERBRAFRE - HEZCLHEEGFTARE Holdings Limited. Their results had been consolidated into the
BEARMBEREBRAFNGEEVHREK - 7 consolidated financial statements of CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
RAATE e Limited, which shown as below.

(a) EEHEATUBEREE : (@) Summary financial information on principal associates:
. it/

BE B & 2] N (§518)

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit/(loss)

BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

RIEEARTS CITIC Capital Markets
ZRR AR A A Holdings Limited
20055 2005
100% 100% 3,987,136 1,964,148 2,022,988 554,099 114,002
AEEEMEHELZ  The Group's effective interest 1,993,568 982,074 1,011,494 277,050 59,759
20044 2004
100% 100% 3,277,865 1,409,173 1,868,692 603,633 186,573
AEBMEE#EZ  The Group's effective interest 1,638,933 704,587 934,346 301,817 91,295

(b) BREGEMNRSAES MR ENR (b) Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing

R-TZRWF  WAREEARKETEROER
B+ FAERERE - M RE2(0ATE —
PHE B-TERF-A-HE AKET
BHERE - REC(EEYHRE L) FE35%
WEERER R-ZETRAF A - HBHNRG
FEBHEDEZANEERALEHE -

SHRERE

o

RITEBIERAEENES

HF o
g
"
(S

RetEBENNAKREHBEERELATEER
AEE - EEAEERARBEREDFHENY
BRE R #E’Jfﬁﬁmi%\ﬁﬂ ° iﬁ@ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
BHERNTATI03GEHE  MEBETA
A%‘ﬁéfﬁﬁiéﬁu%&%%%%?i@m%%@ o

ZZTRFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

goodwill

In 2004, positive goodwill not already recognized directly in reserves
was amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years. As explained further
in note 2(f), with effective from 1 January 2005 the Group no longer
amortizes goodwill. In accordance with the transitional provisions set
out in HKFRS 3, the accumulated amortization of goodwill as at 1 January

2005 has been eliminated against the cost of goodwill as at that date.

Goodwill is allocated to the investment banking business as cash-
generating units (CGU) of the Group.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on fair value
model. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period. The present value of the terminal
value is calculated based on the price-to-earnings (P/E) exit multiple of
10.3, which does not exceed the average P/E for the business in which
the CGU operates.
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M. BEATER ©

(b) BIEFHMENRSEESRMMRENR &)

EEBREBBERAREYMIZERNIAMNE
ERHEERNE - FIANFTINE7%RE T HE

REBOBORE

RZBERFE-ATAA  REEATSHER
BERAR(THEEATS]) SEME BMIAKE
HETBRBEEER R HEARREEMR

TEPEEBANEMERNES -

B DEEATSRATEERSBNFER
MEBARTEESFRNDAERAA ([FEEH])
KRI—REERE - ZAERF (FEEFHK
BRERZHELD  MPEEATSKRDE
BR) BEEREEATSNREEFER
F— PEEATSHREETEERSHNF
ZNBRABTEEEREAREEAR ([H1E
EHED M35%HEa - ZERMIETHME
REEATSEEEIHRAEETEMLA
AN EEL  EMNEMREEE
ARAREERERN - SEEREERIRES

PIREELTEXRTE -

ERBEAREAY  ERANKEE  A&E

EFEHERERLTESEAZEEERN -
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31.

(b)

Interest in Associates (contd)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwiill (cont’d)

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectation for market development. The discount
rate used is 9.7 %, which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant

segments.

On 16 January 2006, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings Limited (CCMH)
has announced to realign its business with other entities within the
CITIC Group, the substantial shareholder of the Company through 2
strategic moves.

Firstly, CCMH intends to form a joint venture company with CITIC
Securities Co., Ltd (CITIC Securities), a fellow subsidiary of CIFH. The
joint venture company, in which CITIC Securities will own a majority
stake with CCMH as the minority shareholder, will take over CCMH's
existing equities business. Secondly, CCMH intends to acquire 35%
interest in CITIC Trust & Investment Co. Ltd (CITIC Trust), a fellow
subsidiary of CIFH. Upon the completion of these strategic moves,
CCMH will focus on developing its principal businesses in the areas of
asset management and investment in private equity, real estate and
marketable alternative investment products, and in corporate advisory,
structured products and mezzanine financings.

In view of the restructuring has not yet committed up to the date of
this report, the Group has not taken into consideration of the
restructuring in goodwill impairment assessments.
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2. BEEE 32. Fixed Assets

(a) x%H (a) The Group
.|
The Group
5 - KB
RiktE
BEhE Hibpr Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and Pk
properties premises equipment Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAE&E : Cost or valuation:
HR2004F 1A 1H At 1 January 2004 197,261 1,408,697 675,944 2,281,902
0 Additions - - 64,003 64,003
k= Disposals (139,966) (142,627) (39,583) (322,176)
ME 3, 3 B Exchange adjustments - 60 23 83
EhAH Surplus on revaluation 7,555 - - 7,555
TR 2004F 124 31H At 31 December 2004 64,850 1,266,130 700,387 2,031,367
Lk B ERI R A The analysis of cost or
HESHWOT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
[N Cost - 1,065,686 700,387 1,766,073
(ENE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 50,704 - 50,704
— 19884 —1988 - 149,740 - 149,740
— 20044 —2004 64,850 - - 64,850
64,850 1,266,130 700,387 2,031,367
R 2005F 1A 1H At 1 January 2005 64,850 1,266,130 700,387 2,031,367
2 Additions - - 53,934 53,934
BEMYESTHE Reclassification from
other premises 35,904 - - 35,904
EMOBEEREYME Reclassification to
investment properties - (43,723) - (43,723)
EMOBERIMNEMSRR Surplus on revaluation
before reclassification - 8,174 - 8,174
EFHHE Reclassification - (8,174) - (8,174)
H & Disposals (37,900) (185,289) (137,784) (360,973)
PE 3, 3 % Exchange adjustments - (101) (6) (107)
EHAH Surplus on revaluation 2,140 - - 2,140
20055128 318 At 31 December 2005 64,994 1,037,017 616,531 1,718,542
Ll B ERI R AR The analysis of cost or
HESHOT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
5% Cost - 993,152 616,531 1,609,683
&{E Valuation
— 19855 - 1985 - 43,865 - 43,865
— 20055 - 2005 64,994 - - 64,994
64,994 1,037,017 616,531 1,718,542
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N.BEEE @ 32. Fixed Assets (cont'd)
(a) =EE (&) (a) The Group (cont'd)
AEE
The Group
R 8
. Ra%iE
wEmE HibhZ Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and Fak ]
properties premises equipment Total
BEETR EETRT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BitieE - Accumulated depreciation:
7 2004F1H1H At 1 January 2004 - 366,980 361,877 728,857
RNEEIE (HFE100) Charge for the year
(note 10(b)) - 27,235 119,164 146,399
& T g Written back on disposals - (58,725) (32,644) (91,369)
& 5 3 8 Exchange adjustments - 6 14 20
2004128 31H At 31 December 2004 - 335,496 448,411 783,907
7 2005F1H1H At 1 January 2005 - 335,496 448,411 783,907
REZHTE (K EE10(0) Charge for the year
(note 10(b)) - 22,433 90,404 112,837
& T # E Written back on disposals - (47,317) (114,813) (162,130)
o 6 i B BRI B BT 1B Write back of impairment
loss on disposals - (1,517) - (1,517)
EFOBREREME Reclassification to
investment properties - (15,422) - (15,422)
Al & #7 > %8 i #& [ Write back of impairment
VERIEN g loss on reclassification - (571) - (571)
P& N A Exchange adjustments - (14) (16) (30)
20055128 31H At 31 December 2005 - 293,088 423,986 717,074
MREEE : Net book value:
20055128 31H At 31 December 2005 64,994 743,929 192,545 1,001,468
R 2004 12 831H At 31 December 2004 64,850 930,634 251,976 1,247,460
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2. BEEE ») 32. Fixed Assets (cont'd)

(b) EAT (b) The Company
EAT
The Company
[E3/A %%E
. RigiE
BEmE HibhZ Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and Pk L]
properties premises equipment Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRASE{E : Cost or valuation:
7 2004F1H1H At 1 January 2004 99,916 158,426 11,338 269,680
2 Additions - - 229 229
& Disposals (99,916) (95,667) (8,956) (204,539)
R 2004F 124 31H At 31 December 2004 - 62,759 2,611 65,370
Lk B ERI R A The analysis of cost or
HESHWOT : valuation of the above
\ assets is as follows:
R AR Cost - 55,389 2,710 58,099
{518 — 1985%F Valuation — 1985 - 7,370 - 7,370
- 62,759 2,710 65,469
HR2005F 1A 1H At 1 January 2005 - 62,759 2,611 65,370
D Additions - - 99 99
2005128 318 At 31 December 2005 - 62,759 2,710 65,469
Lk B ERI R A The analysis of cost or
EESHOT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
5% Cost - 55,389 2,710 58,099
{t{E — 19855 Valuation - 1985 - 7,370 - 7,370
- 62,759 2,710 65,469
REtineE : Accumulated depreciation:
R 2004F1H1H At 1 January 2004 - 50,029 6,916 56,945
AEEWE Charge for the year - 2,837 856 3,693
& Written back on disposals - (46,130) (6,961) (53,091)
R 2004F 128318 At 31 December 2004 - 6,736 811 7,547
R 2005F 1A 1H At 1 January 2005 - 6,736 811 7,547
REFHE Charge for the year - 1,870 487 2,357
2005128 318 At 31 December 2005 - 8,606 1,298 9,904
IREFE : Net book value:
200551283180 At 31 December 2005 - 54,153 1,412 55,565
2004128318 At 31 December 2004 - 56,023 1,800 57,823
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2. BIEEE ») 32. Fixed Assets (cont'd)

(0 RZEZERF+-_A=+—H ' BILA26TT (c) Allinvestment properties of the Group and the Company were revalued
EEET (B8) BRARZREAFAMSEE T2 at 31 December 2005 by independent firms of surveyors, Vigers Appraisal
ZHFWA (BEAERBRNEN) EHAE & Consulting Limited on an open market value basis calculated by
RARRBINFBEREDSR - EANEHEH reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.
75 12,140,0007c 2 AWM E R P o EIEH (B The revaluation surplus amounted to HK$2,140,000 which has been
B)ERATRIREEEEREBIEMEBESEE - credited to the income statement. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
ERMEYEMERENNE@ELER - have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

with recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued.
&AW E AN S WA LT A8 3,231,0007T The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
(ZZZM4F : ¥ 11,491,0007T) ° HK$3,231,000 (2004: HK$11,491,000).
REER - HEREYEZ & EA4,641,0007T During the year, profit on disposal of investment properties amounted
ZEEPYF - F¥8,420,0007T) ° to HK$4,641,000 (2004: HK$8,420,000).
d) KREVEREOYENERDZEESTAET : (d) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and other
premises are as follows:
FEE EAT
The Group The Company
—EFLE —ETME —ETLE —ETME
2005 - 2004 2005 2004
BT BT T EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Freehold
BB R Held outside Hong Kong 37,371 38,422 2,429 2,670
HE Leasehold
HE Held in Hong Kong
—RHMAE — Long-term leases
(50F A £) (over 50 years) 96,711 300,399 - -
—FHAEE — Medium-term leases
(10% 504F) (10-50 years) 658,180 640,853 51,724 53,353
BB R Held outside Hong Kong
—HHEE — Medium-term leases
(10=504F) (10-50 years) 16,661 15,810 - -
808,923 995,484 54,153 56,023
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2. EEEE »

(e)

REBRANBE TEMPES R AT FER
H1E - MREAMMEH AR R BT ITEANRE -
AREBEARBRR-_ZEERF+-A=+—8
) E b ¥ 3 BR DR E 1 9 Bl A7 16 13,674,0007T

— TP - B¥#107,359,000T) KB
2,256,00070 (ZZZ W4 : #5#2,481,0007T) °

BRAEEHERHMETEE
AEEBBEERENTANHHRENE-F
EYENRONHER - RAME=F  HiKn
REGREFETE BRED - A LHEY
THRRBAE (ZTTME ) °

REEBAEEARCEHENREYERR
{E42%8 BB 564,994,000 (—EZTPN4F : B
64,850,0007T) ©

AREERARBRNAFREOLLHERKE
W REEEEBRMT

32.

(e)

Fixed Assets (contd)

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Company have been
revalued in previous year. The net book value of these other premises
of the Group and the Company at 31 December 2005 would have
been HK$13,674,000 (2004: HK$107,359,000) and HK$2,256,000
(2004: HK$2,481,000) respectively had they been carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with an
option to renew the leases after that date at which time all terms are

renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals (2004: Nil).
The gross carrying amounts of investment properties of the Group held

for use in operating leases were HK$64,994,000 (2004: HK$64,850,000).

The Group’s and the Company’s total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

FEE AATF
The Group The Company

—ETLE —ETME —EThE —TTNEF

2005 2004 2005 2004

BETR BT T EETR BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

1R Within 1 year 2,986 2,211 - -
149F 254 After 1 year but

within 5 years 3,105 3,528 - -

6,091 5,739 - -
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BR_TFNEREERE HE_ZTHNF

33. @8 33. Goodwill
FEE
The Group
BETRT
HK$'000
AR Cost:
72200441 A 18 At 1 January 2004 1,197,158
aik ek Written off (10,558)
7 2004F12H31H At 31 December 2004 1,186,600
72005 1A 1H At 1 January 2005 1,186,600
BV EAR T A Rt 8 Opening balance adjustment to eliminate accumulated amortization (178,851)
20055128 31H At 31 December 2005 1,007,749
St RIBEESE - Accumulated amortization and impairment losses:
A 2004F 1A 1H At 1 January 2004 119,571
RFEFZEEL T (T 10b) Amortization for the year (note 10(b)) 60,336
BEEE Impairment loss 9,502
IR Written off (10,558)
7 2004F12H31H At 31 December 2004 178,851
720051 H1H At 1 January 2005 178,851
Hi 85 2005F 1 A 1H M A A Eliminated against cost at 1 January 2005 (178,851)
20055128 31H At 31 December 2005 -
AREE : Carrying amount:
20055128 31H At 31 December 2005 1,007,749
7 2004F12H31H At 31 December 2004 1,007,749

R-ZTME - HAERERBTRIBNEIR

In 2004, positive goodwill not already recognised directly in reserves
was amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years. The amortization
TZA=T—REFENEFEREE AR
BRERAR [EAMLE T (HEE10b) ] -

of positive goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2004 was included
n “other operating expenses (note 10(b))” in the consolidated income
statement.

MM E2NE—FEE BT TRF A
—BE - AEBETHHEEE - RE(EE
MBmREER) FIRABBEMESER - R=F
ZHFE-A-AMRABELAHCEAZAN
BRI -

As explained further in note 2(f), with effect from 1 January 2005 the
Group no longer amortises goodwill. In accordance with the transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 3, the accumulated amortization of goodwill
as at 1 January 2005 has been eliminated against the cost of goodwill
as at that date.
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33. FE () 33. Goodwill (contd)
BIEHENIE S 4 & B MR R ER Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill
HED Ei*ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ‘““*ﬁf# A EERS A Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGU)
EBELMAT identified according to business segment as follows:

—ETRE

2005

BETR

HK$'000

RIERITES Commercial banking business 1,007,749

T £ 7 B ) T MO BB AR A A £
BE - BEHEREAEREAEEERS
B R B B RE A BB R B - &
REENRSRBRTHERE  AREE
R THBERS EEENEEEHHRBTY
R o

EEBREEERALAEEMIGRRNERNE

ERHEENE - FIANFTNE8%E R TE
HRAB R -

4. RITERHMERMBBHERRERE

34.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a maximum of
five-year period. Cash flow in subsequent years are estimated at zero
growth rate which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the CGU operates.

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectation for market development. The discount
rate used is 8.8% which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant

segments.

Deposits and Balances of Banks and Other
Financial Institutions

x&EH
The Group

—ETRE ZTENEF

2005 y 2004

EETR BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

1T F R AT Deposits and balances from banks 326,198 85,678
Hit e mEENTRRER Deposits and balances from

other financial institutions 3,831,248 3,470,174

4,157,446 3,555,852

ZZTRFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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5. EFEHFR 35. Deposits from Customers
FEE
The Group
—BTRE ZETNEF
2005 2004
BEFT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
h I R R ER P R Demand deposits and current deposits 4,201,868 10,204,982
HETR - Savings deposits 8,058,380 11,818,370
EH - B REHBATER Time, call and notice deposits 42,155,031 33,428,375
54,415,279 55,451,727
6. XHHRER 36. Trading Liabilities
F&EE
The Group
—TFARE —ETNEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEER Short positions in securities 217,904 -
PTETEME R TFEE (MFE55(0) Negative fair value of derivatives (Note 55(b)) 443,233 -
661,137 -
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37. ERTHERE

37. Certificates of Deposit Issued

FEH

The Group
—ETLEF e usgeS
2005 - 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEABRIEZNRMATEE Designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,785,924 -
R H® Trading — 1,379,306
ERFHHE Non-trading 4,682,037 5,580,384
7,467,961 6,959,690

TERM(EBGIEANEINRE - RZTTRF
—A—H  XEBEEXEREE1,561,857,000
TEREBEABBESIURBAFEME M
R-ZZEZMF+_A=+—H EL£4mE
EnRlo 48 A1 1,379,306,0007T & & #
177,744,000 X S AR B ERIEZZAE
A& -

R-ZBERAE+_A=1+—0 AEENEE
BEERRIHEENANSENEZEERE
150,081,2997t * EAF(EAE Tk R 2 EEEF|
REBENMELE o

38 REERRRMMBIE
(a) RAEBERANFNBES

At 1 January 2005, the Group designated on initial recognition
HK$1,561,857,000 of financial liabilities as at fair value through profit
or loss upon the adoption of HKAS 39, and these financial liabilities
were classified as trading liabilities and non-trading liabilities
at HK$1,379,306,000 and HK$177,744,000 respectively as at
31 December 2004.

At 31 December 2005, the difference between the carrying amount
and the contractual amount payable at maturity for the Group amounted
to HK$150,081,299. Such a decrease in fair value is only attributable to

changes in benchmark interest rate.

38. Income Tax in the Balance Sheet
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents

FEH
The Group
—ETRE —ZETMF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

RNEEBBENEREE
(5% 14(a))

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year (note 14(a)) 129,827 156,377

ERNEHMEH Provisional Profit Tax paid (127,548) (151,160)
2,279 5,217
A FE R FIE R ERE S Balance of Profits Tax provision relating

to prior years 46,335 58

48,614 5,275

O T HE A Provision for overseas taxation 1,864 1,171
50,478 6,446
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B NREERBERADBIE @ 38. Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (cont'd)
(b) EEE%.%E‘]ZEL*HIEQE&E% (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized
BEERNGFaEEAERPELRE (BE)/ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognized in the
B1& E’] HERRAFEZEESHUT - consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year are as
follows:
350
The Group
( NERAH HHE
fERHERA BENATR FHNLTR
HHRE {EB% fERg
Depreciation EE Fair value Fair value
allowances in REEE adjustments  adjustments
excessof  Impairment BHEE  forpoperties  foravailable: HEFEH W
related  allowances for Provisions and other for- sale Cash flow £ 4%
depreciation loans for loans assets securities hedge Others Total
BETT EET BRI BETT BRI EL S BETT EETI
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEHERE: Deferred tax arising from:
200451818 At 1 January 2004 51,047 - (89,558) (46,689) - - (2,262) (87,462)
Falaxn Chargedi(credited) to
s/ (BE) consolidated income statement (9,749) - 4725 (1,068) - - - (6,092)
20045127318 At 31 December 2004 41,298 - (84,833) (47,757) - - 2,2600) (93,554)
R20SE1R1E Att January 2005
~FIER - 3 previously reported 41,298 - (84,833) (47,757) - - (2.262) (93,554)
~EBEMIEN - opening balance adjustment in
BNEREE respect of financial instruments - (57,023) 84,833 - 78,191 (1,639) - 104,362
ER As restated 41,298 (57,03) - (47,151) 78,191 (1,639) (2,262) 10,808
FakERRA Charged!(credited) to
&/ (a) consolidated income statement (14,689) 10401 - 2526 - - 1,504 (168)
fRERHES(BE)  Charged/(credited) to reserves - - - 1389 (10403) 1639 - (7375)
R 2005128 318 At 31 December 2005 26,609 (46,622) - (43,842) 67,788 - (668) 3,265
x&E
The Group
—TFARE ZETEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EE F BERERY Net deferred tax asset recognized
FIRERIB A E on the balance sheet (42,201) (93,562)
T é F BERERY Net deferred tax liability recognized
ETRIEAE on the balance sheet 45,466 8
3,265 (93,554)
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B. REEEB/RANHKIE »

() REDZNEEHESE
HREBBB AR R AR AIEEE A {E
ARIEBRERIEENBRERTGET - ASE
B RARAWARER R BB E B RERE
BE B AE109,349,000T (ZZEZPU4E -
75 #106,225,0007T) K& #50,581,0007T (=&
T IO B 26,260,0007T) © RIEBR TG IE
Bl ZEHEBEMNIHBNOT :

38. Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (contd)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

The Group and the Company have not recognized deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$109,349,000 (2004
HK$106,225,000) and HK$50,581,000 (2004: HK$26,260,000)
respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Under the current tax legislation, the expiry dates of the tax
losses were as follows:

FEH
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
5 A E 2R Expiring within 5 years 50,026 65,739
mEE A No expiry date 59,323 40,486
109,349 106,225
39. EEFIBATIRIE 39. Amounts Due to Subsidiaries
EAT

The Company

—ETRE —EEF

2005 - 2004

BETT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hin B & Other liabilities 223 224
SR ENGIRES Placement from a subsidiary 1,395,922 1,399,384
1,396,145 1,399,608
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40. EBTEBRESH

40. Debt Securities Issued

X&EH
The Group
—ETRE —ETMF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETEKES Debt securities issued 2,245,435 2,322,798

EBEFERER _ZTWF+— A+ LR
EEBETFRERRAD%NERE  HEERE
BIET c REATEREETRERTESR
FEE  BEFPOREERORT - REHR

—EEAS+—A+LAHH-

41. EEITOUBRKRES
RZBE=F+-A/\A  ARARS

1B8—
K H) 2 & MY B8 A & CIFH(CB- |)L|m|ted§;i§”i¢ B R
B0.25%MEERIBBRES ([EFH]) - HE
EAESI1S8EL - AR GEKEGFLTEEE

WHELESNMERNSEELER -

F—EFFEABEN-ZZZMNF—A+/\H
FUBEEZTENF+—A/\HALLENRA
HEGRAE®42697T @ RIB—BRARFIEE
BEAITZEBR - AARARZZENSF
+Z A\ B AR S h0FEA F) SR 48 850 [0l i Lk
BEH - BBEITEFFENBEHAIEAZE—

BA% -
EEBOREZERTDPHAFEBENRES
2@¢+ A=-+=8" %%%ﬁ% EH
BHBAHETE -
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41.

The debt securities represent 4.25% per annum notes with face value
of US$300million issued at discount on 17 November 2004. The notes
were issued by CKWB and constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured
obligations of CKWB. The notes will mature on 17 November 2009.

Convertible Bonds Issued

CIFH (CB-I) Limited, a single purpose wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, issued 0.25% per annum Guaranteed Convertible Bonds
("Bonds”) with face value of US$180 million on 8 December 2003.
The Company unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees all amounts
payable under the Bonds.

Each Bond, at the option of the holder, is convertible on or after
18 January 2004 upto and including 8 November 2008 into fully paid
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$1.00 of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$4.269 per share. The Bonds can be
redeemed at their principal amount together with accrued interest on
8 December 2008. The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds have

been used for general corporate purposes of the Group.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the date of waiver of the cash settlement
option on 23 December 2004.

FEEBR S RIERBR2AR  CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BESONAFEESARMESR - RIFER

iﬁﬂllﬁ’ﬂ#—f?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁi%%' KEtE - BfER

PR o BB iR EBE  BERKRRERTH
AR E S — $ -E? DB (HEE45)

EEEERBRBERNTRBRESFTENT

. Convertible Bonds Issued (cont'a)

The fair values of the liability component, included in long-term
borrowings, was calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. The residual amount, representing the value of
the equity conversion component, is included in shareholders’ equity in
Convertible Bond - equity component reserve (note 45).

The convertible bonds recognized in the balance sheet is calculated as

follows:

—ETAhF

2005

BETRT

HK$'000

ABmRESFMNEEE Face value of convertible bonds 1,399,384
Zié m B Equity component (133,027)
REB & F| Retained earnings (7,658)

H2005F 1A 1H B X FERFR Liability component on initial recognition

BEHD at 1 January 2005 1,258,699
FEZH Interest expense 37,731
[RESEES! Interest paid (3,499)
ENZEE Exchange difference (3,114)
H2005F 12A31MHM AR Liability component at 31 December 2005 1,289,817
—ETENEF

2004

BT T

HK$'000

AR E & Convertible bonds 1,399,384

RBREFAESINEEERBREI NN
FEE BEFONEXLRRABTRMNELE
BHABBOEAEENE298%1E  #E
ZETRF+ A=+t HIEFEMFEZE
A8 #37,731,0000T - —EZHENEERDHN
F B & 7 #3,499,0007T °

BENEAEERABELNERERESTHA
ARATEOAEERE - SLERNERBLRET
AEMBEEATRKE  WEANBEEENH
N

ZZTRFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The carrying amount of the liability component of the convertible bonds
reflects its current fair value. Interest expense on the bonds is calculated
using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 2.98% to the liability component and for the year end
31 December 2005 amounted to HK$37,731,000. The actual interest
paid in 2005 was HK$3,499,000.

The Bonds are embedded with an early redemption option by the Group
and an early redemption option by the bondholders. The values of the
embedded call and put feature are interdependent and have not been
accounted for separately from the host debt.
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42. {g 538 k=t &

AEBEHZRE -BRAEHRRERF B (B
RAREHELD) - Bl AEBEALHERNRER
AHFR10%NHERBAEES A - ZRINAIR
—fAREE R REE  REBEERAEED
MAEZRBES - EREBAFEREREK - MR
BEEGEESE2BENABEFAARE  AKET
SR B R ENHRAER DR B HEGR
MEBEBERBA-—EBINRNES - F

RZBERFTERENERNE -

BT RIS AREE —TTTF+ A
—Hi - b2E-ARAREDITE - BRE
LiRBIRHEAIEE - ARECRERES

FERERESRBH B WREF -

RNEFR  AEARBEEAEEROHRKO S
73,8008 7L (ZEZTWM4F : B 3,6008 1)

(MEE10G0) °

43. LLR% 19 1E 1
DR E BB RS

RZZBZ=FHAA+RA  ARAHEKPEE
B 2 R IO PR A R A A A St B (13 A8 A i =t
2 YRABELEARTR-NAARF=ZA=
THRRANDRITIRABBRE S ([EER
‘A - BERERESIANGXNEERS
TREBAKAER - EABBITEE B
IR _ETRF=—A T NAKLANEREZ

BERE/R -

KEER  ARFAREREEEBIES I E
AR - MR B AT 81X KRB RE
BRHRETAHRARE - E LB RS
—HATE  BEERTHHRATEFRL -
BOBRERTHAEARE - BRAQFAEEK

R

180

42, Staff Retirement Scheme

43.

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme (the
"Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is an MPF exempted
scheme and covers all permanent full-time employees of the Group.
No employee contributions are required. Contributions forfeited by
leavers prior to vesting fully may not be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution but are transferred to a separate welfare
fund which shall be applied for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme’s

members.

Besides the Retirement Scheme, the Group also participated in an
approved MPF scheme effective on 1 December 2000 to provide scheme
choice to both existing and new employees. Mandatory benefits are
being provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$38 million
(2004: HK$36 million) (note 10(a)) to these schemes.

Share-based Payments

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 16 May 2003, the Company adopted The CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme (the “New Option
Scheme”) and, at the same time, terminated the Senior Executive Share
Option Scheme (the “Old Option Scheme”) which was adopted by the
Company on 30 March 1995. The provisions of the Old Option Scheme
remained in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect
to the exercise of all options granted prior to the termination of the Old
Option Scheme on 29 March 2005.

There were no option granted under the Old Option Scheme during
the year. As for the options granted under the New Option Scheme,
there is a vesting period of two years starting from the date of grant
and these options will then remain exercisable until the tenth anniversary
day from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. Share-based Payments (cont'd)
Equity settled share-based transactions (cont'd)

() IRFBHTHE RO A 315 T A0 BB G IARX
W) 320 B0 RR R R AT

(a)

7aNE==}

7] B

The terms and conditions of the options, which will be settled by
physical delivery of shares, granted under the New Option Scheme

are as follows:

BRFEH/ERFREEHE
Date of grant/number BREYRE ARGEHE BRESHEY
of employees entitled Number of options Vesting conditions Contractual life of options
R 20035 11 4178 [[1273% 6,758,000 BT BB 24 BT BB 105
BEBALE THERE 2 years from the 10 years from the
Options granted to 273 eligible persons date of grant date of grant
on 17 November 2003
720044 4 4 6 [112937 - -
BERAEE TERE 7,412,000 BT BB 24 BT B #1065
Options granted to 293 eligible persons 2 years from the 10 years from the
on 6 April 2004 date of grant date of grant
#2005 68 13H 42757 - \ - ‘
BERALE TER®E 6,800,000 M T HHREE25 BT A #1065

Options granted to 275 eligible persons
on 13 June 2005

2 years from the
date of grant

10 years from the
date of grant

(b) FBEREE RMETHTEENT (b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

are as follows:

R-FTLE R-FEME R-ZBE=F
ER TR E ER TR E ER TR E
Share options granted Share options granted Share options granted
in 2005 in 2004 in 2003
iEELY iEFLY miEEY
fiEE BRERE TEE BRERE fTEE BRERE
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average  Number of average  Number of
exercise price options exercise price options exercise price options
(&% (1)) (&% () (&% (7))
HK$ HK$ HK$
REHARTE  Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - 3775 6,544,000 3540 5,718,000
REFDRM  Forfeited during the year - (316,000) - (1,220,000) - (1,102,000)
REFBE  Exercised during the year - - = = = =
AEEEET  Granted during the year 2925 6,800,000 - - - -
RELKLRITHE  Outstanding at the end of the year 2925 6,484,000 3775 5,324,000 3540 4,616,000
RELLAITE  Exercisable at the end of the year 216,000 216,000 4,616,000
RoBERE+-—A=+—0  ®TENH The options outstanding at 31 December 2005 have the exercise

BRENTEENFEE2925TEEE
37757 - MEFHENFHR/I0EF -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

prices fall within the range of HK$2.925 to HK$3.775 and a
weighted average contractual life of 10 years.
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43.

LR 3 E 11

43. Share-based Payments (cont'd)

DIRHEEAHRRRZS (&) Equity settled share-based transactions (cont'd)
(0 BEREOATFEERRR (0)
METEREMERBHATEERLS
ERTHERENRTEENE - KTER
BN AT EEGBTRBE=EIEXGE -
REEEA AR E N ERES L) F

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a trinomial model. The 10 years

B10F - contractual life of the option is used as an input into this model.
NR-ETRE R-FTWE R-ET=F
~A+=H A7 H +—HA++tH
EEFH EEFH EEFH
e R i e R i e R HE
For options For options For options
granted on granted on granted on
13 June 2005 6 April 2004 17 November 2003
REtERENAFEE Fair value at measurement date HK$0.653 HK$1.248 HK$0.835
% & Share price HK$2.925 HK$3.775 HK$3.475
1IfE(B Exercise price HK$2.925 HK$3.775 HK$3.540
TEHEB R (A =ERNERX  Expected volatility (expressed
ERREERT) as volatility used in the
trinomial model) 24.30% 34.00% 24.00%
i R 4 <F 2 Option life 104F Years 104F Years 104F Years
TEERE (FEER) Expected dividends (continuous Yield) 3.84% 3.71% 3.71%
ERR A (RBE T Risk-free interest rate (based on HKD
BREAFEEFE) government bond Yield) 3.22% 4.07% 4.34%

TEHA &Eﬂiﬁlﬁﬁkzﬁﬁ EE’Q\%E HEBEEITH The expected volatility is based on the implied volatilities of our own

issued convertible bond on the specified dates.

BRERRERBGE R GIRTABME) 3F
MSRBEFET -

Share options are granted under a service condition and, for grants to

personnel, a non-market performance condition.
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DIRE&EFHEBEHRXS
AABNEEWNB AR ERZERITER AT
([PEZEE])  MESAREERARAREE
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43. Share-based Payments (cont'd)

Cash settled share-based transactions

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited ("CKWB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has offered Equity Linked Deferred Award (the “ELDA")
to the eligible employees of CKWB and certain directors of the Company
(the “Eligible Persons”) whereby the Eligible Persons will receive cash
benefit on the specified maturity date, being the earlier of the second
calendar anniversary of the offer date and the date of retirement. The
amount of cash benefit to be received by the Eligible Persons on the
maturity date shall be calculated by multiplying the number of ordinary
shares of the Company notionally subject to ELDA by the lower of:

1. the result obtained by subtracting the ELDA price per share from
the closing price of the ordinary share of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the maturity
date; and

2. HK$3.00.

The Eligible Persons are not entitled to receive any payment pursuant to
the ELDA if the closing price of the ordinary share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the maturity
date falls below the ELDA price. No ordinary shares of the Company
will be allotted or transferred to the Eligible Persons upon the maturity
of the ELDA.

The detailed terms of the ELDA offered to the Eligible Persons are as

follows:
ELDA R-BTAFE+_A=+—H
BkikRE ELDAFT R iy T i@ iR 21 B
ELDA price Number of ordinary
per share shares notionally
R¥EH (% () subject to ELDA
Offer date (HKS$) as at 31 December 2005
2004F 48 16H
16 April 2004 2.55 3,925,398
2005 3 H24H
24 March 2005 2.00 6,051,530
4HEE - Total: 9,976,928
“ZTHFFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2005 183
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43. IR E 43. Share-based Payments (cont'd)
DIREEFHRHBRS (&) Cash settled share-based transactions (contd)
ELDAM R FEEUNEEITAR  HEERA The fair value of the ELDA is limited to HK$3.00, which is the maximum
AREBEHEZENESR B - cash benefit to be received by the Eligible Persons on the maturity date.

EEXH Employee expenses
—ETLE —TTNEF
2005 y 2004
BETRT BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(a) MIRIEEFERGBRR S (a) Equity settled share-based transactions
MR 20034F B & F 09 I A% 1 Share options granted in 2003 1,748 2,018
R 20044F B % T Y RE AL 1 Share options granted in 2004 3,194 2,290
F 20054 2 #% T oY & AR & Share options granted in 2005 854 -
ERAREERANBT Total expense recognized as employee costs
(P 5E10(a) (note 10(a)) 5,796 4,308
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
BETT BB T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(b) UMIREEFRHKRRES (b) Cash settled share-based transactions
R2004F B Bfé T HIELDA ELDA granted in 2004 4,236 4,221
720054 £ % T K ELDA ELDA granted in 2005 4,793 -
LBESENZSHEEN Total carrying amount of cash-settled
@ BRmEE (Mt 3E10() transaction liabilities (note 10(a)) 9,029 4,221
44. g X 44. Share Capital
(a) EERBBITRA (a) Authorised and issued share capital
—ETEE —ZETEF
2005 - 2004
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EERE Authorised:
GREEE 17T 8 38R 6,000,000,000/% 6,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 6,000,000 6,000,000
EBTRHAERE: Issued and fully paid:
MW1A1A At 1 January:

SREEES 1T L E3,194,153,1515% 3,194,153,151 (2004: 3,189,835,394)

(20044 : 3,189,835,394%) ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,194,153 3,189,835
BRERBRETEZTHORG Share issued under the Old Option Scheme 3,706 4,318
R12A318 : At 31 December:

GREAESE 17Tr T EA%3,197,859,3758% 3,197,859,375 (2004: 3,194,153,151)

(20044 : 3,194,153,151}%) ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,197,859 3,194,153
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44. X @) 44, Share Capital (cont'd)
(b) REEBRIBRKRITENBRERER (b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
balance sheet date

HE-STIE

+ZA=+—-H BE-TTEFE R-FTIE N-FTENHE

FETHEBRE +t—A=t-B +=B=+-B +=-BA=+-H

PENRNEE EEEANM RITHER RITIEM
Number of fElREHE EREYE fERERE

shares acquired Number of Number of Number of
fTiE® on exercise of options options options
Exercise FERRHEH H options for the  lapsed for the outstanding outstanding
price  Number of RPHE T ELE year ended year ended as at as at
R¥aH (% () option Vesting Exercisable 31December  31December  31December 31 December
Date of grant (HKS) granted period period 2005 2005 2005 2004
ERRER
The Old Option Scheme
17/08/1999 2.217 19,600,000 - 31/10/1999 - 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000
29/03/2005
28/03/2000 1.758 1,700,000 - 31/03/2000 - 500,000 = - 500,000
29/03/2005
10/08/2000 2.198 700,000 - 11/08/2001 - - 100,000 - 100,000
29/03/2005
28/02/2002 1.620 44,813 - 28/02/2002 - - 203 - 203
29/03/2005
28/02/2002 2.217 481,743 - 28/02/2002 - 268,880 - - 268,880
29/03/2005
28/02/2002 1.758 74,688 - 28/02/2002 - 37,344 - - 37,344
29/03/2005
28/02/2002 2.198 26,141 - 28/02/2002 - - 4,203 - 4,203
29/03/2005
MR g2
The New Option Scheme
17/11/2003 3,540 6,758,000 17/11/2003 - 17/11/2005 - - 1,102,000 4,616,000 5,718,000
16/11/2005 16/11/2013
06/04/2004 3775 7,412,000 06/04/2004 - 06/04/2006 - - 1,220,000 5,324,000 6,544,000
05/04/2006 05/04/2014
13/06/2005 2,925 6,800,000 13/06/2005- 13/06/2007 - - 316,000 6,484,000 -
12/06/2007 12/06/2015
43,597,385 3,706,224 2,742,406 16,424,000 16,072,630
B BRERTRHE ARNRE - RARFW Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in
LR - EEERENE - S EHR TR the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 43 to
~MIFE43 - the financial statements.
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45, i 45. Reserves
(i) x%£H () The Group
BERFATRFES
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Hin ¥
EfhfkE THRES
B fh i Other AF -ERBS BRERE
RGHE BAHE —RHEE  Exchange property ([EEFHE HHEE Convertible Share REBHH
Share Capital  General differences revaluation Fairvalue  Hedging bond-equity option  Retained k]
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve component reserve profits Total

ERTR  ERTR EETR BRTR ENTR RRTR ERTR ERTR BMTR EETR BRTR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

200451518 At1January 2004
—maE R ~as previously
reported 1,831,406 2,818 100,000 (597) 11,945 - - - - 2676363 4,621,935
—RIEEREMER - prior period
—(FEgH adjustments

H8) 5285 in respect of
- HKAS 28 - - - - - - - - - 4,754 4,754
EL As restated 1,831,406 2,818 100,000 (597) 11,945 - - - - 2,681,117 4,626,689
KERBR Share premium on
RAMEE shares issued
during the year 4,542 - - - - - - - - - 4,542
BEMEREZSE  Exchange difference
on translation - - - 283 - - - - - - 283
MR EER AR Equity settled share-
2% (2H) based transactions
(restated) - - - - - - - - 4308 - 4,308
BR%EEEEBRE  Dividends paid in
(H &£ 16(b)) respect of the
previous year
(note 16(b)) - - - - - - - - - (201,138)  (201,138)
REFHR Profit for the year
(E®) (restated) - - - - - - - - - 903925 903,925
BERRIKE Dividends declared
AEERE and paid in respect
of the current year - - - - - - - - - (210,759)  (210,759)

H2004F 128318 At 31 December 2004
(%) (restated) 1,835,948 2,818 100,000 3

4) 11,945 - - - 4308 3,173,145 5,127,850
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45. Reserves (cont'd)

() =%RE@® (i) The Group (cont'd)
BERAATRFER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Rt
EftfE BEL
B R e Other AF -EGHs BRERE
RipiiE AAEHE  —BREE  Exchange  property  EfEfEE  HibEE  Convertible Share  REBEH
Share Capital General differences revaluation  Fairvalue  Hedging bond-equity option  Retained e
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  component reserve profits Total
BETL  BETR  BETR O E%TR BETR  BETR  A%Tn  BETRn BETR O EETn AETn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
200551718 At1 January 2005
- WA ER - as previously reported 1,835,948 2,818 100,000 (314) 11,945 - - - - 3,165,805 5,116,202
“HEEFEHAR - prior period
—(BEgH adjustments
EAE%  inrespect of
- HKAS 28 - - - - - - - - - 4,754 4,754
—(BREH
BERADEIR  -HKRRS2 - - - - - - - - 4,308 2,586 6,894
55 FEE As restated, before
BEHIE opening balance
adjustments 1,835,948 2,818 100,000 (314) 11,945 - - - 4308 3,173,145 5,127,850
(ke
£H)E32
12393 -HKAS 32 & 39 - - - - - 368,612 (7,725) 133,027 - 144,902 638,816
EH - AEHY  Asrestated, after opening
HHAE balance adjustments 1,835,948 2,818 100,000 (314) 11,945 368,612 (7,725) 133,027 4308 3,318,047 5,766,666
AEEBEA Share premium on shares
B EE issued during the year 4,264 - - - - - - - - - 4,264
REEHE Revaluation surplus,
CERERE S net of deferred tax - - - - 6,785 - - - - - 6,785
FriEg e AR Share of share option
BRERR reserve of associates - - - - - - - - 6,500 - 6,500
kg e AR Share of fair value
NTEERE reserve of associates - - - - - 2,89 - - - - 2,894
HEREL Transfer to retained
ZREET profits upon disposal - - - - (12,180) - - - - 12,180 -
BREMER Exchange difference
8 on translation - - - 337 - - - - - - 337
HEBRENT Release on disposal
3l of an associate - - - 627 - - - - - - 627
IARIEE T Equity settled share-
B2 5 based transactions - - - - - - - - 5,796 - 5,79
A ER S Available-for-sale securities
-pFEE - change in fair value - - - - - (59,442) - - - - (59,442)
—EERE - deferred tax - - - - - 10,403 - - - - 10,403
Renmedn Cash flow hedge
-ATEE — effective portion of
HERSH changes in fair value - - - - - - 9,364 - - - 9,364
—EERE — deferred tax - - - - - - (1,639) - - - (1,639)
| Exchange difference on
translation of borrowings - - - - - - - (329 - - (329)
Dividends paid in respect
of the previous year
(3 16(0) (note 16(b)) - - - - - - - - - (239,839)  (239,839)
REEEF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 103395 1,103,395
BERRRE Dividends declared
REERE and paid in respect
of the current year - - - - - - - - - (361,358)  (361,358)
1220058128 318 At 31 December 2005 1,840,212 2,818 100,000 3,684 6,550 322,467 - 132,698 16,604  3,832425 6,257,458
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45, iE1E &)

45. Reserves (cont'd)

(i) &A7 (i) The Company
BEREATRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
MBIRERE
%t it 8 Share REBiRH
Share option Retained Fak )
premium reserve profits Total
BETT BETT BETRT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
200451818 At 1 January 2004 1,831,406 - 999,395 2,830,801
KEEBEITROH Share premium on shares issued
i (B during the year 4,542 - - 4,542
LARR#E (B B RR 19 Equity settled share-based
R5(ER) transactions (restated) - 4,308 - 4,308
BIREEFERE Dividends paid in respect
(M &E16(b)) of the previous year (note 16(b)) - - (201,138) (201,138)
REEHEF (ER) Profit for the year (restated) - - 449,980 449,980
BEERREERNFERS Dividends declared and paid in respect
of the current year - - (210,759) (210,759)
7200412318 (EH) At 31 December 2004 (restated) 1,835,948 4,308 1,037,478 2,877,734
$ 20056 1A 18 At 1 January 2005
— A0 AT & 3R — as previously reported 1,835,948 - 1,038,074 2,874,022
—RFEERAE @R — prior period adjustments in
— (BRI BREER) respect of
F25% — HKFRS 2 - 4,308 (596) 3,712
R As restated 1,835,948 4,308 1,037,478 2,877,734
KEEBEAROERE Share premium on shares issued
during the year 4,264 - - 4,264
UREEBRORNR S Equity settled share-based
transactions - 5,796 - 5,796
BREEFERE Dividends paid in respect
(M3 16(b)) of the previous year (note 16(b)) - - (239,839) (239,839)
REE T Profit for the year - - 551,442 551,442
BEERRERERNFERS Dividends declared and paid in respect
of the current year - - (361,358) (361,358)
2005%12A 318 At 31 December 2005 1,840,212 10,104 987,723 2,838,039
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45, Reserves (contd)
(iii) Nature and purpose of reserves

(@

(b)

©

(@)

(e)

W)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by section
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in notes 2(r).

Other property revaluation reserve

The other property revaluation reserve is not available for distribution
to shareholders because it does not constitute realised profits within
the meaning of section 79B(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair
value of available-for-sale securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(g).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative
net change in the fair value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for cash flow hedges
in note 2(i).

Convertible bond-equity component

The convertible bond-equity component comprises the fair value of the
equity conversion component of the convertible bond issued that were
determined at the date of waiver of the cash settlement option on
23 December 2004.
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45.

(iii)
)

(h

(iv)

Reserves (contd)
Nature and purpose of reserves (cont’d)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share based payment in note 43.

Included in the share option reserve is an amount of HK$6,500,000
(2004: Nil) being the share option reserve attributable to one of the
associate, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings Limited, under its own “Share
Option Scheme”.

Retained profits

In accordance with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the “HKMA")
guideline “Impact of the New Hong Kong Accounting Standards on
Authorised Institutions’ Capital Base and Regulatory Reporting”, the
Group has earmarked a “Regulatory Reserve” of HK$233,800,000
(2004 Nil) from retained profits as at 31 December 2005.

Included in the retained profits is an amount of HK$ 445,954,000 (2004
(restated): HK$465,243,000) being the retained profits attributable to
associates.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2005, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$987,723,000 (2004 (restated): HK$1,037,478,000). After the
balance sheet date the directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.060
per ordinary share (2004: HK$0.075). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



46. LR 46. Minority Interests
FEH
The Group

—EFAhEF —ETME

2005 2004

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

7 2005F1H1H At 1 January 2005 - 191
NEE R A E QT Associates acquired during the year 78 -
Hh Others 413 -
N4 S A Profit for the year 45 (370)
ARFEELHEWES A A Disposal of subsidiaries during the year = 179
#2005 12 A31H As 31 December 2005 536 -

47. B E AR 47. Loan Capital
FEE
The Group

—EFAhEF —ETME

2005 2004

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEZE Subordinated notes 4,352,351 4,275,896

BEZEEIRPER ST —F-ARAET
FREIGNNEEREE  HEEAZSD
3B MERZEE-_FHA -+ =HHIT
FREIID%HKAKERE  HEEAES
25T - ZERB S FIBPERERABE—H
MM E2EHAWEB 2B CKWB (Cayman
Islands) Ltd 52 CKWH-UT2 LtdZ% 7T & 51| fE 55 — 4%
BN PlemESM/EHI R \A“?itmé##
EEEENMERNSEEDER - 8
7.625%5’9&{5\%}5%%*?**@{HﬁEIi‘J
B MEBERIND%BHKABEZBEHRN_-F
— T F A CKWH-UT2 LtdiE [T -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The notes represents 7.625% per annum subordinated notes with face
value of US$300 million issued on 5 July 2001 and 9.125% per annum
perpetual subordinated notes with face value of US$250 million issued
on 23 May 2002. The notes were issued by CKWB (Cayman Islands)
Ltd and CKWH-UT2 Ltd respectively, two separate single purpose wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group and qualify as tier 2 capital. The Group
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees all amounts payable under
the notes. The 7.625% per annum subordinated notes will mature on
5 July 2011 whereas the 9.125% per annum perpetual subordinated
notes will be callable by the CKWH-UT2 Ltd in 2012.
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48. & R &% {HIEH

48. Cash and Cash Equivalents

XEE
The Group
—ETRE — TN
2005 2004
BETIT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
() HFEHERERANRE (i)  Components of cash and cash equivalents
FReEEEXBIEE in the consolidated cash flow statement
BE RERTR Cash and balances with banks and
Hi e BEBnEs other financial institutions 1,161,309 1,488,919
ERITRAM S RKE Placements with banks and other financial
MER(ARREIMA institutions with original maturity within
3MEAAER) three months 4,702,768 6,565,590
HEZIEHEE Held-to-maturity investments
—EE#H(ERRIEHB — Treasury bills with original maturity
3@ ARER) within three months 148,201 -
6,012,278 8,054,509
(iy HHGEEEAGBRZ (i Reconciliation with the
HIEX consolidated balance sheet
Re MERTR Cash and balances with banks and
Hiv e BEENERT other financial institutions 1,161,309 1,488,919
TERITREMSBKER Placements with banks and
TR other financial institutions 5,265,044 6,822,355
HEZIEHEE Held-to-maturity investments
-BEH — Treasury bills 247,669 398,823
FEBEBBERN Amount shown in the
H consolidated balance sheet 6,674,022 8,710,097
B REEREERE3E AL Less: Amounts with an original maturity
i of over three months (661,744) (655,588)
FeRenERkANE &K Cash and cash equivalents in the
ReEEER consolidated cash flow statement 6,012,278 8,054,509
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49. SHERBEOMNEE

UTEERBESHEERED

49,

Assets Subject to Sale and Repurchase Transactions
The following assets and liabilities are subject to sale and repurchase
transactions:

FEE
The Group
—ETLE —ETME
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAFEED KR ERIEH Included in held-to-maturity investments 2,205,403 2,909,158
BERARZHEBEEREF Included in trading assets 462,254 -
2,667,657 2,909,158
ERAERITREM S REESN Included in deposits and balances of banks
FRREEFHREH and other financial institutions 2,665,226 3,113,297
50. A{EIRIFREE 50. Assets Pledged as Security

NTEECREAT BEMNER

The following assets have been pledged as security for own liabilities:

.
The Group
—ETLE —TENEF
2005 y 2004
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHROEE . Assets pledge:
Be RERITRAEM Cash and balances with banks and
CRIEENETT other financial institutions 3,729 441
BHEERHKE Held-to-maturity investments 77,528 77,714
81,257 78,155

RZZEZERE+-_A=+—H  BEERNE
EREERRTEEERERE  PEARRT

TR ERMERBHIEEFTR

RZZBZEMFE+_RA=+—H  BEERNHE
EfEfR rERaBERE P EARRT

HEEER -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

As at 31 December 2005, the assets pledged represented statutory
deposits pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency in the
USA, the People’s Bank of China in the PRC and the Monetary Authority
of Macao.

As at 31 December 2004, the assets pledged represented statutory

deposits pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency in the
USA and the People’s Bank of China in the PRC.
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51. EXFEANTERX S
BREFBRREMBOBENRL S REEHI -
AREEETTUANERBEAMLERS

51

HREEAFHRS

REER  AEBEEEAERITERBEH A
BEANTETTZERZS - HPEHREER -
BEXLERRAZRER  2HEBESER - FRE
TRGMINER S - ELEXHHNEHEELR
REBRETRZEHNABT SN EME - L8
REGAEBEMR ST REPNEHRAER -
EERR BLERXHRREFEEGIET -

(a) (a)

194

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions.

Transactions with group companies

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
related parties, in the ordinary course of its banking business including,
inter alia, lending, the acceptance and placement of inter-bank deposits,
participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions and
foreign exchange transactions. The contracts were priced based on
relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and were under
the same terms as those available to other counterparties and customers
of the Group. In the opinion of the directors, these transactions were

conducted on normal commercial terms.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



5. EXFAEALXRS @) 51. Material Related Party Transactions (contd)
() HEBEATNXS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (cont'd)
REERN  BEAARINEHELRRNEERD The amount of related-party transactions during the year and
HERET outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
F
The Group
REERAT FEX P HEAT
Ultimate holding company Fellow subsidiaries Associates
“EBRE _—_TTNF ZFFTRE _—TTNF ZBEAE _—TITNF
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
BETT BETFT BRI BETFT BETT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHA Interest income - 3 7,474 6,774 5,936 1,268
FE Interest expense (5,719) (3,411) (37,625) (13,207) (11,820) (659)
NS ON Other operating income - - - 72 16,799 20,214
mETH Operating expenses (1,000) (1,248) (1) (5) (10,029) (2,043)
BZE12A31B1EFE  Forthe year ended 31 December (6,719) (4,656) (30,152) (6,366) 886 18,780
EREE Lending activities:
®1A18 At 1 January - - 299,326 612,858 134,187 19,449
R12A318 At 31 December - - 369,418 299,326 200,000 134,187
AEETHEE Average for the year - - 391,829 365,358 171,171 31,843
Hith FEU AR IE Other receivables:
®1A18 At 1 January - - 9,189 21 10,320 1,276
R12A318 At 31 December - - 4,805 9,189 10,810 10,320
AEEFHEE Average for the year - - 3,130 2,313 45,481 10,820
BRER: Acceptance of deposits:
R1A18 At 1 January 190,667 529,348 1,114,919 1,107,519 1,383,378 580,988
®12A318 At 31 December 72,392 190,667 2,219,663 1,114,919 876,868 1,383,378
RAEEFHEE Average for the year 229,389 420,469 1,536,503 1,312,932 1,089,156 855,957
Hib e AR Other payables:
R1A18 At 1 January 9 16 385 1,039 20 1,940
®12A318 At 31 December - 9 1,383 385 2,452 20
RAEEFHEE Average for the year 40 34 914 414 733 66

W B 5 B AL B R R AT R B E R -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

No impairment allowances was made in respect of the above loans to

and placements with related parties.
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5. EXFAEALXRS @) 51. Material Related Party Transactions (cont'd)
(a) HEBEATNXS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (cont'd)
AAT
The Company
REAERAT
Ultimate holding company
—EThF —ETME
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TN Other operating income (1,000) (998)
by TETEAEMNE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TEEBRAEME  BEMNZIAEER Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid
NFPARBDESHFTERMFI2AERED to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 11 and certain of the
NTPETHESFHEENHRIE 4T ! highest paid employee as disclosed in note 12, are as follows:
AEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
% HIE B 1@ A Short-term employee benefits 47,160 49,026
BB 1212 A Post-employment benefits 2,545 2,721
RIEFE S Termination benefits - 754
LARR D E Share-based payments 2,627 2,138
52,332 54,639
B 2%EE BIEEES TRA (MsE10)° Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 10).
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(0 EETEASESHE
REFERN REEEATREEEREERAF
NEEEBEAERBEENORRERE RAR
SR RSB AP ENDTIRRIEERE -
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51. Material Related Party Transactions (cont'd)

(c) Credit facilities to key management personnel
During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close family
members and companies controlled or significantly influenced by them.
The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course of business
and on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions
with persons of a similar standing or, where applicable, with other

employees.
FEE
The Group
—EFAhEF —ETME
2005 2004
BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
B1A1H W& & Balance at 1 January 3,604 11,301
M12A31H As at 31 December 18,100 3,604
EmiERBE Maximum amount during the year 24,865 21,061

(d) THABER

(d) Loans to officers

REEBREZEEBCRAMED F 161BIEH BT Loans to officers of the Group disclosed pursuant to section 161B of
ABWERHOT the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
FEH
The Group
—ETAhEF —ETME
2005 2004
EETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RI12A31TAARE Aggregate amount of relevant loans
REMNEBBER made by the Group outstanding
HEREEE at 31 December 1,903 2,010
REEANARE Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
RHUMNERER loans made by the Group outstanding
BeiERERE during the year 2,670 2,630

2005612 A31H » WEBIHmMAEZFE
R ERELERIRBER -

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

There was no interest due but unpaid nor any provision made against
these loans as at 31 December 2005.
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52. HEKMEBAE 52. Disposal of a Subsidiary
(a) HEFEHE (a) Net liabilities disposed
xEE
The Group
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HERERITR Cash and balances with banks and
EmemEEmngs other financial institutions = 9,198
EFERFR K Advances to customers and other accounts
HAb IR IR less provisions = 1,003
BICEE & E Tangible fixed assets - 794
BAITRIA Current taxation = (160)
HaRIBE R %EE Other accounts and provisions = (11,553)
DHIRRE R Minority interests = 179
FAaLE 3 Net liabilities = (539)
BB A JUF R A Net profit on disposal of a subsidiary = 865
WRIE SRR Total sales price received, satisfied in cash - 326
(b) HEMBATERMRERREFEHIER (b) Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
mEFEESW respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
x*&E
The Group
—ETLE — TN
2005 2004
BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ReRE Cash consideration - 326
Be RERITR Cash and balances with banks and
EmemBENET other financial institutions = (9,198)
- (8,872)
198 B S RER AR AR CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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53.

Financial Risk Management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its
management and control of risks, in particular, the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk: loss resulting from client or counterparty default and
arises on credit exposure in all forms, including settlement risk.

- Market risk: exposure to market variables such as interest rates,
exchange rates and equity markets.

- Liquidity and funding risk: the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing basis,
to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured, or even secured
basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed
commitments.

- Operational risk: risk arising from matters such as non-adherence
to systems and procedures or from frauds resulting in financial or
reputation loss.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse
these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
the risks and limits continually by means of reliable and up-to-date
management and information systems. The Group continually modifies
and enhances its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and best practice risk management
processes. The internal auditors also perform regular audits to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.
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53. Financial Risk Management (conta)
(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is managed by a regular analysis of the current and potential
risk of loss arising from a customer’s or counterparty’s inability to meet
financial obligations. The Group is exposed to credit risk through its
lending, trading and capital markets activities. The Group defines the
credit exposure to a customer as the amount of maximum potential
loss arising from all these activities. These exposures include both on-
and off-balance sheet transactions, including unfunded lending
commitments such as loan commitments, letters of credit and financial

guarantees.

Credit risk management is effected by monitoring implementation of
adopted credit policies that determine the borrower’s creditworthiness,
credit risks classification, loan application procedure and procedures
for lending decisions making. The Group applies the same credit policy
in respect of contingent liabilities as in respect of financial instruments
recorded on the balance sheet, based on loan approval procedures, use
of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also minimized by
obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees from
borrowers and third parties.

The Group's credit risk management practices are designed to preserve
the independence and integrity of the risk assessment process. The
Group assesses credit risk based upon the risk profile of the borrower,
the source of repayment and the nature of the underlying collateral
after giving consideration to current events and market developments.
Credit risk is also managed at portfolio levels in terms of product, industry
and geography to manage concentration risk.

Analysis of geographical concentration of the Group’s asset is disclosed
in note 18 and credit risk concentration of respective financial assets is
disclosed in note 22 to 25 and 27 to 29.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) HIBEKEE

53. Financial Risk Management (conta)
(b) Market risk management
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The Group’s major market risk exposure rested with CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited (“the Bank”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Both
short-term trading position and long-term strategic businesses inherit
market risk exposures from the movements of foreign exchange rates,
interest rates, equity prices and commodity prices.

To identify and control various market risk exposures, the Bank's Credit
and Risk Management Committee (“CRMC"), Asset and Liability
Management Committee (“ALCO") and its delegated sub-committees
set up a hierarchy of limits and a series of risk measurements. Hierarchy
limits are composed of policy, business and transaction limits to ensure
adequate control from different management level. Each hierarchy level
has a combination of profit and loss limits, position limits and sensitivity
limits for specific market risk control.

The Bank's Treasury is the centre point to take on and manage market
risk exposures within the prescribed hierarchy, product and specific risk

limits.

Market Risk Management as the unit under Risk Management Group is
responsible for the daily monitoring and reporting functions of market
risk exposures to ensure that market risk exposures are within the
prescribed limits and are managed properly.

Currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign exchange
position, commercial dealing, investment in foreign currency securities,
operations of overseas branches and subsidiaries. All foreign exchange
positions are subject to exposure limits approved by ALCO.
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53. 2RtEEER »)
(b) TEEAKEE &)

ShERBE ()
REEAMERIMNERRIT

53. Financial Risk Management (conta)
(b) Market Risk Management (cont'd)

Currency risk (cont’d)

Significant foreign currency exposures at the balance sheet date were

as follows:
X£E
The Group
—B%IE “EENF
2005 2004
HER Equivalent in ¥ ARE  His% ok e ARE  EnEY mE
BETT HK$'000 USdollars  Renminbi Other Total US dollars Renminbi Other Total
REEE Spot assets 28,078,183 1,327,251 5,453,586 34,859,020 28,674,000 757,264 4981384 34,412,648
REARE Spot liabilities (31,167,025) (549,815)  (5,084,950) (36,801,790) (30,836,628) (134,181)  (4,656,405) (35,627,214)
REEA Forward purchases 16,617,043 104,658 3,758,734 20,480,435 7,309,008 - 2,629,869 9,938,877
BHEN Forward sales (13,674,662) (104,573)  (4,122,558) (17,901,793) (5,848,312) - (2,943,565)  (8,791,877)
BRBETE Net options position (179) - 179 - 693 - (693) -
() /RBFE  Net (short)/long position ~ (146,640) 777,521 4,991 635,872 (701,239) 623,083 10,590 (67,566)
F. /|
The Company
—B%IE “ETNF
2005 2004

HER Equivalent in ¥ ARE  His% ok e ARE EnEY mE
BETT HK$'000 USdollars  Renminbi Other Total US dollars Renminbi Other Total
REEE Spot assets 145,175 1,105 - 146,280 144,455 1,080 - 145,535
REARE Spot liabilities (1,397,518) (2,081) (18) (1,399,617)  (1,400,568) (1,994) (21)  (1,402,583)
mBFHE Net short position (1,252,343) (976) (18) (1,253,337) (1,256,113) (914) (21)  (1,257,048)
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The net options position is calculated using the model user approach.
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53. Financial Risk Management (conta)
(b) Market Risk Management (cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk for the Group comes mainly from the Bank. The
Bank’s ALCO oversees all interest rate risk arising from the interest rate
profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities. This interest rate risk comprises
of maturity gaps, basis risk among different interest rate benchmarks,
yield curve movements, interest rate re-pricing risk and embedded
options if any. ALCO reviews interest rate risk of the banking book
through gap mismatch reports, sensitivity analysis and various stress
testing. To mitigate interest rate risk, the Bank has used interest rate
derivatives, mainly interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and liabilities
such as available-for-sale securities (AFS) and non-trading liabilities (NTL).
The Bank has adopted hedge accounting principles to further mitigate
interest rate risk by offsetting the fair value changes between the AFS/
NTL securities and the corresponding hedging derivative instruments.
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53. R EMEERE ») 53. Financial Risk Management (contd)
(b) MIZEMRER (&) (b) Market Risk Management (cont'd)
FlE=E R (&) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
TERBAEEZ1N2ANAEFERESeRITEA The following table indicates the range of effective average interest
2 FHBEMNEHE - rates for the year ended 31 December for monetary financial instruments:
AEE
The Group
—ETAhF —ETME
2005 2004
BRE BHX
% %
&E Assets
fﬁ% MAERIT R H @ BB Cash and balances with banks and
©1F - RITER ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ% el other financial institutions & placements
&%Tﬁ 77 3K with banks and other financial institutions 0-4.40 0-2.17
B5RE BEPBIRRAMERIE Trade bills, advances to customers and
other accounts 0-38.40 0-38.40
&5 (MEn) Securities (Note) 0-7.71 0-6.79
Big Liabilities
ERIT R E A BB TFR Deposits and balances of banks and
R&EF other financial institutions 0-4.34 0-1.82
BRPFER Deposits from customers 0-7.35 0-6.63
EETHERE CBTEBEIESHR Certificates of deposit issued, debt securities
BB EN issued and loan capital 0.27-8.08 0.15-6.12
Mzt : FEHFEE Note: Securities includes:
20054 : AIHEFEFRFAZE I 2005:  Available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity
RE ° investments.
20044 : EAMEHRIRE - FEEIHK 2004: Other investment in securities, held-to-maturity
BEREBEEFS investments and investment securities.
REHABEE  RHARBBRABRBERNUR Trading assets, trading liabilities and financial instruments designated
BRAFEBENS mﬂilﬂﬂzﬁﬁ FALER RERZ at fair value through profit and loss are not included in the above table
ZESRMIANFUAREATEEEZSME because the net income from these financial instruments comprise all
EHMBEER (NRETER)  UEFEKA gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued coupon)
R R AR B WA - together with interest income and expense and dividend income.
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53. e EBEER ») 53. Financial Risk Management (cont)

(b) MIZERER (&) (b) Market Risk Management (cont'd)
FlE=E R (&) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
TRETREEANG EEERBENERT The following tables indicate the expected next repricing dates (or
BETESEAH (KHBHEAREERE) maturity dates whichever are earlier) for the interest bearing assets and

liabilities at the balance sheet date.

*5E
The Group
—2%I1E
2005
3EA A

(BIEER) E
3monthsor 3EAZE1E EE5E 5EE Non-
4838 less (incdude 3monthsto  1yearto Over interest
Total  overdue) 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing

E®Tn #E¥TT E¥TT BT E¥Tn E¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

gE Assets
BeERERITR Cash and balances with banks and

HEMemEEMNET  other finandal institutions 1,161,309 - - - - 1,161,309
TERITREM Placements with banks and

SRBENTR other financial institutions 5,265,044 5,207,844 57,200 - - =

6,426,353 5,207,844 57,200 - - 1,161,309

2525 Trade bills 406,364 281,559 124,805 - - -
RIRREE Trading assets 6,473,029 1,933,197 12,574 602,017 77,318 3,847,923
ETABBIBREARE  Securities designated at fair value

AEBENHES through profit or loss 1,139,908 - 227164 808,188 82,190 22,366
REF8IK Advances to customers and

HAi iR other accounts 44,108,183 37,568,804 3,350,754 445,252 309,234 2,434,139
ARNEES Available-for-sale securities 5,945,960 - - 4013971 1,767,051 164,938
BEZRIHKE Held-to-maturity investments 17,194,283 1,572,192 5,711,538 8,433,382 1,471,644 5,527
kit BEE Non-interest bearing assets 3,342,598 - - - - 3,342,598
EESE Total assets 85,036,678 46,563,596 9,484,035 14,302,810 3,707,437 10,978,800
& Liabilities
FITREMSRIEER  Deposits and balances of banks

BRkER and other financial institutions 4,157,446 3,816,248 15,000 - - 326,198
BPRER Deposits from customers 54,415279 51,846,176 831,864 160,833 - 1,576,406
RFHBREME Trading liabilities 661,137 217,904 - - - 323
BETEARE Certificates of deposit issued 7,467,961 5,017,915 495,660 1,954,386 - -
BREITEBES Debt securities issued 2,245,435 - - 2,245,435 - -
BETTRRES Convertible bond issued 1,289,817 - - 1,289,817 = =
BBER Loan capital 4,352,351 - 2,33591 - 2,016,390 -
kit BBE Non-interest bearing liabilities 991,399 - - - - 991,399
BEEE Total liabilities 75,580,825 60,898,243  3,678485 5,650,471 2,016,390 3,337,236
BE-BREEE Asset - liability gap (14,334,647) 5805550 8,652,339 1,691,047
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53. R EMEERE ») 53. Financial Risk Management (contd)
(b) TIBEMRERE (&) (b) Market Risk Management (cont'd)
FlE=E R (&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)
X&E
The Group
ZTEMEF
2004
EAA
(BEOH) 3@ A 14 Fit 8
3 months or 215 25F S5F U E Non-
4“5 less (indude 3 months to 1 year to Over interest
Total overdue) 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing

BETT EBTr A%t  BETT BT E¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

aE Assets
BeREBITR Cash and balances with banks and

H e BEENLET  other finandal institutions 1,488,919 - - - - 1488919
RITREA Placements with banks and

SRBEEN other financial institutions 6,822,355 6,761,821 60,534 - - -

8,311,274 6,761,821 60,534 - - 1,4838919

BE558R Trade bills 246,081 234,660 11,421 - - -
HuwB5RE Other investment in securities 4,043,467 1,277,661 311,449 5,311 4,064 2,444,982
BEFBIK Advances to customers and

HABRIE ) other accounts 43,323,300 37,576,823 2,926,661 382,551 329,547 2,107,718
BAEZISRA Held-to-maturity investments 23,930,181 2,722,756 5473374 11,277,409 4,414,604 42,038
REEH Investment securities 39,841 - - - - 39,841
FAEEE Non-interest bearing assets 3,683,213 - - - - 3683213
BEGE Total assets 83,577,357 48,573,721 8,783,439 11,665,271 4,748,215 9,806,711
Bk Liabilities
BITREMESRMIER  Deposits and balances of banks and

FEREER other financial institutions 3,555,852 3,470,174 - - - 85,678
BEEH Deposits from customers 55,451,727 52,991,856 1,125,563 62,470 - 1,271,838
BESRS & Certificates of deposit issued 6,959,690 5,302,640 1,507,050 150,000 - -
BRETEBES Debt securities issued 2,322,798 - - 2,322,798 - -
BRTTERES Convertible bond issued 1,399,384 - - 1,399,384 - -
BHRER Loan capital 4,275,896 - - 2,332,307 1,943,589 -
FHBEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 1,290,007 - - - - 1,290,007
BEEE Total liabilities 75255354 61764670 2,632,613 6266959 1943589 2,647,523
BE-AREE Asset - liability gap (13,190,949) 6,150,826 5398312 2,804,626
W 5 Fp pE U 8 2~ ) K18 75,180,000 & All assets and liabilities of the Company are non-interest bearing, except
R=ZEAREFLEER  RENKBARRRE an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$75,180,000 and an amount
751%1,395,922,000T * ER—FERFENEF] due to a subsidiary of HK$1,395,922,000, which would be repriced
BRI KRB 2HEEMBBEAIETELN - within 3 months and between 1 year to 5 years respectively.
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53. Financial Risk Management (conta)

(c) Liquidity Risk Management

The Group always maintains high liquidity ratio in order to meet
unexpected increase of customer demand on cash. Apart from
compliance with statutory ratio requirement, stress tests are being
performed regularly. The Group invests its surplus fund in a portfolio
of mainly high-grade securities, which can generate liquidity if necessary
either through re-purchase arrangement or out-right selling in the
secondary market. The Group is also active in wholesale funding by
issuing long-term certificate of deposit so as to secure stable source of

funding.

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

v.¥ -
The Group
—¥%1%
2005
SEAAMERE EANL 1EN L
BS54 EE E5E
3 months 1 year 5 years
BIR5{EE  orlessbut or less or less 5ELLE
@3  Repayable notrepayable but over but over Over HEXBAHH
Total ondemand  ondemand 3 months 1 year 5 years Undated
BRI BRI BT BRI BRI BETn AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
aE Assets
ReRERTR Cash and balances with banks
AeBEENER and other financial institutions 1,161,309 1,161,309 = = = = =
EROIRER Placements with banks and
SREENER other financial institutions 5,265,044 - 5,186,132 78,912 - - =
EVES Trade bills 406,364 - 275,102 131,262 - - -
RHBREE Trading assets 6,473,029 228,144 - 12,574 2,209,584 402,947 3,619,780
REARBERINRE Securities designated at fair
RTBEMES value through profit or loss 1,139,908 - - 249,531 808,187 82,190 -
RPBIR Advances to customers and
R other accounts 44,108,183 1,459,841 4,101,392 6,135,882 15,259,293 14,700,716 2,451,059
i EES Available-for-sale securities 5,945,960 - - - 4,022,971 1,767,051 155,938
HEERIHMEE Held-to-maturity investments 17,194,283 - 640,998 5,774,696 8,802,617 1,969,999 5,973
BAPALEES Undated assets 3,342,598 - - - - - 3,342,598
BESE Total assets 85,036,678 2849294 10203624 12,382,857 31,102,652 18922903  9,575348
Bf Liabilities
BORE S RERED Deposits and balances of banks
ERk&ER and other financial institutions 4,157,446 326,198 3,816,248 15,000 - - =
ZPER Deposits from customers 54415279 12,260,248 40,494,422 1,429,019 231,590 - -
XERRAE Trading liabliies 661,137 443,233 217,904 - - - -
BEAERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,467,961 - 368,968 1,856,231 5,242,762 - -
BRIEBES Debt securities issued 2,245,435 - = = 2,245,435 = =
BEATARES Convertible bond issued 1,289,817 - - - 1,289,817 - -
EBEX Loan capital 4,352,351 - - - - 4,352,351 -
BXPAHERE Undated liabilities 991,399 - - - - - 991,399
BROE Total liabilities 75,580,825 13,029,679 44,897,542 3,300,250 9,009,604 4,352,351 991,399
BE-BELE Asset - liability gap (10180385)  (34,693918) 9082607 22,093,048 14,570,552
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53. R EMEERE ») 53. Financial Risk Management (contd)
() RBELEAMGERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont'd)
RIBRTIHHHAINEERBES T (&) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
S-S
The Group
(E%)
(restated)
ZEENE
2004
ERAMERE 3MEALE (L3
A E R ZIF Z5F
3 months 1 year 5 years
BIEEE  orlessbut or less or less 5FM £
4% Repayable not repayable but over but over Over EFHAH
Total  ondemand  on demand 3 months 1 year 5 years Undated

AETL O RETL  BETT  ABTL  E¥TT  EBETR A¥TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

aE Assets
BeREBITR Cash and balances with banks
Hi & BEM4ET  and other financial institutions 1,488,919 1,488,919 - - - - -
RITREA Placements with banks and
SREEEN other financial institutions 6,822,355 - 6,761,821 60,534 - - -
UES 3 Trade bill 246,081 - 23193 14118 - - -
HtBEHRE Other investments in securities 4,043,467 - 351 50,581 1,252,649 314,904 2,424,982
BR2HK Advances to customers and
HABRIE . other accounts 43,323,300 1,531,097 3,804,515 6,327,196 16,432,807 12,940,980 2,286,705
%ﬁ§§w HIRE Held-to-maturity investments 23,930,181 - 1,265,909 5,778,954 11,715,008 5,128,272 42,038
REER Investment securities 39,841 - - - - 4,000 35,841
EXRARES Undated assets 3,683,213 - - - - - 3683213
EESE Total assets 83,577,357  3,020016 12,064,559 12,231,383 29,400,464 18,388,156 8,472,779
Bk Liabilities
BITREMSBEER  Deposits and balances of banks
BRREER and other financial
institutions 3,555,852 85,678 3,470,174 - - - -
REEHR , Deposits from customers 55,451,727 22,023,352 32,125,086 1,085,817 217,472 - -
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,959,690 - 674,999 1,279,926 5,004,765 - =
BRITEBES Debt securities issued 2,322,798 - - - 2,322,798 - -
BERTARRES Convertible bond issued 1,399,384 - - - 1,399,384 - -
EBE Loan capital 4,275,8% - - - - 427589 -
EFRBHEE Undated liabilities 1,290,007 - - - - - 1,290,007
BEEE Total liabilities 75,255,354 22,109,030 36,270,259 2,365,743 8,944,419 4,275,896 1,290,007
AE-BELE Asset - liability gap (19,089.014) (24,205700) 9,865,640 20,456,045 14,112,260
P L A FE L B 2 B R IE A 75,180,000 All assets and liabilities of the Company are undated, except an
ER=EAREE - REMHBAFRE amount due from a subsidiary of HK$75,180,000 and an amount
7511,395,922,000c R —F 2R F AN E due to a subsidiary of HK$1,395,922,000 which would be matured
BiSh e RRFIRHEEMBERETRA within 3 months and between 1 year to 5 years respectively.
R o
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53. &R EIPEE R (@)
(d) ZHREEREGER

53. Financial Risk Management (conta)
(d) Operational risk management
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The Group manages its operational risk through the Management
Committee at the Group level and the Operations & Control Committee
at the Bank level. The Management Committee ensures that all the
subsidiaries are operating properly and managed in accordance with
pre-set risk policies and procedures of the respective subsidiaries. The
Operations & Control Committee comprises the Chief Operating Officer
as the chairman and other senior staff from various business lines and
support functions. One of its key responsibilities is to periodically review,
update, and test as necessary the operational policies, procedures and
contingency plans of the Bank.

Operational risk is the risk of losses which the Group may incur as a
result of inadequate or failed processes, technology, infrastructure,
personnel or from external events. Operational risk is not new to banks.
Significant operational risk events in recent years have highlighted the
need to manage operational risk more effectively by taking a broader
and more comprehensive view. Technology and operational issues
remain critically important, but other areas, which could lead to
operational losses, must be managed as well.

The Bank currently manages operational risk through a number of ways,
such as:

- Operations and technology polices and manuals are developed
and reviewed annually to ensure processes are adequately
considered and defined.

- Human resources policy and practices are established to define
and encourage proper staff behavior, and that staff are qualified
and trained for their roles.

- New products and services are evaluated to ensure that staff,
processes, and technology can adequately support prior to
launching.

- Disaster recovery and business continuity plans are set up and
tested annually for major events such as major failure of data
centre caused by fire or other events; loss of operating site and
sudden and massive customer withdrawal due to market rumors
or other reasons.
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54.
(a)

(b)
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54. Fair Value Information

(a)

(b)

Estimation of fair values

Where available, the most suitable measure for fair value is the quoted
and observable market prices. In the absence of such quoted and
observable market prices for most financial instruments, and in particular
for loans, deposits and unlisted derivatives, the fair values are estimated
based on a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates
of future cash flows , future expected loss experience and other factors.
Changes in the uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect
these estimates and the resulting fair value estimates.

Fair value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2005
and 2004 unless otherwise stated.

(i) Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets mainly include cash, placements with
banks and other financial institutions, loans and advances to

customers, investments and financial derivate instruments.

The fair values of placements with banks and other financial
institutions are mainly priced at market interest rates and mature
within one year. Accordingly, the carrying values approximate
the fair values.

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly priced
at floating rates close to the market interest rates which are mainly
repriced within 3 months, equal their carrying amounts.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in
the financial statements. The fair value of held-to-maturity
investments approximate their carrying amounts.
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(b)

55.

(a)

AFEEEEH » 54. Fair Value Information (cont'd)

AEFEEE) (b)

iy “=@maE
AEENSREEZTZRRERTEEMS
MEENERARET  BPFXR - BET
GFHE - DRTEBESF  DRITTERR
BEARERDETERELS - eRMABENER
EHEER-_ZETAF+-_A=+—HHAQ
FEERS  ERGEEANDEITERE
K2 AFEEAE4,613,000,0007 © =
A H BR A {8 75 ¥ 4,352,000,0007T A1 BR b ©

fTETHR 55.
STETANEESE (a)

TETAEHERE - HAZAEABELIEY
MEEREETEBEENMBEL -

NTRAEEREIZNETANEESH
e

Fair value (cont'd)

(i) Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities mainly include deposits and
balances of banks and other financial institutions, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued, debt securities issued,
convertible bonds issued and loan capital issued. The carrying
values of financial liabilities approximate their fair values as at 31
December 2005, except that the fair values of loan capital issued
as at the balance sheet date was HK$4,613 million, which is higher
than their carrying value of HK$4,352 million.

Derivatives

Notional amounts of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the value
of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each significant
type of derivatives entered into by the Group:

&
The Group
—ETaE ZETNF
2005 2004
x5 & i g 5 Fapa 4
Trading Hedging Total Trading Hedging Total
BETRT BETT #E&Tx BBt BT B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREH Exchange rate contracts
RS Forwards 18,941,850 - 18,941,850 2,637,254 - 2,637,254
BHERS Swaps 11,521,138 - 11,521,138 7,447,460 3,504,209 10,951,669
B A B Options purchased 91,471 - 91,471 241,068 - 241,068
B Options written 84,553 = 84,553 238,249 - 238,249
FEEH Interest rate contracts
REZHREIER S Forwards and futures 3,032,254 - 3,032,254 427,590 - 427,590
BHERS Swaps 6,897,921 12,074,747 18,972,668 3,570,070 11,615,697 15,185,767
B AR Options purchased 1,298,984 - 1,298,984 1,671,487 - 1,671,487
B Options written 1,298,984 - 1,298,984 1,849,231 - 1,849,231
BHaH Equity contracts
EUN:it Options purchased - - - - 1,083 1,083
g Options written = = = - 1,083 1,083
43,167,155 12,074,747 55,241,902 18,082,409 15,122,072 33,204,481
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55. fTET R () 55. Derivatives (cont'd)
() FTETAMEREE (&) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (cont'd)
AR S HAEBEINE - FIERFBSFTS The above transactions are undertaken by the Group in the foreign
iﬁﬁ BEUTHENERSERENATFENR exchange, interest rate and equity markets. The notional amounts of
C WHERREHE o these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding and
do not represent amounts at risk.
RZZEZRF+-_A=+— E B TE R IEEH Derivatives use for hedging purpose as at 31 December 2005 represented
ZOTET R BERECHEBEFHERDE39A hedging instruments that were qualified for hedging accounting under
EZHMEE o HKAS 39.
RZETEMF+_A=+—HEETEARIELH Derivatives use for hedging purpose as at 31 December 2004 represented
o iI, L RAEEERBEERRAR AF all derivatives that had an assets and liability management relationship.
(BEAGFHERD) FE35RE P FHEM KT T4 The conditions for using hedge accounting under HKAS 39 are not
FTBMER - allowed to be applied retrospectively.
(b) FTETHEMAFEEREESAIMMESE (b) Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives
FEE
The Group
—TFHE —ETmF
2005 2004
EERE FEERR
AFEE MmELE NEEE niEezE
Fair value Credit risk Fair value* Credit risk
BfE  weighted BE af& weighted
Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities amount
BETT #BETT AT ABETr BETT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHTHETE  Interest rate derivatives 387,765 74,175 268,774 383,276 105,037
[ERHTHETE  Currency derivatives 55,468 85,145 119,554 127,623 66,096
HHTHET R  Other derivatives - - 90 - 46
443,233 159,320 388,418 510,899 171,179

* CEENFENAFEEEMRE _TERF

—HA—BHMERET -

EERBMESEREIZRBEBGRITEEND
EREAR L ENMER=FMTENSE - W
RREKNS— BB KB B ER o 3k
EEEREAENRBRINERI%E100% 5% -
MR « FIEREMITETAELRIE0%ZE50%

T °

METAEEERBBEZAFEERERRRL

B WRAABEFERHNTZER
B e

212

* Fair values information for 2004 represented 1 January 2005 restated
figures.

Credit risk-weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with the Third Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance on capital adequacy and depends on the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used
range from 0% to 100% for contingent liabilities and commitments,
and from 0% to 50% for exchange rate, interest rate and other
derivatives contracts.

The fair values of derivative assets and liabilities and credit risk weighted
amount of the off-balance sheet exposures do not take into account
the effect of bilateral netting arrangements.
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(0 BEBHTITAMGTETENAFEE
AT RAEESBIHELHBRNITETLAY
R EEHE :

55. Derivatives (contd)

(c) Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments
The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group:

xE
The Group
—ETLE
2005

=3 Bf&
Assets Liabilities
BETT BETRT
HK$'000 HK$’000

=G %) Interest rate contracts 104,174 214,693

NP EEH
RFEEH I EERIERERES TEER
BEXBBERMSHXEEHMHREOF
LRI

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Fair value hedges

The fair value hedges are principally consisted of interest rate swaps
that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of certain
fixed rate assets or liabilities due to movements in the market interest
rates.
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55. fTET A ) 55. Derivatives (contd)
(d STETEMGTERH (d) Remaining life of derivatives
TEREMAEEREBEFAINBREAR (BREE The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
A THEHEAE) S9N ITETERR derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the
BN o remaining periods to settlement at the balance sheet date.
AEE
The Group
“BE¥AF
2005
BTEHNEREHE

Notional amounts with remaining life of

1EFUT 1FEUEESE

W3 1 year Over 1 year 5% L E
Total or less to 5 years Over 5 years
BETR EETR BETR EETR
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MELSTETE Interest rate derivatives 24,602,890 8,169,222 12,905,087 3,528,581
EXTATA Currency derivatives 30,639,012 30,561,012 - 78,000
55,241,902 38,730,234 12,905,087 3,606,581
K&
The Group
—ETMF
2004
MBRTFHNEZESTE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
TF AT 19 LA EE5%5F
PR 1 year Over 1 year 5
~ Total _or less to 5 years Over 5 years
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEFTETEA Interest rate derivatives 19,134,075 1,566,462 12,008,947 5,558,666
EELTET A Currency derivatives 14,068,240 13,803,903 - 264,337
MZ=/AE8HTETE Equity/index derivatives 2,166 2,166 - -
33,204,481 15,372,531 12,008,947 5,823,003
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56. L FEEREIE

(a)

RUCEEHIFERRKIE
ATREREIEABRBRAENGHSHE
Be

56.

(a)

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each

significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

AEE
The Group

—ETLE ZEETMEF

2005 y 2004

BETRT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEEEERE R Direct credit substitutes 958,516 943,362

MY 5B AEIER Trade-related contingencies 1,058,462 1,165,944

H b A& - Other commitments:

—REBBEENFATH — with an original maturity of under 1 year

EIE:ICILE i or which are unconditionally cancellable 12,846,765 10,576,584

—REBBEENFHA L — with an original maturity of 1 year or over 350,146 588,078

15,213,889 13,273,968

FERRNESSE Credit risk-weighted amounts 991,061 1,072,223

FREABELRAERAEEMABENTA  BHhe
FEARRE  EAE  REEENERRRE -
BRERERER FRATFREERETEY
EMEERRER - ARNSBEIEEA DR
REREBEERPHEAMBEAERBRNEE - &
REERAEEIHSDASH  HaWEH
WIBERRKRSRE -

ARFTEEERBRMNESTENRRMEHR%
Z100% 15 o

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments

which include acceptance, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments

to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially the same as the credit

risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The contractual

amounts represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully

drawn upon and the client default. As the facilities may expire without

being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not represent expected

future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted

amounts range from 0% to 100%.
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56. S HAERKE @ 56. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (contd)
(b) EBXRKIE (b) Capital commitments
RTZA=+—REBAREMSRRERNT Capital commitments for purchase of equipment outstanding at
X ATV BRMENIRBEEFENEREENT - 31 December not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
AEE
The Group
—ETRE —ETNEF
2005 2004
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERETL Authorised and contracted for:
BRETEE Fixed assets 16,610 8,534
i Others 63,717 15,160
EREERTH : Authorised but not contracted for:
ERETEEE Fixed assets 1,352 -
81,679 23,694
() HEXKIE (c) Lease commitments
RTZA=+—8 BETARBRLEERER At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments under non-
REMNNREHRSAFTLOT cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
AEE
The Group
—ETRE —TTNEF
2005 2004
EETR BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
W RUTHRERBESHE Properties, leases expiring
1F R Within 1 year 67,092 29,700
19F 254 After 1 year but within 5 years 134,059 43,441
5 1% After 5 years 78,409 18,728
279,560 91,869
HBiE RUTHEBESHE Equipment, leases expiring
19 RN Within 1 year 739 847
149F 254 After 1 year but within 5 years 2,943 5,655
5 1% After 5 years — 1,029
3,682 7,531
AEEBBLEHEN TR BELZEMERRK The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment under
e BEMERZENRVEHER -—RAMNE operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to
e - AIRFTBIEREFN A ERER - LA LM four years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
EXRTSREBFES ° renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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56.

(d)

57.

58.

59.

60. R

NEEBERKIE @

REEE
AEEEHANEA RS A EAREE®E
EEEHHARTBREEAYE -

FRAELEHBHESE
RZZEZERF+—A=1TH AEEENEE
59 B8 35% R IE E B b TOAENL ~ 148« 21
R3EF B BN KK E i T K 8E /Eiu : M@
KB A75%128,200,0007T HE » Hig -
TRE+ZAZ=AH " ZK%lEﬁi%'iﬁtﬁﬁii%i%‘?
HEE TS e RZZEERNFRANA (KA
H])  ZWEBTREE o TEHE - 495
46,000,000 8@ M A E —FEZERE+ A
E+—HAFEAZASBERGZRATER o

{SFEEE
FEBBEEERTARAMIEAFOMA
RERIAL -~ F5E - BRIREFGET S R E b
HERGFREE - AN GLEELIFAEEN
BE WELBEREELANBATREEN
BIHERA -

A g g
ETHRHEFEESETHRE
E—SHBEEW EI3EP??§E§ o

EH&’FJ

EFRA ARAR-ETRF+-A=1—A
SR LS ONSPE T EINE PRl Ava
R E R MR -

BEMmMEHRE -
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56.

(d)

57.

58.

59.

60.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont'd)
Contingencies

The Group and its subsidiaries are not invloved in any legal actions that
would be material to the financial position of the Group.

Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

On 30 November 2005, the Group accepted a tender to sell Unit 9A on
G/F, all units on 1/F, 2/F and 3/F and 8 car parking spaces on LG/F of
Eastern Central Plaza at 3 Yiu Hing Road for a total consideration of
$128.2 million. Subsequently, the Group entered into a Memorandum
of Agreement for sale and purchase with the purchaser on 2 December
2005. The sale of the Property will be completed on 9 May 2006 (the
“Completion Date”). As a result of the sale, a gain of approximately of
$46 million for the sale will be recognised in the Group's income
statement for the financial year ending 31 December 2006.

Trust Activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements,

as they are not assets of the Group.

Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result of the changes
in accounting policies. Further details are disclosed in note 3.

Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2005, the directors consider the ultimate holding
company to be CITIC Group, which is incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China.
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61. B 5T &5t R FIER
RUSBRES  ERES

FTEBERTRNBRGTE

ES

EREEEREZEGNWARE T2 S IE
EEREE  AREEBER

R A FH Y HIE
EEtRER -

() HFHFIEEZEEEDR

MEE33MABHAMNEERE  DRBERER
FEENRKREERREZ - EMbih T E

FEZEZEREZWAT !

()  REER
B R ER

EREagERRE - AHERESER
BRE - AEBEELAHEFAGEE
EEARENEERE R QMG RARRe
MERTRD) WAL - RENTBER
BE-BERANEIRR LR E
WA R EGR - TR BREAREEENE
HYE SR M AN SRAR AR RO A LB
WMER EREE B RERENTEEE
7 AIEHARBREREBEGREBELAEH
SENEEZBHE
BARERRIEL AR - BEBREREMN
E%mTﬁﬁéﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁ

E IR AR RIS IR EPARA M
Eﬁ&?“ WA B ARG REBREBRX

REFBLMEERR

BRBHNEFRER -
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2RI TBHE AN
EERBBENERBERIAEERGENK
B URERFERARZENERBRESE
M At Rk - RREE TS 8 B AR

BMHBRRBEREATZE - BRBRRLME
HAEEMWE
BEZR - ARBEREMERKBEE - 8
BRRAESERTERF 2 HRPBORR K

61.

(a)

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses for the years presented. Changes in assumptions may
have a significant impact on the financial statements in the periods
where the assumptions are changed. The application of assumptions
and estimates means that any selection of different assumptions would
cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group believes that the
assumptions that have been made are appropriate and that the financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly, in
all material respects.

Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development,
selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant accounting policies
and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 33 and 43 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value of share options
granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

() Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loans portfolios are reviewed periodically to access whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e.whether there is a decrease in estimated future cash
flows. Obijective evidence for impairment includes observable data
that the payments status of borrowers in a group has adversely
changed. It may also include observable data in local or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Group.
If management has determined, based on their judgement, that
objective evidence of impairment exists, expected future cash flows
are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management reviews the methodology and assumptions
used in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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(a)

EEHEsT R FE 2
EHATREZEERE ()

(i

(ii)

JBL 1B &5 1R (4R

AHHERRRE
BAHHERRREN R FEEANERSE
BUREENERA  REERTELRE
HIRE - EEAFEERESEREKA
M ESERRAREEHE LY - &
BRAUXBHABNEERTZE -

@ TARNFERE
NFEEMGT - RBEIBEEL - 2RES
BTANFERAETSENER —KH
B - E - BEEATIHRE - REE
RRAUBHFRHESTISRE - LUK
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P i EL 5% 3 1 P TS 4522 T i
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PEBTANBEELE  REBRESR
EEEEELS A SHERAR
LENE

BUTESRTEENE - TEAREHER
BeMTIAMRREE  FRE - RKEKR
EREME - RABHBRAERLEMBE
EFANBREAIENHEZE - BRE
PRI EAT BB RMEENAFE
B - I AFEERBRLANELTS
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61. Accounting Estimates and Judgements (conta)
(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(i)

(ir)

Impairment losses (cont’d)

Available-for-sale equity investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. The determination of
when a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgemental by nature, so profit and
loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. Where
available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted price is not
available on a recognized stock exchange or from a broker or
dealer for non-exchange traded financial instruments or from a
readily available latest trading price, the fair value is estimated
using present value or other valuation techniques.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a basis
for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group compares
valuations derived from models with quoted prices of similar
financial instruments, and with actual values when realised, in

order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding
risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rate,
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience
and other factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly
affect these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair
value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by comparison
to independent markets and, in many cases, could be realized in
an immediate sale of the instruments.
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61.
(b)

220

EaH st R HER (@)
ERAEEEH LR ENEXSE:
I
ERAEEEHRESFENETEAGH
B RN

HBRIERE
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61.

(b)

Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont'd)
Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity and where the Group has a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity
investments. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments till maturity. If the Group fails to
hold these investments to maturity other than for certain specific
circumstances, the Group will have to reclassify the entire portfolio of
held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, as such class is deemed
to have been tainted.

This would result in held-to-maturity investments being measured at
fair value instead of at amortised cost.
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62.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards
and Interpretations Issued but not Yet Effective
for the Annual Accounting Year Ended
31 December 2005

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2005 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements:

RUTHHSZ2E
Rt 2 Eat IR E iE
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BEFBWMELADFS - [WREFEERYEIR]

HKFRS 6, Exploration for evaluation of mineral resources

(BE (AR BREEINREZER) B [EF—HLHER2EHEE]
HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

(BB (BEEMBRELEANRBEZES))FE 55 -
(R IEEE  ERRRBEEEESEEESONER]
HK(IFRIC) 5, Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds

(BB (BRI BRELEARBEZES))F65 -
[2EEET S - ENEERETFREMELENAE]
HK(IFRIC) 6, Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market
— Waste electrical and electronic equipment

H(EBGHEANFE 1 - [RERN —HBHEAE  SEAIREEIFEHNER

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits
— Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

H(EBFEANE3N [T HE  BRMFTEIERRBET
—RAEEARTSZINBRSREE N XS G5t
— NP EEANEE
—HBEREH
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments : Recognition and measurement :
— Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions
— The fair value option
— Financial guarantee contracts

2005 AT (BET) KRB i ¥ AT EAEH BT ¢
—(EAGHERE R - [HBRERN2 R
—(EBGEER)E275 - 4546 B &R B B ®E]
—(EBYBMEER)E3N - [XBa 0]

Amendments, as a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment)
Ordinance 2005, to :

— HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements
— HKFRS 3, Business combinations

(CERMBRELRETR  [@RTE @ HE]
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: disclosures

HCERBGFEADE 1% [MBRRO2K  ERAREELNERT

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosure

20065 1A 1H
1 January 2006

20065F 1A 1H
1 January 2006

20065 1A 1H

1 January 2006

20065 1A 1H

1 January 2006
20065F1H1H

1 January 2006

20065F1H1H
20065 1A 1H
20065F1H1H

1 January 2006
1 January 2006
1 January 2006

20065 1A 1H
20065F1H1H
20065 1A 1H

1 January 2006
1 January 2006
1 January 2006

2007 1A 1H
1 January 2007

2007 1A 1H
1 January 2007
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62. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards

and Interpretations Issued but not Yet Effective
for the Annual Accounting Year Ended
31 December 2005 (cont'd)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance 2005
came into effect on 1 December 2005 and would be first applicable to
the Group’s financial statements for the period beginning 1 January
2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that:

- HKFRS 7 requires more detailed qualitative and quantitative
disclosures, primarily in respect of fair values and risk management.
The adoption of this standard is therefore only expected to affect
the level of detail of the disclosures, and is not expected to have
any financial impact nor result in any changes to the Group’s
accounting policies.

- The adoption of HKFRS 6 and HK(IFRIC) 5 and the amendments
to HKAS 1, HKAS 27 and HKFRS 3 made as a result of the Hong
Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance 2005 are not applicable
to any of the Group’s operations and that the adoption of the
rest of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

63. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 March 2006.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

MRZFBERF+-A=+—H GERIFIRINAEE RER)

at 31 December 2005 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) BXFTREILE

(A) Capital Adequacy Ratio

—ETLE —ETME

2005 2004

(E#)

(restated)

REFABRERT R E Unadjusted capital adequacy ratio 16.01% 15.88%
REAREBEAR T EERBEEEERERER The unadjusted capital adequacy ratio is computed on the consolidated
([2ER])) AEBTEMNABETE  BAQR RE basis covering the Company and certain of its subsidiaries as required
ETHBRAAINAMHER  WAERAEBBGR by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the “HKMA") for its regulatory
TEBRIMR=NEEFTE - purposes, and is in accordance with the Third Schedule to the Hong

(B) HIBRMIEER AR LR

Kong Banking Ordinance.

(B) Capital Base after Deductions

—EThE —ETME
2005 2004
(E#)
(restated)
EETR BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BLEX Core capital
BT BERA Paid up ordinary share capital 3,197,859 3,194,153
P 10 )i B Share premium 1,840,212 1,835,948
f# Reserves 2,953,640 2,584,437
DR R Minority interest 536 -
VoA Deduct: Goodwill (1,007,749) (1,007,749)
BLEXREE Total core capital 6,984,498 6,606,789
aREMmEER Eligible supplementary capital
Tt R £ R Reserves on revaluation of land and
ER R interests in land = 8,362
MR B HEIER S RIERHH Reserves on revaluation of holding of
BEEAMmMETEAHEE securities not held for trading purposes 332,076 -
BEBEENGESRERER Collective impairment allowances for
ETE impaired assets and regulatory reserve 528,790 -
REE— R General provisions for doubtful debts - 521,837
KA&EEIR Perpetual subordinated debt 2,016,390 1,943,589
EHRERE Term subordinated debt 467,192 932,923
aREMmEREE Total eligible supplementary capital 3,344,448 3,406,711
NBRIBIE R AR S A AR Total capital base before deductions 10,328,946 10,013,500
BERERRIE Deductions from total capital base (950,528) (1,056,629)
NRRBRIEEAERER Total capital base after deductions 9,378,418 8,956,871
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(C) S EB&EF

(C) Segmental Information

Houb = & 5 By geographical areas
—ETRE 2005
A%RE
The Group
FHFERE
. R
HEE EEIK/AN  Contingent
it F* WiEE Total Operating liabilities and
Profit*  Total assets liabilities income commitments
EBETT BETRT EBETT BETRT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BE Hong Kong 1,156,927 83,788,186 74,545,299 1,878,501 14,514,746
Y Mainland China 28,509 2,060,081 1,381,984 36,844 71,978
ES USA 31,759 1,776,016 1,684,051 54,853 613,328
H Aty Others (1,549) 612,632 614,181 453 13,837
B D EEIE B Less: Inter-segment items - (3.200,237)  (2,644,690) - =
1,215,646 85,036,678 75,580,825 1,970,651 15,213,889
—ETMEF 2004
K&
The Group
) FER=R SN HXEAE
i ) * mEE Total Operating PEEE
Profit* Total assets liabilities income Contingent
(E#R) (E#) (E#R) (E#) liabilities and
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)  commitments
BT BB T T BB T BB T T BB T T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 1,041,901 83,004,397 74,656,840 2,103,648 12,921,806
H Mainland China 9,769 690,143 322,158 16,684 -
= USA 13,620 1,742,424 1,674,194 45,380 352,162
Hit Others - 466,479 466,479 - -
B D EEIE R Less: Inter-segment items (10,558) (2,326,086) (1,864,317) (10,686) -
1,054,732 83,577,357 75,255,354 2,155,026 13,273,968

ROz ERRRIEHNEARRMEL
AZATTMEREBMAEMIE TURED

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries or branches of its subsidiaries.

* IEREBOB AR F *  Profit from ordinary activities before taxation
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(C) BEB&EH (&) ©

Segmental Information (cont'd)

EuEE 5 () By geographical areas (cont'd)
AEEH
The Group
—TTEE —ETNEF

2005 2004
AHER ARER  TEOEK
EREX RER BEER BFE KR RBFR Non-
Advances to Overdue loans Impaired Advances to  Overdue loans performing
customers and advances loans customers  and advances _loans
BT BT BT BT T BETT BETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 34,536,529 473,722 507,111 34,431,875 1,314,119 1,235,995
i Mainland China 6,534,622 541,945 541,945 5,899,197 596,904 596,904
=3 USA 793,891 50,495 50,495 714,454 50,620 50,620
H A, Others 1,096,655 - 71,288 1,627,189 363 363
42,961,697 1,066,162 1,170,839 42,672,715 1,962,006 1,883,882

RSN ERERRZ S S — A
7 BRBEBCEREN - HERX 5T ARE
BRN - ERERNERRRBGEZERT
MBERRIET - RITHEMEREBIITHE
EREREEEARMERRNERESD -

BHERTREANEB=EANER -

EEE TR B 3R R R E R 4R 2R (8 B RT

HAER

TEANERZENEBATLERERCDF LG
SHYEAGR o

—ETREEFER  ANNUAL REPORT 2005

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim
guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
For a claim on the branch of a bank or other financial institutions, the
risk will be transferred to the country where its head office is situated.

Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue more
than three months.

Impaired loans are individually assessed loans with objective evidence
of impairment on an individual basis.

Non-performing advances to customers are those advances on which

interest is being placed in suspense or on which interest accrual has
ceased.
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(D) BEIER &R (D) Overdue Advances to Customers
AEH
The Group
—ETRE —ZETTNF
2005 2004
EBETT BRE ok ERrS
HK$'000 %* HK$'000 % *
BER PR REEE The gross amount of advances has been
B8 i overdue for periods of :
—3@ AN =6 A — 6 months or less but over 3 months 40,244 0.09 90,905 0.21
—6lEl AL E& 145 — 1 year or less but over 6 months 92,748 0.22 213,538 0.50
—1F U —over 1 year 933,170 2.17 1,657,563 3.89
1w Total 1,066,162 2.48 1,962,006 4.60
BRI AR Secured overdue advances 860,601 1,449,690
I 1 B E R Unsecured overdue advances 205,561 512,316
1,066,162 1,962,006
BAHERIFHEEI Market value of collateral held against
EHRmHmE the secured overdue advances 1,236,616 1,607,051
18 51 0 8 8 1 Individual impairment allowance made 217,950
R Specific provisions made 473,671
* ERPERRBRETE *  Based on total advances to customers
R-EERAF+-_A=Z+—HE-_ZZTMNF There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
F+TZA=+—H  AEBEWESHBER=(EA which were overdue for over 3 months as at 31 December 2005 and
RIRITREM S RSB - 31 December 2004.
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(E) HibEHEE

(E) Other Overdue Assets

FEE
The Group
—EFAhEF —ETME
2005 2004
BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
B RBERFEC B EE The gross amount of trade bills
which has been overdue for:
—3EAU EE6MEA — 6 months or less but over 3 months - 2,565
—6E AN EZE1F — 1 year or less but over 6 months 2,725
2,725 2,565
FEZIGIESF 2@ EE - Held-to-maturity securities
which have been overdue for:
— 15 E —over 1 year 15,510 15,549
15,510 15,549
(F) EEER (F) Rescheduled Loans
AEE
The Group
—ETRE ZTENEF
2005 2004
EETR B E BT T Ao
HK$’'000 % * HK$'000 %*
EBEXR Rescheduled loans 25,077 0.06 226,093 0.53

HEPBREETE

ERAFTEERAR R R mae
HERMEETRABEERERERNRR &
’ﬁb,ﬂ%ﬁ EVE G H AR B 5 X 3E—ARE
R BFBEEBRENBRERBIES
F 30 7% B 5T (D)BEE SR e 8 B F 5K o
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—A=t-AR-TEME
RS R E B RITRE

* Based on total advances to customers

Rescheduled advances are those advances which have been restructured
or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position of
the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled advances to customers are
stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue for
over 3 months and reported as overdue advances in note (D).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions which
were rescheduled as at 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004.
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(G) MEI&E (G) Repossessed Assets
AEH
The Group
—ETRE —ETNEF
2005 2004
BEFT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BifARFP R Included in advances to customers
K H A ARIEH and other accounts 207,758 309,332
(H) BB EHE (H) Cross-border Claims

BRERENREEABRLEZTERT AR
BRERERXG S - FTEMTENRS S -7
e - BB 577 AR B — 77 B R
HEERREEEERTNBEREKEASD - 117
FEMEREBIITHERRRIEBEHEES
FEBZRKNERET - BRRERKZQEHER
10%3% A LR E BB RSB E#EMT

Cross-border claims are on-balance sheet exposures of counterparties
based on the location of the counterparties after taking into account
the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a
country different from the counterparty, risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on the branch of a bank or other
financial institution, the risk will be transferred to the country where its
head office is situated. Claims on individual countries or areas, after
risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border

claims are shown as follows:

SRITREH M
SRIME AEME
Banks and Public
other financial sector Hib Pk
institutions entities Others Total
EBETT EBETT EBETT BETRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
20055 2005
BEABNAINDEKE Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 7,553,502 441,975 7,753,870 15,749,347
Hep N of which Australia 3,000,177 763 70,118 3,071,058
Erprh of which Mainland China 2,425,439 391,052 7,021,444 9,837,935
N5 ! Caribbean - - 4,392,838 4,392,838
HAHEHS of which Cayman Islands - - 3,727,377 3,727,377
PO R Western Europe 11,118,604 1,791 4,861,642 15,982,037
Hoox of which France 1,257,160 - 812,763 2,069,923
He g of which Germany 1,423,132 - 113,916 1,537,048
HAwE of which Netherlands 1,061,821 - 821,618 1,883,439
Ho of which United Kingdom 2,492,175 623 1,224,905 3,717,703
20044 2004
BEBUINGE K& Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 6,765,626 201,643 7,552,627 14,519,896
B A M of which Australia 3,373,719 1,128 61,338 3,436,185
Hh of which Mainland China 2,196,755 199,858 6,712,491 9,109,104
PR Western Europe 13,717,333 3,008 4,276,585 17,996,926
Hk of which France 2,281,061 - 806,261 3,087,322
HrhEE of which Germany 2,519,414 - 410,682 2,930,096
HAR of which Netherlands 1,249,111 - 720,948 1,970,059
HAEEH of which United Kingdom 3,608,631 953 1,023,518 4,633,102
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() Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the
module on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions” under the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees
The Board of Directors of the Company has established the following

committees:

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures, and
internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of Directors
in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal control systems. The committee
comprises four Directors of the Company, three of which are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The committee identifies and nominates candidates to the Board of
Directors for appointment as Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Directors of the Company. It
also assists the Board of Directors in reviewing and approving the policies
and mechanism in relation to the appointment or termination of,
remuneration or compensation to, and the succession plans for
the senior executives of the Company. The committee comprises five
Directors of the Company, one of which is a Non-executive Director.
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(J) Board Committees (contd)
Apart from the above committees, the following three committees were
established under the Board of Directors of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited
(the “Bank”) which is a major wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company:

(i) Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors of the Bank in monitoring compliance with the policies,
procedures, and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists
the Board of Directors in providing independent review of the
effectiveness of the Bank’s financial reporting process and internal
control systems. The committee comprises four Directors of the
Bank, three of which are Independent Non-executive Directors.

(ii) Executive Personnel Committee
The committee provides oversight of the appointment and
removal, remuneration, and succession plan of the Bank’s senior
executives. It also assists the Board of Directors of the Bank in
selecting and recommending candidates for vacancy on the Board
of Directors of the Bank. The committee comprises four Directors
of the Bank.

(iii) Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy,
policies and mechanism. The risks concerned primarily include
credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal
and strategic risks. The committee carries out its oversight function
on the Bank’s risk management through various committees at
the Bank’s management level, including: Credit Committee, Non
Performing Loan Committee (“NPL Committee”), Asset & Liability
Committee (“ALCO") and Operations & Control Committee. The
committee comprises six Directors of the Bank.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(K) Risk Management

The Group manages various types of risks mainly through CITIC Ka
Wah Bank Limited (the “Bank”) under the delegation and close
supervision of the Board. The Risk Management Group of the Bank,
which consists of group credit, retail credit, inter-bank credit, market
risk, risk policies, exposure control and administration functions, is the
key unit for ensuring effective risk management and control. Through
entering into services agreements with subsidiaries and associated
companies, the Risk Management Group of the Bank is entrusted with
the responsibilities to manage credit risk for these companies. The Group
continually modifies and enhances its risk management policies and
systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best practice
requirements.

The Group manages the following main types of risks:

(i) Credit risk management

Credit risk is managed by regular analyses of the current and
potential risk of loss arising from a customer’s or counterparty’s
inability to meet financial obligations. The Group is exposed to
credit risk through its lending, trading and capital markets activities.
The Group defines the credit exposure to a customer as the amount
of maximum potential loss arising from all these activities. These
exposures include both on-and off-balance sheet transactions,
including unfunded lending commitments such as loan
commitments, letters of credit and financial guarantees.

Credit risk management is effected by monitoring implementation
of adopted credit policies that determine the borrower’s
creditworthiness, credit risks classification, loan application
procedure and procedures for making lending decisions. The
Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
balance sheet, based on loan approval procedures, use of limits
to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also minimised by
obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.
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(K) Risk Management (cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk management (cont’d)

The Group's credit risk management practices are designed to
preserve the independence and integrity of the risk assessment
process. The Group assesses credit risk based upon the risk profile
of the borrower, the source of repayment and the nature of the
underlying collateral after giving consideration to current events
and market developments. Credit risk is also managed at portfolio
levels in terms of product, industry and geography to manage
concentration risk.

Liquidity risk management

The Group always maintains a high liquidity ratio in order to meet
unexpected increases in customer demand on cash. In 2005, the
Group’s average liquidity ratio was 51.07% (2004: 47.91%). Apart
from compliance to statutory ratio requirement, stress tests are
performed regularly. The Group invests its surplus funds in a
portfolio of high-grade securities, which can generate liquidity if
necessary either through re-purchase arrangements or out-right
selling in the secondary market. The Group is also active in
wholesale funding by issuing long-term certificates of deposit so
as to secure a stable source of funding. The total amount of
certificates of deposit issued by the Group was

+FET  AERTEZEE12.07% ° HK$7.47 billion, constituting 12.07% of its total deposits as at
31 December 2005.
ARE-—_STLEBAFYRHESIE
The Group’s Average Monthly Liquidity Ratio for 2005
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(iii) HiIBEKREE

(K) Risk Management (conta)
(iii) Market risk management
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The Group's major market risk exposure rests with the Bank. Both
short-term trading positions and long-term strategic businesses
inherit market risk exposures from the movements of foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and commodity prices.

To identify and control various market risk exposures, the Bank'’s
Credit and Risk Management Committee (“CRMC"), Asset and
Liability Management Committee ("ALCO") and its delegated
sub-committees set up a hierarchy of limits and a series of risk
measurements. Hierarchy limits are composed of policy, business
and transaction limits to ensure adequate control from different
management levels. Each hierarchy level has a combination of
profit and loss limits, position limits and sensitivity limits for specific
market risk control.

The Bank’s Treasury is the central point to take on and manage
market risk exposures within the prescribed hierarchy, product
and specific risk limits.

Market Risk Management as the unit under the Risk Management
Group is responsible for the daily monitoring and reporting
functions of market risk exposures to ensure that market risk
exposures are within the prescribed limits and are managed

properly.

In adopting the new accounting standards in 2005, the Group’s
trading profit and loss in interest rate risk will include accrued
interests. For the year ended 31 December 2005, the average
daily mark-to-market profit and loss from the Group’s trading
activities in interest rate risk was a gain of HK$14,000. The average
daily mark-to-market revenue was HK$963,000. The graph below
shows the histogram of the Group’s daily mark-to-market revenue.

233



AEERMBENER

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(K) BEfER @)

(iii)

miSEMBER (&)
B:-#z2"2LTRF+-A=+—HI
FEMEFERNEBSMHE

(K) Risk Management (cont'd)

(iii)

Market risk management (cont’d)
Figure: Daily distribution of mark-to-market revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2005

—ETLEYRNEXTEMERNEE S HE
Daily Distribution of Mark-to-Market Revenue for the Year of 2005
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WA T BR(EBEET)
Revenue / Loss (HK$ million)
REEATR ZRERRARBE From the graph above, the maximum mark-to-market daily
8,882,000t REx KREHEE R B revenue was HK$8,882,000 and the maximum mark-to-market
12,796,0007C ° JA248 K2 BEER1EXR B daily loss was HK$12,796,000. Out of the 248 trading days for
HEUREEEBEIE - EAMESR 2 & the period, there were 94 days with recorded loss. The most
B ﬁﬁ AmEFERMNEELKITES frequent daily mark-to-market revenue results were between
75 #500,0007T 2 i+ HHIR18K © (HK$500,000) and HK$0 with the highest occurrence of 18 days.
(iv) EXTREHE (iv) Capital adequacy management

REBOBR AR —EEEHNERER The Group has structured and maintains a strong capital base to
NERBAEBAOEBEE - WHFEEEN support the development of the Group’s businesses and to meet
BEARFERILE o 0 EA M FEA)FTEE - A< statutory capital adequacy ratios. As disclosed in note (A) above,
EER-_ZTERFTA=T—HBKREH the Group’s unadjusted capital adequacy ratio was 16.01% as at

BERAFTEHLER16.01%  BEERETE 31 December 2005, well above the statutory minimum ratios.

HELEE -
REENESERBEEETRIIREN The Group allocates its capital to various banking activities
BRI TEETRBES - RESER depending on the risk taken by each business division. Certain
WRTE  ETHBHRBRARIAREERE financial subsidiaries, as specified by the Hong Kong Monetary
REKBFRFEAEE o Authority (“HKMA"), are subject to the HKMA's capital
requirements for its regulatory supervision purposes.
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(K) Risk Management (conta)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions, commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities and operations of overseas branches and
subsidiary. All foreign exchange positions are subject to exposure
limits approved by ALCO. The Group's average daily foreign
exchange trading profit and loss for the year ended 31 December
2005 was a gain of HK$9,000 .

Interest rate risk management

The interest rate risk for the Group comes mainly from the Bank.
The Bank's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the
interest rate profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities. These
interest rate risks comprises of maturity gaps, basis risk among
different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve movements, interest
rate re-pricing risk and embedded options, if any. ALCO reviews
the interest rate risks of the banking book through gap mismatch
reports, sensitivity analyses and various stress testings. To mitigate
interest rate risks, the Bank has used interest rate derivatives, mainly
interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and liabilities such as
available-for-sale securities (AFS) and non-trading liabilities (NTL).
The Bank has adopted hedge accounting principles to further
mitigate interest rate risks by offsetting the fair value changes
between the AFS/NTL securities and the corresponding hedging

derivative instruments.

Other trading and investment activities

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group, by itself and
via the Bank and CITIC International Assets Management Limited
("CIAM"), has invested part of its excess liquidity into external
funds to enhance its return. The average daily mark-to-market
revenue from these funds was HK$983,000. The Group's
commodity and equity trading were mainly from CIAM.
Commodity trading in copper and oil has an average daily trading
profit of HK$30,000 and equity trading loss of HK$74,000
respectively.
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(K) Risk Management (cont'd)

(vii)

(viii)

Other trading and investment activities (cont'd)

The Group’s derivative positions are mainly from the Bank and
CIAM. The Bank'’s derivative positions stem from transactions
with customers as well as its own position-taking and hedging.
The Group’s derivative transactions include interest rate swaps,
futures, forwards and options in foreign exchange, interest rates,
equities and commodities. Most derivative positions are booked
under the trading book, from which daily mark-to-market and
risk monitoring are performed.

The Group's involvement in option derivatives is mainly to cater
to structured products to meet customer demand.

Operational risk management

The Group manages its operational risk through the Management
Committee at the Group level and the Operations and Control
Committee ("OCC") at the Bank level. The Management
Committee ensures that all the subsidiaries are operating properly
and managed in accordance with pre-set risk policies and
procedures of the respective subsidiaries. The OCC comprises
the Chief Operating Officer as the chairman and other senior staff
from various business lines and support functions. One of its key
responsibilities is to periodically review, update, and test as
necessary the operational policies, procedures and contingency
plans of the Group.

Operational risk is the risk of losses which the Group may incur as
a result of inadequate or failed processes, technology,
infrastructure, personnel or from external events. Operational
risk is not new to banks. Significant operational risk events in
recent years have highlighted the need to manage operational
risk more effectively by taking a broader and more comprehensive
view. Technology and operational issues remain critically
important, but other areas, which could lead to operational losses,
must be managed as well.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(K) Risk Management (cont'd)
(viii) Operational risk management (cont'd)

The Group currently manages its operational risk through a number
of ways:

- Operations and technology polices and manuals are
developed and reviewed annually to ensure processes are
adequately considered and defined.

- Human resources policies and practices are established to
define and encourage proper staff behaviour, and to ensure
that staff are qualified and trained for their roles.

- New products and services are evaluated to ensure that staff,
processes, and technology can adequately support prior to
launching.

- Disaster recovery and business continuity plans are set up
and tested annually for major events such as major failure
of data centre caused by fire or other events; loss of
operating site and sudden and massive customer withdrawal
due to market rumors or other reasons.

CIAM's operational risk management is overseen by an
independent control team under the supervision of its senior
management and subject to internal audit of the Group. Major
policies, procedures and limits have been laid down in its manuals
and handbooks to ensure business continuity and to provide for
various contingencies. Regular reports and efforts are made for
the proper execution of investment and asset management
decisions. Continual review and monitoring on the progress and
performance of invested assets are in place and maintained in its
database. Back up of such information is vigorous. Skill sets and
human talents are also being steadily expanded to strengthen the
running of the operation.
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(K) Risk Management (cont'd)
(ix) Legal risk management

(x)

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, to enhance its systems and processes
to create awareness and to implement necessary change. Policies
and procedures remain under constant review. Continuous
training of our people in the areas of the Group’s policies and
procedures as well as applicable laws, rules and regulations
remained key to the management of the Group’s legal risks in
2005, as in previous years, and will continue to be vital in 2006.

Our Legal and Compliance Department (“LCD") has been a key
partner in the business, providing legal and compliance advice
and support to all parts of the Bank. In 2005, LCD was involved
in all new product and new business launches, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
transactions, the relocation and consolidation of the back office
operations to Somerset House in Taikoo Place as well as day-to-
day matters arising from a business that is diverse both
geographically and in scope. In 2006 we will continue to support
LCD as a critical mission-important function of the Group.

Strategic and reputational risks management

In order to keep pace with the ever-evolving operating and
regulatory environment of the Group, the Board places a high
priority on ensuring that our business and operational strategies
are appropriately defined and executed in a professional and time-
relevant manner. Great care is taken to protect our reputation
and maximise our brand equity. The Management Committee of
the Group meets regularly to monitor and manage the Group’s
strategic and reputational risks, and is responsible for enforcing
high-level policies approved by the Board to identify and assess
such risks, as well as to improve controls.

FEEELRZERAR AT CITIC INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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